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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MDC’s performance in 2004 CONFIRMED OUR POSITION AS A LEADER IN THE HOMEBUILDING INDUSTRY. Not only did we take
advantage of the positive fundamentals driving our industry, but we distinguished ourselves with returns to our shareowners that rank among
the best in the entire industry. Our operating strategy is FOCUSED ON A CONSERVATIVE AND DISCIPLINED APPROACH TO BOTH

EXPANSION AND CAPITAL ALLOCATION.

This strategy enabled us to deliver the STRONGEST RESULTS IN OUR 33-YEAR HISTORY, while at the same time positioning us for

continued success in the future.
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In 2004, MDC's performance surpassed expectations. While delivering on

our commitment to provide high-quality homes with excellent service to our

customers, we achieved record results by virtually all measures.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(Dallars in thousands, except per share amounts)
ORDERS FOR HOMES, CLOSINGS, BACKLOG
AND ACTIVE SUBDIVISICNS
Orders for Homes, net 14,248 12,630 9,899 7,701 7,835
Home Closings 13,876 11,211 8,900 8,174 7,484
Homes in Backlog at Year-End 6,505 5,593 4,035 2,882 3,292
Backlog Estimated Sales Value at Year-End $1,920,000 $1,600,000 $1,120,000 $ 760,000 $ 775,000
Active Subdivisions at Year-End 242 198 178 137 133
TOTAL REVENUES, MARGINS
AND SELLING PRICES
Total Revenues $ 4,009,072 $2,920,070 $2,318,524 $2,125,874 $1,751,545
Home Gross Margins 27.7% 24.1% 23.0% 23.2% 22.3%
Average Selling Price per Home Closed $ 283.4 $ 254.3 $  254.0 $ 254.1 $ 2273
INCOME AND RETURNS
Pre-Tax Operating Income $ 636,914 $ 348,223 § 274,044 $ 255,387 $ 203,201
Net Income $ 391,165 $ 212,229 $ 167,305 $ 155,715 $ 123,303
Average Diluted Shares Quistanding (Thousands) 44,498 43,333 43,657 42,836 41,773
Net Income per Diluted Share $ 8.79 $ 4.90 $ 3.83 $ 3.64 $ 2.95
After-Tax Return on Revenues 9.8% 7.3% 7.2% 7.3% 7.0%
After-Tax Return on Average Equity 33.0% 24.0% 23.0% 27.4% 29.1%
After-Tax Return on Average Assets 17.0% 12.1% 12.0% 13.3% 12.7%
DEBTY, EQUITY AND LIQUIDITY
Total Homebuilding and Corporate Debt $ 746,310 $ 500,179 $ 322,990 $ 174,503 $ 264,444
Stockholders’ Equity $1,418,821 $1,015,920 $ 800,567 $ 653,831 $ 482,230
Stockholders’ Equity per Share $ 32.80 $ 2406 $ 1925 $ 15.64 $ 1196
Homebuilding / Corporate Net Debt-to-Capital Ratio 0.19 0.24 0.27 0.17 0.34
Unrestricted Cash and Available Borrowing

Capacity Under Lines of Credit $ 1,050,954 $ 779,407 $ 618,774 $ 491,770 $ 342,583
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37%

GROWTH
IN REVENUE

An exceptional leadership team,
a balanced approach, a solid platform..
a combination that sparks success.
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Earnings per share grew 79%, from $4.90 to $8.79, establishing MDC

as the number one growth company among all the public hemebuilders in 2004.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

of approximately 600 lots in New Jersey. In addition, we
established a fourth division in Southern California to capitalize
on the fast-growing Inland Empire market. And in January 2005,
we acquired the rights to purchase 1,200 lots in California’s
Central Valley from Del Valle Homes.

After entering seven new markets during the previous three
years, and with our significant expansion in Nevada, Arizona,
California and Virginia, MDC is no longer considered a
“Colorado homebuilder.” Such diversification enables us to
mitigate the short term impact of local market fluctuations and
has created significant growth opportunities for our Company.
Our new operations in Texas, Utah and Florida accounted for
nearly 1,800 home closings and over 2,000 home orders in 2004,
with even greater contributions expected in 2005.

INCREASING SHAREOQWNRNER VALUE Once again,
during 2004, we made significant advances toward achieving
our primary objective of increasing shareowner value:

* In December, we declared a 1.3 for 1 stock split, which was
preceded by a 10% stock dividend declared in February.

. Our quarterly cash dividend increased 72% in the last year
and effectively tripled over the last 24 months.

* MDC repurchased 155,000 shares of MDC common stock
at an average price of $44, well below the current market price.

* Our 2004 after-tax return on equity increased 900 basis
points from 2003 to 33%, one of the highest among our peers.

Md

LARRY A. MIZEL

Neses

DAVID D. MANDARICH
President and Chief Operating Officer

* Qur market capitalization increased 32% during the year,
as our stock price reached an all-time high of $67 in the fourth
quarter. This year-over-year increase in market capitalization
was one of the highest among companies in our industry
during 2004.

VISIBILITY TO FUTURE GROWTH To support our
future growth, we increased our lots under control to nearly
42,000 by the end of 2004. More than 50% of these lots were
optioned, compared with only 29% just 15 months earlier.
We finished the year with 242 active subdivisions, up 22%
over the last 12 months, and we expect to reach 300 active
subdivisions before the end of 2005. In addition, our year-end
backlog of 6,505 homes with an estimated sales value of
nearly $2 billion has enabled us to begin 2005 in a position
of strength.

Our results in 2004 are evidence that our disciplined operating
strategy, geographic expansion and commitment to excellence
across all facets of our business are succeeding. We would like
to express our sincere thanks to all of our shareowners for their
support of MDC. In addition, we thank our employees, Board
of Directors and business partners for their contributions and
dedication to our success. Together, we look forward to another
prosperous year in 2005.

L34 B

PARIS G. REECE Il

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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LETTER FROM MANAGEMENT

EXCEPTIONAL RESULTS MDC’s 2004 performance
surpassed expectations and was the most successful of our
33 years in business. While delivering on our commitment
to provide high-quality homes with excellent service to our
customers, we achieved record results by virtually all measures,
including returns for our sharcowners thar rank among the
best in our industry.

Earnings per share grew 79%, from $4.90 to $8.79, establishing
MDOC as the number one growth company among public
homebuilders in 2004. Our net income reached a historical
high of $391 million in 2004, our seventh consecutive record
year and 84% greater than the previous record of $212 million
we set in 2003. Also, we achieved total revenues of $4.0 billion,
a year-over-year increase of 37%. And our home gross margins
reached 27.7% in 2004, up an impressive 360 basis points
over 2003.

Our strong backlog at the beginning of the year, valued at
$1.6 billion, allowed us to deliver 13,876 home closings in
2004, 24% higher than the 11,211 home closings in 2003.
Our 2004 home orders grew 13% to 14,248, fueled by increased
activity in several of our new markess, as well as strong demand
for homes and a greater number of active subdivisions in most
of our existing markets.

STRENGTHENED FINANCIAL POSITION Strengthening

our balance sheet continues to be one of our top priorities:

* In April, we increased the capacity of our homebuilding line
of credit to $700 million and extended the maturity date
to April 2009. In January 2005, we furcher increased our
line of credit to over $1 billion with the ability to expand
the amount to $1.25 billion with lender approval.

* In the fourth quarter, we enhanced our financial flexibilicy
by expanding our shelf registration to $1 billion, with
$500 million earmarked for our medium-term notes program.

* We took advantage of a relatively low interest rate environment
by issuing $250 million of ten-year, 5.375% medium-term
senior notes in December.

* Qur cash and borrowing capacity at the end of 2004 toraled
more than $1 billion, with no outstanding borrowings on our
$700 million homebuilding credit facilicy.

* Stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2004 increased
40% year-over-year to $1.4 billion.

» We increased the number of lots controlled for future home
construction by more than 45% in 2004, yet our year-end
debt-to-capital ratio, net of cash, of .19 is one of the lowest
in our industry.

This conservative capital structure, combined with our disciplined
approach to expansion, are key distinguishing characteristics
that have established us as one of only six investment grade
companies in the homebuilding industry.

NATIONWIDE EXPANSION During 2004, MDC
took advantage of a convergence of favorable conditions that
reward well-capitalized builders, including improved consumer
confidence and job creation, the constrained supply of land,
strong buyer demand in most major metropolitan areas of the
country, and low mortgage rates. These conditions, together
with our disciplined growth policies, helped us to achieve our

expansion objectives without compromising our balance sheet.

We continued to diversify geographically throughout 2004
through a combination of growth in our long-standing markets
and increased production from our newer markets. During
the third quarter, we acquired control of approximately 2,000
lots from Watson Home Builders in Jacksonville, which should
position the Company among the three largest homebuilders in
that market in 2005. Also in the third quarter, through our
transaction with Patriot Homes and others, we gained control
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MDC

The strong housing market benefited all large public
homebuilders during 2004. Nevertheless, MDC’s conservative
business practices and commitment ro excellence — including
our balance sheet focus, operating disciplines, strength of
management, geographic diversity, product excellence, customer
responsiveness and employee development — place us in a
class of our own.

STRONG RETURNS MDC’s stwong 2004 earnings
growth —— the highest among public homebuilders — clearly
demonstrates the success of our operating strategy. While we
strive to maximize shareowner value, we refuse to compromise
our strategic, low-risk financial profile. Consequently, we
make our decisions in the context of sustaining long-term balance
sheet strength. This balance sheet focus has allowed us to
develop and maintain one of the strongest credit profiles in
our industry and emerge as one of only six homebuilders with
an investment grade rating from all three major rating agencies.

Our efforts to preserve our balance sheet have not hindered our
ability to achieve exceptional operating returns. During 2004,
our after-tax returns on equity and assets improved by 900
and 490 basis points, respectively, to our highest levels ever.
These improved return levels rank among the best in the entire
homebuilding industry and illustrate our ability to achieve
superior results with a relatively low-risk profile.

DISCIPLINE: THE CORNERSTONE OF OUR
OPERATING STRATEGY Discipline governs our
operating strategy and, therefore, the investment decisions we
make. Land acquisitions are reviewed by our Asset Management
Committees, which are composed of senior members of our
management team and, if required by our transaction review
policy, by the Board of Directors. MDC purchases land that
generally will satisfy our community development needs for
no more than a 2.5-year period, minimizing over-exposure to
any single sub-market. Furthermore, we work to acquire lots
that already have been entitled, so that we can open for sales

OUR OWN

and begin construction quickly. This disciplined approach to
investing our capital enables us to respond quickly to changing
market conditions, and keeps us focused on what we do best:
selling and building homes. By reallocating assets to better
performing markets and opportunistically pursuing acquisitions
that will further our expansion efforts, we remain vigilant in
our focus on protecting the Company’s superior balance sheet.

SEASONED, EXPERIENCED MANAGEMENT TEAM
We owe much of our success to our senior managers, who
execute our disciplined operating strategy. Our division presidents
average 20 years of experience in homebuilding. And with
control of nearly 30% of MDC’s stock, the interests of our top
three managers are solidly aligned with our shareowners. They
have a combined 75 years of experience at MDC, giving them
the expertise to guide our Company through the challenges that

emerge in any business cycle.

CONTINUED GEOGRAPHIC DIVERSIFICATION
We realize that continued geographic diversification is essential
to maintaining earnings growth and our low-risk profile. Once
again in 2004, we successfully delivered on our three-pronged
growth strategy, which includes organic subdivision growth in
our existing markets, opportunistic acquisition of assets of
smaller homebuilders in key markets, and the creation of start-up
operations in new markets.

The results of our growth strategy are clear: we have entered
seven new markets in the past three years, and have increased
market share of our long-standing operations by adding
new communities faster than we close them. Our new markets
accounted for 13% of all home closings in 2004 and represent
nearly one-quarter of our total lots under control. And home
closings in our long-standing markets grew by over 13% in
2004, while we increased the number of lots controlled in

these markers by 35%.




MDC's strong 2004 earnings growth — the highest among

public homebuilders — clearly demonstrates the success of our operating strategy.

We took advantage of acquisition opportunities throughout
the year. We acquired rights to approximately 3,800 lots in three
different markets as a result of transactions with Del Valle Homes
in California’s Central Valley, Patriot Homes in southern
New Jersey and Watson Home Builders in Jacksonville,
Florida. We anticipate that these acquisitions will contribute
approximately 700 home closings in 20035 and even more in
2006. Whether through acquisitions or organic growth,
MDC will continue to pursue expansion opportunities.

PRIDE IN AN EXCELLENT PRODUCT In every
market where we build, our high-quality product is recognized
and appreciated. Always paying close atrention to market trends,
the inspiration for our homes comes from our homeowners.
Richmond American homeowners have come to know that
we care about the details that make a house a home, and thar
we offer an increasing numbser of options from which to choose
when personalizing their home. Whether our customers are
first-time, move-up or semi-custom buyers, we offer a home
that they will be proud of for years to come.

RESPONDING TO HOMEBUYER PREFERENCES
As part of our goal to satisfy our homebuyers’ changing needs,
we developed the innovative “Home Gallery by Richmond
American” concept. Currently a prototype facility in suburban
Denver, the Home Gallery is a convenient way for homebuyers
to select their finishes, lighting, technology and home
entertainment wiring, shelving, cabinetry and more, all in a
unique setting featuring one-on-one consultations with a trained
interior designer. The option choices have been significantly
expanded from those available in our traditional design centers.

The Home Gallery also serves as a lead source for our on-site
sales counselors. Individuals who have not yet contracted
with Richmond American can visit the Home Gallery and
meet with a New Home Specialist, who helps identify buyers
lifestyle preferences and the neighborhoods and floorplans that
meet their needs. In additdon to the personal attention and

service afforded to Home Gallery visitors, interacrive kiosks and
informative displays are designed to make the homebuying
process simpler and railored to the individual customer. The
Home Gallery already has received highly positive customer
service responses, and we plan to implement this concept in
other MDC markets across the country during 2005.

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT As the number of
employees working for MDC has increased, including a
30% rise in the past year, we have placed a high priority on
employee training and development. We believe that this area
is critical to our continued abiliry to deliver high-quality homes
and excellent results, particularly as we execute on our plans
for growth in the future. Our Company established MDC
University early in 2003, and we have continued to enhance
the educational offering and resource level provided to our
employees. Set up to support an employees on-the-job learning
and to provide opportunities for advanced skill development,
MDC University is dedicated to teaching the “MDC Way” so
that all employees, no matter their job description or location,
can be trained to perform their job in a manner consistent
with MDC’s standards of excellence, and so that they are
prepared to succeed with our Company.

Specifically, we have initiated land acquisition and purchasing
training programs for both new and existing employees to learn
the fundamentals of how we approach these core disciplines of our
business. Classroom and field training sessions are conducted
by educators with content developed by experienced managers,
in consultation with our corporate executives. The outcome of
these programs is not only a more consistent application of
business processes across the Company, but also more confident
employees who should be better prepared for the day-to-day
challenges of our business.

In all of these areas, MDC has proven to be an industry leader.
We are proud of these achievements and are prepared t pursue
them vigorously again in 2005 and beyond.
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M.D.C. HOLDINGS, INC.
FORM 10-K
PART I
Item 1. Business.
(a) General Development of Business

M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. is a Delaware Corporation. We refer to M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. as the "Company,"
"MDC," "we" or "our" in this Form 10-K and these designations include our subsidiaries unless we state otherwise. Our
primary business is owning and managing subsidiary companies that sell and build homes under the name "Richmond
American Homes." Our financial services segment consists of HomeAmerican Mortgage Corporation
("HomeAmerican"), which originates mortgage loans primarily for our homebuyers, and American Home Insurance
Agency, Inc. ("American Home Insurance"), which offers third party insurance products to our homebuyers. In
addition, we provide title agency services through American Home Title and Escrow Company ("American Home
Title") to our homebuyers in Virginia, Maryland, Colorado, Florida, Texas and Delaware,

The following is a summary of our history:

1972 - We were founded as Mizel Development Corporation and completed initial public offering.

1977 - Created Richmond Homes Limited and entered the Colorado homebuilding market.

1983 - Created HomeAmerican Mortgage Corporation, entered the Arizona homebuilding market through
the acquisition of Cavalier Homes of Arizona and entered the Florida* homebuilding market
through the acquisition of Olin American of Florida.

1985 — Entered the Northern and Southern California homebuilding markets and expanded these operations
through the acquisition of Ponderosa Homes of Southern California.

1986 — Entered the Texas* and suburban Washington D.C., including Maryland and Virginia, homebuilding
markets through the acquisition of Wood Bros. Homes, Inc.

1987 — Entered the Nevada homebuilding market.

1995 - Expanded our Southemn California operations through the purchase of the assets of Mesa Homes,
thereby significantly increasing our presence in the Inland Empire.

1996 — Expanded our Nevada operations through the purchase of the assets of Longford Homes.

2002 - Entered the Utah homebuilding market and expanded our Nevada and Virginia operations through
the purchase of the assets of John Laing Homes in these markets, and also re-entered the Texas
homebuilding market.

2003 - Entered the Pennsylvania and Illinois homebuilding markets, and re-entered the Florida
homebuilding market through the purchase of the assets of Crawford Homes, Inc. in Jacksonville.

2004 — Expanded our Florida operations through the purchase of the assets of Watson Home Builders, Inc.
in Jacksonville and expanded our Pennsylvania/Delaware Valley operations by acquiring control of
approximately 600 residential lots from Patriot Homes, LLC, and others, in southern New Jersey.

2005 — Expanded our California operations by acquiring control of approximately 1,200 finished residential
lots in the Central Valley of California from Del Valle Homes.

* We ceased homebuilding operations in Florida and Texas in 1988 and 1990, respectively, and re-
entered in 2002 and 2003, respectively.

(b) Available Information

Our website is located at www.richmondamerican.com. This Form 10-K and all other reports filed by the
Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") can be accessed, free of charge, through our website
as soon as reasonably practicable after the report is electronically filed with the SEC, at
http://www.investorrelations.richmondamerican.com/edgar.cfim.

(c) Financial Information About Industry Segments

Note B to the consolidated financial statements contains information regarding our business segments for each
of the three years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.



(d) Narrative Description of Business

Our business consists of two segments, homebuilding and financial services. In our homebuilding segment, our
homebuilding subsidiaries build and sell primarily single-family detached homes, although we build some townhomes in
Virginia and Maryland. Homes are designed and built to meet local customer preferences. We are the general contractor
for all of our projects and retain subcontractors for site development and home construction. Our financial services
segment consists of the operations of HomeAmerican and American Home Insurance. HomeAmerican is a full service
mortgage lender with offices located in each of our markets and originates or brokers mortgage loans for approximately
75% of our homebuyers. As a result, HomeAmerican is an integral part of our business.

The base prices for our homes primarily range from $100,000 to $600,000, although we also build homes with
base prices above $1,400,000. The average sales price of our homes closed in 2004 and 2003 was $283,400 and
$254,300, respectively. We maintain a balanced product offering in each of our markets, focusing on high quality design
and construction of homes in most price points, targeting the largest homebuyer segments within a given market, which
generally is the first-time and first-time move-up buyer. As a result, more than 80% of our homebuyers fall into these
two categories.

When opening a new homebuilding project, we generally acquire no more than a two-year supply of lots to
avoid overexposure to any single sub-market. When we acquire finished lots, we prefer using option contracts or paying
in phases with cash. We also acquire entitled land for development into finished lots when we determine that the risk is
justified. Our Asset Management Committees, composed of members of MDC’s senior management, generally meet
weekly to review all proposed land acquisitions and takedowns of lots under option. Additional information about our
land acquisition practices may be found in the Homebuilding Segment, Land Acquisition and Development section.

Homebuilding Segment.

General. MDC, whose subsidiaries build homes under the name "Richmond American Homes," is one of the
largest homebuilders in the United States. We provide mortgage financing, primarily for our homebuyers, through our
wholly owned subsidiary HomeAmerican. We are a major regional homebuilder with a significant presence in some of
the country's best housing markets. We are the largest homebuilder in Colorado; among the top five homebuilders in
Northern Virginia, suburban Maryland, Phoenix, Tucson, Las Vegas and Salt Lake City; and among the top ten
homebuilders in Jacksonville, Northern California and Southern California. We also have established operating
divisions in Dallas/Fort Worth, Houston, West Florida, Philadelphia/Delaware Valley and Chicago. We believe a
significant presence in these markets enables us to compete effectively for homebuyers, land acquisitions and
subcontractor labor.

Our operations are diversified geographically, as shown in the following table of home sales revenues by state
for the years 2002 through 2004 (dollars in thousands).

Total Home Sales Revenues Percent of Total
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

ATIZONA ...o.vvcveecirierrrennens $ 627,331 §$ 547,697 $ 370,367 16% 19% 16%
California......ccccoevevivnnnns 1,078,063 748,337 645,700 27% 26% 29%
Colorado ...cceevevreeninnnnne 614,919 675,236 731,211 16% 24% 32%
Florida......c.ccovueruerurannnnn 81,635 15,655 -- 2% 1% --
T1HNOIS ...ceeeeeeceererrenene 994 -~ -- 0% -- --
Maryland........cvecrenen. 161,561 112,975 84,913 4% 4% 4%
Nevada.....ccccooevvvenennne. 676,252 383,659 227319 17% 13% 10%
TeXas....ccoereririrvveraeenencns 109,432 26,143 177 3% 1% 0%
Utah ..o 113,579 48,331 16,936 3% 2% 1%
Virginia....occcoveevenverernnene 468.247 293,295 183,668 12% 10% 8%

Total.....urereeennn. $3.932.013 $2.851.328 $2,260291 100% 100% 100%

The financial information required by Item 1 is contained in Note B to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Housing. We build homes in a number of basic series, each designed to appeal to a different segment of the
homebuyer market. Within each series, we build several models, each with a different floor plan, elevation and standard




and optional features. Differences in sales prices of similar models in any series depend primarily upon location,
optional features and design specifications. The series of homes offered at a particular location are based on customer
preference, lot size, the area's demographics and, in certain cases, the requirements of major land sellers and local
municipalities.

Design centers are located in most of our homebuilding markets. Homebuyers are able to customize certain
features of their homes by selecting options and upgrades on display at the design centers. Homebuyers can select
finishes and upgrades soon after they decide to purchase a Richmond American home. The design centers also provide
us with an additional source of revenue and profit. We recently have launched our new Home Gallery concept in the
Denver area. These Home Galleries offer thousands of options for customizing a new home, including flooring;
countertops; lighting and plumbing fixtures; cabinetry; paint; appliances; home entertainment, security and technology
wiring; closet solutions and central vacuum systems. The Home Gallery color studios enable homebuyers to view
selections that have been coordinated into color schemes by design consultants. The individualized process is designed
to make design and upgrade decisions simpler. Another advantage of the Home Gallery is the ease with which
homebuyers can visit to browse the design and upgrade options available before their appointment with a design
consultant.

We maintain limited levels of inventories of unsold homes in our markets. Unsold homes in various stages of
completion allow us to meet the immediate and near-term demands of prospective homebuyers. In order to mitigate the
risk of carrying excess inventory, we have strict controls and limits on the number of our unsold homes under
construction.

Land Acquisition and Development. We purchase finished lots using option contracts, in phases or in bulk for
cash. We also acquire entitled land for development into finished lots when we believe that the risk is justified. In
making land purchases, we consider a number of factors, including projected rates of return, sales prices of the homes to
be built, population and employment growth patterns, proximity to developed areas, estimated costs of development and
demographic trends. Generally, we acquire finished lots and land for development only in areas that will have, among
other things, available building permits, utilities and suitable zoning. We attempt to maintain a supply of finished lots
sufficient to enable us to start homes promptly after a contract for a home sale is executed. This approach is intended to
minimize our investment in inventories and reduce the risk of shortages of labor and building materials. Increases in the
cost of finished lots may reduce Home Gross Margins (as defined below) in the future to the extent that market
conditions would not allow us to recover the higher cost of land through higher sales prices. See "Forward-Looking
Statements" below. We define "Home Gross Margins” to mean home sales revenues less cost of goods sold (which
primarily includes land and construction costs, capitalized interest, a reserve for warranty expense and financing and
closing costs) as a percent of home sales revenues.

We have the right to acquire a portion of the land we will acquire in the future utilizing option contracts, in
some cases on a "rolling” basis. Generally, in an option contract, we obtain the right to purchase lots in consideration for
an option deposit. In the event we elect not to purchase the lots within a specified period of time, we forfeit the option
deposit. Our option contracts do not contain provisions requiring specific performance. This practice limits our risk and
avoids a greater demand on our liquidity. At December 31, 2004, we had the right to acquire 21,164 lots under option
agreements, with approximately $41.8 million in non-refundable cash option deposits and $22.1 million in letters of
credit at risk. Because of increased demand for finished lots in certain of our markets, our ability to acquire lots using
rolling options has been reduced or has become significantly more expensive.

We own and have the right under option contracts to acquire undeveloped parcels of real estate that we intend
to develop into finished lots. We develop our land in phases (generally fewer than 100 lots at a time for each home
series in a subdivision) in order to limit our risk in a particular project and to efficiently employ available liquidity.
Building permits and utilities are available and zoning is suitable for the current intended use of substantially all of our
undeveloped land. When developed, these lots generally will be used in our homebuilding activities. See "Forward-
Looking Statements" below. ‘ -




The table below shows the carrying value of land and land under development, by state, as of
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 (in thousands).

December 31,

2004 2003 2002

AFIZONA ...oeiirreceeere s $ 168489 § 89,950 § 92,639
California.....ccoceenicnvecrincrercrereresincsises 277,360 239,714 154,980
Colorado .....everereerereeereereerecreere e 139,554 105,223 140,930
Florida.......ccermcnniiiiccecccscsiennes 27,926 12,116 --
TIHNOIS .o cerecninenevercerererermesrnsesestssssenes 33,656 -- --
Maryland........cccoooveevnnrscrcncnnnsnnninnns 69,523 53,483 21,892
Nevada.....ccoovvcvniniciroinnnncrniinnn, 209,544 129,554 114,142
Philadelphia/Delaware Valley................. 28,916 -- --
TEXAS...c.cceverenereenieerererereeneeeearisniasnins 19,420 16,420 5,559
Utah....coeocccnerecrerniecresmeee e enerenenes 35,104 22,548 12,984
VIFGINIA ...ooieeeieirieeiiieneeee e eearesesaeen 100.461 94.561 113,717

Total......ovocriiriiiciine $1,109953 8 763,569 $ 656,843

The table below shows the number of lots owned and under option (excluding lots in housing completed or
under construction), by state, as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Lots Owned

ATIZONA ... oeeriecereeesseresicenesaeseesesenresssans 5,657 2,902 3,356
California........coevecvieirereeserineonreiereseens 2,646 2,733 2,473
Colorado.......eoeeiiriviinienieenieereesresererens 3,993 3,392 4,733
FIOrida ......cccovevvinncrerereniennerereensnessisene 594 346 --
THNOIS.c..veeevemee sttt 508 -- --
Maryland ......cccooverieerirenceeenneccrniaes 650 532 228
Nevada......cooevmvniicninnenennenen, 3,916 3,634 3,254
Philadelphia/Delaware Valley ................. 312 -- --
TEXAS ..cvcviverererererccerieeiinereeseseseeassssesans 642 534 170
L 5]7: | SO PO OO TOTRR 862 867 730
VIALGINIA. c.eerneerereresisenisensinrcennrisessonsresesnns 980 1411 2,018

Total ..o 20,760 16,351 16962

Lots Under Option

ATIZODA...co.vveeiiereririerierrereneerseessnrecseserens 5,494 2,356 584
Califormia .......ccoeverevrncnrnenrersreserereresnsnens 1,782 779 983
Colorado......oovvvireriiiicienicines 1,866 1,814 1,027
Florida.......covivnernineernincnnninesreniesesiones 2,980 529 --
THHNOIS. 01t evevveerene e eneneneenebenessesesiseseensees 203 -- --
Maryland........cccoorviivccreinieccnnnnrennnnns 1,206 1,235 1,223
NEVAda ...cooerrrerenirinrirestieneserennnsonsrens 1,859 1,725 1,137
Philadelphia/Delaware Valley ................. 723 -- --
TERAS ..evviieirrrererererirreererreresresessareessntens 1,694 1,669 671
Utah..cccorccinierinenenennieereniersesesresenssnssiss 216 353 131
VITINIA c.covvvrieenteenenensie e evenseeseranes 3.141 1,791 1.239

TOtal ..o _ 21,164 12251 ___6,995

Labor and Raw Materials. Generally, the materials used in our homebuilding operations are standard items
carried by major suppliers. We generally contract for most of our materials and labor at a fixed price during the
anticipated construction period of our homes. This allows us to mitigate the risks associated with increases in building
materials and labor costs between the time construction begins on a home and the time it is closed. Increases in the cost
of building materials, particularly lumber, and subcontracted labor may reduce Home Gross Margins to the extent that
market conditions prevent the recovery of increased costs through higher sales prices. From time to time and to varying
degrees, we may experience shortages in the availability of building materials and/or labor in each of our markets. These
shortages and delays may result in delays in the delivery of homes under construction, reduced Home Gross Margins, or
both. See "Forward-Looking Statements"” below.




Warranty. Our homes are sold with limited warranties that generally provide for ten years of structural
coverage ("structural warranty"), two years of coverage for plumbing, electrical and heating, ventilation and air
conditioning systems, and one year of coverage for workmanship and materials ("general warranty"). Warranty reserves
are initially established as homes close on a per-unit basis in an amount estimated to be adequate to cover expected
costs of materials and outside labor during warranty periods. Reserves are determined based upon historical experience
with respect to similar product types and geographical areas. Certain factors are given consideration in determining the
per-house reserve amount, including: (1) the historical range of amounts paid per house; (2) the historical average
amount paid per house; (3) any warranty expenditures included in (1) and (2) not considered to be normal and
recurring; (4) improvements in quality control and construction techniques expected to impact future warranty
expenditures; and (5) conditions that may affect certain projects and require higher per-house reserves for those
specific projects.

Warranty expenditures are tracked on a house-by-house basis and are charged against the warranty reserve
established for the house. Any expenditure incurred within 120 days of closing a home is recorded against the estimate
to complete land development and home construction accrual, unless it is clear that the expenditure is a warranty claim.
Expenditures incurred after 120 days of closing a home are considered warranty expenditures. Additional reserves are
established for known unusual warranty-related expenditures not covered by the initial warranty reserves. If warranty
expenditures for an individual house exceed the related reserve, then costs in excess of the reserve are evaluated in the
aggregate to determine if an adjustment to housing cost of sales should to be recorded.

Seasonal Nature of Business. Our homebuilding business is seasonal to the extent that certain of our
operations, especially in the northernmost markets, are subject to weather-related slowdowns. Delays in development
and construction activities resulting from adverse weather conditions could increase our risk of buyer cancellations and
contribute to higher costs for interest, materials and labor. In addition, homebuyer preferences and demographics
influence the seasonal nature of our business. See "Forward-Looking Statements" below.

Backilog. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, homes under contract but not yet delivered ("Backlog") totaled
6,505 and 5,593, respectively, with estimated sales values of $1.92 billion and $1.60 billion, respectively. Based on our
past experience, assuming no significant change in market conditions and mortgage interest rates, we anticipate that
approximately 70% to 75% of our December 31, 2004 Backlog will close under existing sales contracts during the first
nine months of 2005. The remaining 25% to 30% of the homes in Backlog are not expected to close under existing
contracts due to cancellations. See "Forward-Looking Statements” below. The table below discloses, by market, our
Backlog for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 (dollars in thousands).

December 31, —2004 Increase (Decrease)

2004 2003 Amount %

Backlog (Units) ‘

ATIZONA.....cocririenieiinrieresennearersesssneonsresssesrans 2,143 1,333 810 61%
California ........c..oceeverereverenrerensansreressesseens 807 1,119 (312) -28%
Colorado.......cocvvereiiecce e 692 734 (42) -6%
FIOmda «..vovoceniniccenniesrnenee e e sssnvencssnns 638 104 534 513%
THDOIS c1veveeveeerevrerenaseseenersressensesensneraesssnns 18 -- 18 N/A
Maryland.....cccoccenvevrievnnnncecencneens 225 269 44) -16%
NEVAQA ..ot 746 886 (140) -16%
Philadelphia/Delaware Valley.............ccc..... 23 -- 23 N/A
TEXAS c.reierrcrierie s e ste s sreenane 256 143 113 79%
ULah. oo reercrecreresn e s e e senas 289 151 138 91%
VIPZINIA cocvevvirnierenrereiecerirnssesenre e tsreaeerenanes 668 854 (186) -22%
Totah..ooeereee et 6,503 5,593 912 16%
Backlog Estimated Sales Value........cooovviveenne. $1.920,000 $1,600000 § 320000 = 20%
Estimated Average Sales Price in Backlog ....... ) 2952 § 286.1 3 9.1 3%

In 2004, we experienced strong demand for homes in Arizona, where our Backlog significantly increased
year-over-year. Additionally, our Backlog increased in Florida, in part resulting from the acquisition of certain assets of
Crawford Homes, Inc. in 2003 and of Watson Home Builders, Inc. in 2004. In 2004, we slowed the pace of new home
offerings in certain communities in Virginia by releasing fewer homes to the market to allow construction to catch up
with the Backlog in this market.




The 13% increase in orders for 2004 compared with 2003 was impacted by the extraordinary levels of demand
experienced in Nevada and California during the first half of 2004. During the second half of 2004, we saw our overall
level of net home orders decline to a level comparable to the same period in 2003. This decline was driven by Nevada
and California, primarily due to a reduction in the number of net home orders per active community. Higher home order
cancellations during the second half of 2004, compared with the same period in 2003, in both of these markets also
contributed to the reduced number of net home orders. In addition, the net home orders received in California during the
2004 fourth quarter were impacted by a temporary reduction in the number of active communities, due in part to a
higher than anticipated sales pace resulting from the exceptional demand for new homes in the state through the first half
of 2004. Notwithstanding these changes in California and Nevada, we generally maintained the significant price
increases realized in these markets earlier in the year.

Marketing and Sales. Our homes are sold under various commission arrangements by our own sales personnel
and by cooperating brokers and referrals in the realtor community. In marketing our homes, we primarily use on-site
model homes, advertisements in local newspapers, radio, billboards and other signage, magazines and illustrated
brochures. We also market our homes on our internet website, www.richmondamerican.com, and utilize a variety of
other internet sites to advertise our homes and communities.

Title Operations. American Home Title provides title agency services to our homebuyers in Virginia,
Maryland, Colorado, Florida, Texas and Delaware. AHT Reinsurance, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MDC,
reinsures existing title insurance policies issued to our homebuyers in California, Nevada and Utah. We are evaluating
opportunities to provide title agency services in our other markets.

Competition. The homebuilding industry is fragmented and highly competitive. We compete with numerous
homebuilders, including a number that are larger and have greater financial resources. Homebuilders compete for
customers, desirable financing, land, building materials and subcontractor labor. Competition for home orders primarily
is based upon price, style, financing provided to prospective purchasers, location of property, quality of homes built,
customer service and general reputation in the community. We also compete with subdivision developers and land
development companies when acquiring land.

Mortgage Interest Rates. Our homebuilding operations are dependent upon the availability and cost of
mortgage financing. Increases in home mortgage interest rates may reduce the demand for homes and home mortgages
and, generally, will reduce home mortgage refinancing activity, which could negatively impact our business. We are
unable to predict future changes in home mortgage interest rates or the impact such changes may have on our operating
activities and results of operations. See "Forward-Looking Statements" below.

Regulation. Our homebuilding operations are subject to continuing compliance requirements mandated by
applicable federal, state and local statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations, including zoning and land use ordinances,
building codes, contractors' licensing laws, state insurance laws, federal and state human resources laws and regulations
and health and safety regulations and laws (including, but not limited to, those of the Occupational Safety and Health
Administration). Various localities in which we operate have imposed (or may impose in the future) fees on developers
to fund schools, road improvements and low and moderate-income housing. See "Forward-Looking Statements"
below.

From time to time, various municipalities in which we operate restrict or place moratoriums on the availability
of utilities, including water and sewer taps. Additionally, certain jurisdictions in which we operate have proposed or
enacted growth initiatives that may restrict the number of building permits available in any given year. Although no
assurances can be given as to future conditions or governmental actions, in general, we believe that we have, or can
obtain, water and sewer taps and building permits for our land inventory and land held for development. See "Forward-
Looking Statements” below. -

Our homebuilding operations also are affected by environmental laws and regulations pertaining to availability
of water, municipal sewage treatment capacity, land use, hazardous waste disposal, naturally occurring radioactive
materials, building materials, population density and preservation of endangered species, natural terrain and vegetation.
Due to these considerations, we generally obtain an environmental site assessment for parcels of land that we acquire.
The particular environmental laws and regulations that apply to any given homebuilding project vary greatly according
to the site's location, the site's environmental conditions and the present and former uses of the site. These environmental
laws and regulations may result in project delays, causing us to incur substantial compliance and other costs, and/or




prohibit or severely restrict homebuilding activity in certain environmentally sensitive regions or areas. See "Forward-
Looking Statements” below. .

Bonds and Letters of Credit. In many cases, we are required to obtain bonds and letters of credit in support of
our related obligations with respect to subdivision improvement, homeowners association dues and start-up expenses,
warranty work, contractors license fees, earnest money deposits, etc. At December 31, 2004, we had issued and
outstanding performance bonds and letters of credit totaling $306.8 million and $94.7 million, respectively, including
$25.6 million in letters of credit issued by HomeAmerican. In the event any such bonds or letters of credit issued by
third parties are called, we would be obligated to reimburse the issuer of the bond or letter of credit. See "Forward-
Looking Statements" below.

Financial Services Segment.
Mortgage Lending Operations.

General. HomeAmerican is a full-service mortgage lender and is the principal originator of mortgage loans for
our homebuyers. Through office locations in each of our markets and a centralized loan origination center,
HomeAmerican originates mortgage loans primarily for our homebuyers. HomeAmerican also brokers mortgage loans
for origination by outside lending institutions for our homebuyers.

HomeAmerican is authorized to originate Federal Housing Administration-insured ("FHA"), Veterans
Administration-guaranteed ("VA"), Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA"), Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation ("FHLMC") and other private investor mortgage loans. HomeAmerican also is an authorized loan servicer
for FNMA, FHLMC and the Government National Mortgage Association ("GNMA") and, as such, is subject to the rules
and regulations of these organizations.

Substantially all of the mortgage loans originated by HomeAmerican are sold to investors within 45 days of
origination. We use HomeAmerican's secured warehouse line of credit, other borrowings and Company generated funds
to finance these mortgage loans until they are sold.

Portfolio of Mortgage Loan Servicing. Mortgage loan servicing involves the collection of principal, interest,
taxes and insurance premiums from the borrower and the remittance of such funds to the mortgage loan investor, local
taxing authorities and insurance companies. The servicer is paid a fee to perform these services. HomeAmerican obtains
the servicing rights related to the mortgage loans it originates. Certain mortgage loans are sold "servicing released” (the
servicing rights are included with the sale of the corresponding mortgage loans). In 2004, 51% of the mortgage loans
were sold "servicing released". The servicing rights on the remainder of the mortgage loans generally are sold under
minibulk contracts within two months of the sale of the mortgage loan. HomeAmerican intends to continue seiling
servicing rights on all mortgage loans originated in the future. See "Forward-Looking Statements” below.

HomeAmerican's portfolio of mortgage loan servicing at December 31, 2004 consisted of servicing rights with
respect to 2,906 single-family loans, 99% of which were less than one year old. This includes 2,330 single-family loans
for which the servicing rights had been sold but not transferred to the purchasers as of December 31, 2004.
HomeAmerican anticipates transferring these servicing rights in the first half of 2005. These loans are secured by
mortgages on properties in eleven states, with interest rates on the loans ranging from approximately 4.25% to 6.00%
and averaging 5.77%. The underlying value of a servicing portfolio generally is determined based on the interest rates
and the annual servicing fee rates, gross of guarantee fees, currently .44% for FHA/V A loans and .25% for conventional
loans applicable to the loans comprising the portfolio.

Pipeline.  HomeAmerican's mortgage loans in process that had not closed (the "Pipeline") at
December 31, 2004 had aggregate principal balances of $1.3 billion. An estimated 70% to 75% of the Pipeline at
December 31, 2004 is anticipated to close during the first nine months of 2005. If mortgage interest rates decline, a
smaller percentage of these loans would be expected to close. See "Forward-Looking Statements" below.

Forward Sales Commitments. HomeAmerican is exposed to market risks related to fluctuations in interest
rates on its mortgage loan inventory. Derivative instruments utilized in the normal course of business by HomeAmerican
include forward sales securities commitments, private investor sales commitments and commitments to originate
mortgage loans. HomeAmerican utilizes the sales commitments to manage the price risk on fluctuations in interest rates
on our mortgage loans owned and commitments to originate mortgage loans. Such contracts are the only significant




financial derivative instruments utilized by the Company and are generally settled within 45 days of origination. Due to
this hedging philosophy, the market risk associated with HomeAmerican’s mortgages is limited.

Competition. The mortgage industry is fragmented and highly competitive. In each of the locations in which it
originates loans, HomeAmerican competes with numerous banks, thrifis and other mortgage bankers, many of which are
larger and have greater financial resources. Competitive factors include pricing, loan terms, underwriting criteria and
customer service.

Insurance Operations.

American Home Insurance provides third party homeowners, auto and other types of casualty insurance to our
homebuyers.

Employees.

At December 31, 2004, we employed approximately 3,600 employees. We consider our employee relations to
be very good.

Item 2. Properties.

Our corporate headquarters currently is located at 3600 South Yosemite Street, Denver, Colorado 80237,
where we lease office space in a 134,000 square foot office building. We have given notice of termination of our
existing lease and have entered into a lease for new office space in the Denver area. We also lease office space at our
homebuilding divisions and our financial services locations. All operations currently are either satisfied with the
suitability and capacity of their properties or are in the process of locating additional space suitable for expanding
operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have been named as defendants in various claims, complaints and
other legal actions arising in the normal course of business, including moisture intrusion and related mold claims. In the
opinion of management, the outcome of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows of the Company. See "Forward-Looking Statements" below.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") filed an administrative action against Richmond American
Homes of Colorado, Inc. ("Richmond"), alleging that Richmond violated the terms of Colorado's general permit for
discharges of stormwater from construction activities at two of Richmond's development sites. In its complaint, the EPA
sought civil penalties against Richmond in the amount of $122,000. On November 11, 2003, the EPA filed a motion to
withdraw the administrative action so that it could refile the matter in United States District Court as part of a
consolidated action against Richmond for alleged stormwater violations at not only the original two sites, but also two
additional sites. The EPA's motion to withdraw was granted by the Administrative Law Judge on February 9, 2004. The
EPA has not yet refiled the matter. The EPA recently has inspected a number of sites under development by Richmond
affiliates in Virginia, Maryland, Arizona, California and again in Colorado, and claims to have found additional
stormwater permit violations. Richmond has substantial defenses to the allegations made by the EPA and also is
exploring methods of resolving this matter with the EPA.

Because of the nature of the homebuilding business, and in the ordinary course of its operations, the Company
from time to time may be subject to product liability claims.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No meetings of the Company's stockholders were held during the fourth quarter of 2004.




PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

On December 31, 2004, MDC had 954 shareowners of record. The shares of MDC common stock are traded
on the New York and the Pacific Stock Exchanges. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the price
ranges of MDC's common stock. Amounts have been adjusted for the effects of the 10% stock dividend distributed on
March 23, 2004, as well as the 1.3 for 1 stock split effective January 10, 2005.

Three Months Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2004

High...coooovnvverrenenen $ 55.26 $ 55.19 b 58.15 $ 67.11
LOW oo $ 40.04 $ 43.13 $ 46.19 $ 51.54
2003

High....coooorerererieee $ 26.54 $ 37.17 $ 38.52 $ 49.58
LOW cceoreerervnrnrrneenenees $ 22.66 $ 23.93 $ 33.05 $ 37.48

The following table sets forth the cash dividends declared and paid in 2004 and 2003. Amounts have been
adjusted for the effects of the 10% stock dividend distributed on March 23, 2004, as well as the 1.3 for 1 stock split
effective January 10, 2005 (dollars in thousands, except per share amounts).

Date of Date of Dividend
Declaration Payment per Share Dollars

2004

First quarter.........c....c...... January 26, 2004 February 26,2004 § 00874 § 3,694

Second quarter ................ April 27, 2004 May 26, 2004 0.1154 4,892

Third quarter.................. July 27, 2004 August 25, 2004 0.1154 4,898

Fourth quarter.................. October 25,2004 November 23, 2004 0.1154 5,140
$ 04336 § 18,624

2003

First quarter...........ccouene. January 21, 2003 February 21,2003 § 0.0509 3 2,121

Second quarter ................ April 28, 2003 May 27, 2003 0.0572 2,341

Third quarter ........cocccou.... August 4, 2003 August 28, 2003 0.0874 3,629

Fourth quarter.................. October 20, 2003  November 19, 2003 0.0874 3,721

On January 24, 2005, MDC's board of directors approved the payment of a cash dividend of 15.0 cents per
share payable February 24, 2005 to shareowners of record on February 10, 2005.

On December 14, 2004, MDC's board of directors declared a 1.3 for 1 stock split, effected in the form of a
stock dividend that was distributed on January 10, 2005.

On February 23, 2004, MDC’s board of directors declared a 10% stock dividend that was distributed on
March 23, 2004 to shareowners of record on March 8, 2004.

In connection with the declaration and payment of dividends, the Company is required to comply with certain
covenants contained in its unsecured revolving line of credit agreement, which had a capacity of $700 million as of
December 31, 2004 and was amended and increased in January 2005 to $1.058 billion. Pursuant to the terms of this
agreement, dividends may be declared or paid if the Company is in compliance with certain stockholders' equity and
debt coverage tests. At December 31, 2004, the Company had a permitted dividend capacity of approximately
$371 million pursuant to the most restrictive of these covenants.

There were no shares repurchased during the fourth quarter of 2004.

The Company declared a 1.3 for 1 stock split effective January 10, 2005. As a result of this stock split, the
number of shares issuable under the Company’s registration statements identified below have been adjusted accordingly.




Pursuant to Rule 416 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the following registration statements on Form S-8
are deemed to cover the additional number of shares of the Company’s common stock as listed below, as a result of the
adjustments to account for such stock split:

Registration Statement No. Additional Number of Shares
333-22167 433,915
333-60330 202,658
333-67894 878,334
333-103154 435,562
333-103192 330,421
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The data in this table should be read in conjunction with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements. Weighted-average shares
and per share amounts have been adjusted for the effects of the 10% stock dividend distributed on March 23, 2004 and
the 1.3 for 1 stock split effective January 10, 2005 (in thousands, except per share and unit amounts).

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
INCOME STATEMENT DATA
REVENUES ..ottt $4,009,072 $2920,070 $2,318,524 $2,125874  $1,751,545
Income before income taxes
Homebuilding.......cccccovnvrevererreneernieennns $ 719,197 $ 393879 § 295604 § 279267 § 227,319
Financial services
Mortgage lending........cccccecevecvvueneenne. 16,579 26,983 24,194 21,116 14,282
INSUTANCE......coriiiirierrreeeeresreeesreraeens 1.904 1,294 -- -- --
Total financial services........c.c...... 18.483 28277 24,194 21,116 14,282
Net corporate expenses & .........c............ (100.766) (73.933) (45,754) (44,996) (38.400)
TOLAL coeevvverrrere e sseseserenennenane $ 636914 $ 348223 § 274044 § 255387 § 203,201
NEt iDCOIME ..vrvereverinrrerarenernrseesessssesrrsesens $ 391,165 $ 212,229 §$ 167,305 § 155715 § 123,303
Basic per common share ............cccocecene. $ 919 § 511 % 397 8 375§ 3.02
Diluted per common share ..................... $ 879 § 490 S 383 % 364 § 295
Weighted-average shares outstanding
BaSIC. .ottt 42,560 41,521 42,103 41,560 40,858
Diluted.......ccoverrererrree e 44,498 43,333 43,657 42,836 41,773
Dividends declared per share..................... § 0434 § 0283 § 0197 § 0153 § 0.126
December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
BALANCE SHEET DATA
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents..........c..occouenee $ 408,150 § 173,565 § 28942 § 36,600 $ 14,115
Housing completed or under
CONSHUCLION ..ceovneeeeiereeeeccereiercerennens $ 851,628 § 732,744 § 578,475 § 456,752 $ 443,512
Land and land under development.......... $1,109953 § 763,569 3§ 656,843 § 450,502 $ 388,711
Total @SSEtS...ovecevrrrereeciereecie e renneane $2,790,044  $1,969,800 $1,595,180  $1,190,956 $1,061,598
Homebuilding and Corporate Debt
Homebuilding line of credit .........cco..ce. $ -- 8 -- 3 -- 3 -- % 90,000
SENIOr NOLES ....vovvverrerrerrierrecereeerereerens $ 746,310 § 497,700 § 322,990 $ 174,503 § 174,444
Notes payable......c.c.comerernereecnrrerirenennens $ -- 8 2479 § -- % -- % --
Total homebuilding and corporate debt. $ 746,310 § 500,179 § 322990 §$ 174503 $ 264,444
Stockholders' Equity ...........ccocoevevenercnenne. $1,418821  $1,015920 $ 800,567 § 653,831 § 482,230
Stockholders' Equity per Outstanding
SHAre ...t 5 3280 $ 2406 $ 1925 § 1564 $ 1196
Ratio of Debt to Stockholders' Equity @ . .53 49 40 27 55
Ratio of Net Debt to Stockhelders'
EQUItY®. ..o, 24 32 37 21 52
Ratio of Debt to Capital @ ..................... 34 33 29 21 35
Ratio of Debt to Capital (net of cash)® ... .19 24 27 .17 .34
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Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

OPERATING DATA

Home sales reVEnUES ........coovvvvenreenireeiesseenns $3,932,013  $2,851,328  $2,260,291  $2,076,807 $1,701,108

Orders for homes, net (units)...................... 14,248 12,630 9,899 7,701 7,835

Homes closed (Units) .ooveeierererrvrersennerarenenene 13,876 11,211 8,900 8,174 7,484

Homes in Backlog at year-end (units) ........ 6,505 5,593 4,035 2,882 3,292

Estimated Backlog sales value at year-end. $1,920,000 $1,600,000 $1,120,000 $ 760,000 $ 775,000

Average selling price per home closed....... $§ 2834 § 2543 § 2540 $ 2541 § 2273

Home Gross Margins.........c.ccovevviiinnnnnns 27.7% 24.1% 23.0% 23.2% 22.3%
Cash Flows From

Operating activities ..........ccocverrrrecvieverennans $ (23,864) 3§ 83927 $(166,429) $ 93,251 § (63,457)

Investing activities.........covereereererrreceneennnnenes $ (29,917) $ (6,785 $ (12,441) $ (3,219) $§ (3,160)

Financing activities.........ccceveeerreenvverireioennne $ 288,366 $ 67,481 $ 171,212 $ (67,547) $ 41,802
Corporate and Homebuilding SG&A as a

% of Home Sales Revenues...................... 12.3% 12.8% 12.3% 12.1% 11.9%

(1)  Net corporate expenses represent (a) net realized gains and losses on corporate investments and marketable securities; (b) interest, dividend
and other income; and (c) corporate general and administrative expense.

(2)  Excludes mortgage lending debt from the calculation.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. is a Delaware Corporation. We refer to M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. as the "Company,"
"MDC," "we" or "our" in this Form 10-K, and these designations include our subsidiaries unless we state otherwise.
Our primary business is owning and managing subsidiary companies that build and sell homes under the name
"Richmond American Homes.”" Our financial services segment consists of HomeAmerican Mortgage Corporation
("HomeAmerican"), which originates mortgage loans primarily for our homebuyers, and American Home Insurance
Agency, Inc. ("American Home Insurance"), which offers third party insurance products to our homebuyers. In
addition, we provide title agency services through American Home Title and Escrow Company ("American Home
Title") to our homebuyers in Virginia, Maryland, Colorado, Florida, Texas and Delaware.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

The economic climate for the homebuilding industry was excellent in 2004, and we were able to capitalize on
the fundamentals that drove the housing market, such as increasing consumer confidence, improving job growth, low
interest rates and a limited supply of land in high-demand markets. We also were able to capitalize on the economies of
scale that we experienced as a large, well-capitalized homebuilder. Earnings per share increased by 79% to $8.79 in
2004. Our net income of $391 million represents the 7th consecutive year for record eamings, and our total revenues of
$4 billion marks our 11th consecutive annual record. In addition, we achieved all-time highs for home closings and
Home Gross Margins, as defined below.

Strong demand for homes in most of our markets in 2004, particularly during the first half of the year, led to
our highest-ever level of annual orders for 14,248 homes. These strong orders enabled us to end the year with a record
Backlog, as defined below, of over 6,500 homes valued at nearly $2 billion, representing a year-over-year value
increase of 20%.

QOur financial position continued to strengthen in 2004. Total stockholders’ equity at year-end exceeded
$1.4 billion, or $32.80 per outstanding share, and our year-end debt-to-capital ratio, net of cash, was .19. Earlier in
2004, the term of our homebuilding line of credit was extended to five years, and we increased our borrowing capacity
to $700 million. Additionally in 2004, we expanded our shelf registration to $1 billion, earmarking $500 million for our
medium-term notes program. In December 2004, we issued $250 million of 10-year medium-term senior notes at a
coupon rate of 5%%. We ended the year with more than $1 billion in cash and borrowing capacity. In January 2005, we
further increased our borrowing capacity under our homebuilding line of credit to $1.058 billion, with the ability to
expand to $1.25 billion with lender approval.

We declared a 10% stock dividend in February 2004 and, in January 2005, we completed a 1.3 for 1 stock
split. As a result of these actions, we have effectively tripled our quarterly dividend payment over the last 24 months. In
addition, we repurchased 155,000 shares of stock in 2004, adjusted for the 1.3 for 1 stock split, and we have 2,145,000
additional shares autborized for repurchase.

We made significant progress in 2004 in furthering our expansion efforts in markets across the country,
evidenced by a 22% increase in our actively selling communities. We acquired control of certain assets of Watson
Home Builders, Inc. in Jacksonville and Patriot Homes and others in southern New Jersey in the third quarter of 2004.
These transactions significantly expanded our presence in two of the country’s strongest housing markets. Also, in

January 2005, we acquired the right to purchase approximately 1,200 finished lots in the Central Valley of Callforma
from Del Valle Homes.

As a merchant homebuilder, we are focused on maximizing risk-adjusted returns. While we will complete
some level of development work on lots when the returns justify the risk, generally we will not develop master-planned
communities. We attempt to focus on the largest demand segments within a given market, which generally is the first-
time and first-time move-up buyer. As a result, more than 80% of our homebuyers fall into these two categories.

Our objective is to achieve a major market share in each of our markets. The markets in which we operate
have been selected because of their potential for population and employment growth. We attempt to establish
homebuilding operations in the best markets in the country. When we enter a market, our goal is to be one of the top
builders in that market. We have accomplished this goal in most of the markets we have operated in since the mid-
1980s.
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When opening a new homebuilding project, our land strategy generally is to acquire no more than a 2% year
supply of lots to avoid overexposure to any single sub-market. We prefer to acquire finished lots using rolling options
or in phases for cash. However, we will acquire entitled land for development into finished lots when we determine that
the risk is justified. Our Asset Management Committees, composed of members of our senior management, generally
meet weekly to review all proposed land acquisitions and takedowns of lots under option. In evaluating land and lot
acquisition opportunities, our objective is to increase our land under option and reduce the percentage of land owned.

Consolidated Results.

The following discussion for both consolidated results of operations and segment results refers to the year
ended December 31, 2004, compared with the same period in 2003, and the year ended December 31, 2003, compared
with the same period in 2002. The table below summarizes our results of operations (in thousands, except per share
amounts). Earnings per share for prior periods have been restated to reflect the effect of the 10% stock dividend
distributed on March 23, 2004 and the 1.3 for 1 stock split effective January 10, 2005.

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
REVENUES c.uvvverieieecrrcricceer ettt eessene $4,009,072 $2,920,070 $2,318,524
Income Before Income Taxes........oovrvveverenrneens $ 636,914 § 348223 § 274,044
Net INCOME .....oourerirereiereee e ereree s veees $ 391,165 § 212,229 § 167,305
Earnings Per Share:
BASIC oot e eraseens $ 919 § 511 § 3.97
Diluted ....ovoerereenrreireneneeenir e seesarneraeens $ 879 § 490 § 3.83

2004 Compared With 2003. The 37% growth in revenues primarily resulted from a 24% increase in the
number of homes closed to 13,876, as well as an increase of $29,100 in our average home selling price.

Income before income taxes increased 83% in 2004. The increase primarily was due to an 83% increase in
homebuilding segment operating profit, partially offset by a 35% decrease in financial services segment operating
profit. The homebuilding segment profit increase principally was the result of the increases in home closings and
average selling prices described above and a 360 basis point increase in Home Gross Margins. The financial services
segment profit decrease primarily was due to a 21% decrease in gains on sales of mortgage loans and a 19% increase in
general and administrative expenses resulting from HomeAmerican's expanded loan origination activity. The
improvement in homebuilding operating profits more than offset a 36% increase in total corporate expenses.

2003 Compared With 2002. The 26% increase in revenues primarily resulted from a 26% increase in the
number of homes closed to 11,211.

Income before income taxes increased 27% in 2003. The increase primarily was due to a 33% increase in
homebuilding segment operating profit and a 17% increase in financial services segment operating profit. The
homebuilding segment profit increase principally was the result of the home closing increases described above and a
110 basis point increase in Home Gross Margins. The financial services segment profit increase primarily was due to a
46% increase in gains on sales of mortgage loans and a 19% increase in loan origination fees, partially offset by higher
general and administrative expenses resulting from HomeAmerican's expanded loan origination activity. These
improvements in homebuilding and financial services operating profits more than offset a 40% increase in corporate
general and administrative expenses and a $9.3 million charge for expenses related to the redemption of our
$175 million 8%% senior notes due 2008.




Homebuilding Activities - 2004 Compared With 2003 (dollars in thousands).

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Increase (Decrease)}
2004 2003 Amount %
Home Sales Revenues.........cocoveimneviinninecenns $3,932,013 $2,851,328 $ 1,080,685 38%
Operating Profits ........ccccocvvirneerieccrenrerereroveneenes $ 719,197 $ 393,879 § 325318 83%
Average Selling Price Per Home Closed............ $ 2834 8 2543 § 29.1 11%
Home Gross Margins .........c..cccecevvveveirnereneerenne 27.7% 24.1% 3.6% 15%
Orders For Homes, Net (Urits)
ATIZONA....cccotrriracnccernrenenesisesesisseseresenesaens 4,066 3,229 837 26%
California .......oveveeeercvecncnernrcceeerenenenes 2,034 2,116 (82) 4%
Colorado....ccommnirerneecerirenrie s sinreereneseseeseaenes 2,276 2,433 (157 -6%
Florida....cccccveneeerceccecnnee e 446 58 388 669%
THHNOIS ..eecececrireieieeee e 20 -- 20 N/A
Maryland......o.ocoeeceeincrceecceeeee 341 372 3D -8%
NeVaAdA .vrererieirecniteree et seons 2,596 2,595 1 0%
Philadelphia/Delaware Valley...........cocuenen. 23 -- 23 N/A
TEXAS 1.veeeeeereiriereeee s 807 289 518 179%
Utah. oo seeese s 753 378 375 99%
VILZINIA «..covveereenererirererssirsiseesiseesssesescons 886 1.160 (274) -24%
TOtal..oorieenreerecre et ostcnrenene 14,248 12,630 1,618 13%
Homes Closed (Units)
ATIZONA.cuvievieeeiriereei et rre et ase e 3,256 2,972 284 10%
California ....o.occvereeerererinrire e 2,346 1,919 427 22%
ColOrado ....cuvvercerereenerrreee e 2,318 2,656 (338) -13%
FIOmida..ccc e 452 93 359 386%
THHDNOIS oo centsrne e eveereseseesaneneens 2 -- 2 N/A
Maryland .........ccevrmerimerercrcninneesene s 385 291 94 32%
NEVAQA ...cvreerrrreisireneiseesinrsbresesnenesenes 2,736 2,059 677 33%
TEXAS 1.t 694 162 532 328%
Utah ..t 615 271 338 122%
VILINIA cocveerereerereris e bescneenesbsensonannnce 1.072 782 290 37%
TOtal.v ettt 13,876 11211 2,665 24%
Backlog (Units)
ATIZONA....vcererererererescenrsstiesen e seassns 2,143 1,333 810 61%
California .........ccceveevnerceneeeereneecenisesennrens 807 1,119 312) -28%
Colorado....c.coemrererrirecreresrrniier e 692 734 (42) -6%
FIOTida ....covrverreccniricenereninsire e 638 104 534 513%
THANOIS .eovveeererereerere e crreerornaneresessenees 18 -- 18 N/A
Maryland.........ccovvomeceniecenon e neeeiisenees 225 269 (44) -16%
Nevada ..c.coureeneccnirinrencietneccteeeene 746 886 (140) -16%
Philadelphia/Delaware Valley...........cccen... 23 -- 23 N/A
TEXAS cuveeeeeeereerereeineerese s bt et ssene 256 143 113 79%
Utah oot 289 151 138 91%
VILGINHA c.evvirerereserirrnsesieaeeressosesenserenees 668 854 (186) -22%
TOtaL...coerecrrereeeeerereeneer et nneveees 6,505 5,593 912 16%
Backlog Estimated Sales Value...........cocouvmenenee $1.920,000 $1,600,000 $ 320,000 20%
Estimated Average Sales Price in Backlog ........ $ 2952 3 2861 § 9.1 3%
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Year Ended December 31, 2004 Increase (Decrease)

Active Subdivisions 2004 2003 Amount —%
ASIZODA.c.cviviieerireeiriierenisresetsce s enenanees 32 38 (6) -16%
California .........cceereevereeveeerernnrrerercressessresnnes 22 26 4) -15%
Colorado.......ccoecmrnrenrenreiierie e 53 49 4 8%
| 33 0) o7 £ USROS 18 9 9 100%
THHOOIS cveeecererecree e ccmre e e ae s 1 -- 1 N/A
Maryland .........coveveviveinnicenenece e 11 9 2 22%
NEVAQR .....covverrirerrirrrreccierrre s erreeeerenesenne 31 17 14 82%
Philadelphia/Delaware Valley...................... 2 -- 2 N/A
TEXAS ..cvveeverrererierareearerereresrsnsarsearotasesasessens 24 11 13 118%
L6571, SO OSSOSO OO PR 22 11 11 100%
VILINIA «.evvvererecrreneneieinrreseniesnaesresecsnasens 26 28 {2) 7%

TOtal oottt 242 198 44 22%

Home Sales Revenues and Homes Closed. Home sales revenues in 2004 increased 38% over 2003. The
improvement resulted from a 24% increase in home closings, as well as an increase of $29,100 in our average home
selling price.

Our home closings were higher in 2004, compared with 2003, in all of our markets except Colorado. Home
closings particularly were strong in Nevada, Arizona, California and Virginia, primarily due to the strong demand for
new homes in these markets which resulted in a higher Backlog of homes to begin the year, as compared with the start of
the prior year. In addition, our recently entered markets in Utah, Texas, Florida and Illinois contributed an increase of
1,231 home closings in 2004. We closed fewer homes in 2004, compared with 2003, in Colorado, primarily due to
lower home orders resulting from fewer average active subdivisions in this market.

Average Selling Price Per Home Closed. The average selling price per home closed increased by $29,100 to
$283,400 in 2004, compared with $254,300 in 2003, The increase is partially attributable to closing a greater number of
homes in California and Virginia, where average home selling prices are significantly above the Company average. We
also closed significantly more homes in Nevada, where our average selling price increased $60,900, or 33%, over 2003.
These increases partially were offset by the impact of higher home closings in Arizona, Utah, Texas and Florida, where
average selling prices were more than $90,000 lower than the Company average. The following table displays our
average selling price per home closed by market for the years indicated below (in thousands).

Year Ended December 31

2004 2003
ATIZONA. o..cveverereeerereeieteteiesesesseteesessnssessnnns $ 1927  $ 184.3
California .....covveveveenrerirereererseneeeseesereeesessneens 459.5 390.0
Colorado ....cccvevverirereeeercvce s e 2653 2542
Florida......ccooeeeeveeeereseeinrecrecnesensnesennnsnenns 180.6 168.3
TIHOOIS vveevreeneereisineeriiesieneereesreresernesvessesenrasenns 496.9 N/A
Maryland.........ccoovvrincenvinierrveneenennreeeriereneens 419.6 388.2
NEVAAA ..ccveeerrerreeereieeniereteeee e sseereeesrsneesses 247.2 186.3
TEXAS..cvviicrererireiereaeriecesrerrrereiasseseesansseneasnnenane 157.7 1614
L0171+ SO OO RO PO PO SPPPUUR R 184.7 174.5
VIFZINIA .ceeeivieieiiecrteenies et 436.8 375.1
Company AVETAZE .....ccoureverermrererneecenns § 2834 § 2543

Home Gross Margins. We define "Home Gross Margins" to mean home sales revenues less cost of goods sold
(which primarily includes land and construction costs, capitalized interest, a reserve for warranty expense and financing
and closing costs) as a percent of home sales revenues. Home Gross Margins were 27.7% for the year ended
December 31, 2004, compared with 24.1% in 2003. The increase in our Home Gross Margins primarily was due to
strong demand for homes and increased selling prices in many of our markets, particularly in Nevada, California and
Virginia. In addition, we closed 33% more homes in Nevada, where we realized significantly higher Home Gross
Margins than the Company average. These Home Gross Margin increases partially were offset by the impact of a greater
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number of homes closed in Florida, Utah and Texas in 2004, where Home Gross Margins were lower than the Company
average. We were able to minimize the impact of labor and material cost increases by leveraging our national
purchasing power, thus limiting the impact on Home Gross Margins across the Company.

Future Home Gross Margins may be impacted by, among other things: (1) increased competition, which could
affect our ability to raise home prices and maintain lower levels of incentives; (2) increases in the costs of subcontracted
labor, finished lots, building materials (for example, lumber and steel have significantly increased year-over-year), and
other resources, to the extent that market conditions prevent the recovery of increased costs through higher selling
prices; (3) adverse weather; (4) shortages of subcontractor labor, finished lots and other resources, which can result in
delays in the delivery of homes under construction and increases in related cost of sales; (5) the impact of changes in
demand for housing in Nevada, California and Arizona; and (6) other general risk factors. See "Forward-Looking
Statements" below.

Orders for Homes and Backlog. Home orders during 2004 particularly were strong in Arizona, despite having
fewer actively selling communities than a year ago, aided by the continued strong demand for new homes in this market.
Also, we received a combined increase of 1,324 home orders in 2004 from our new markets in Utah, Texas, Florida,
Illinois and Philadelphia/Delaware Valley. Colorado home orders were lower for 2004, compared with 2003, primarily
resulting from a reduction in the number of our active Colorado subdivisions. In addition, we intentionally slowed the
pace of new home orders over the last year in Virginia, one of the country’s strongest markets for new homes, to allow
construction activities to catch-up with our Backlog of homes sold but not yet started in this market.

The 13% increase in orders for 2004 compared with 2003 was impacted by the extraordinary levels of demand
experienced in Nevada and California during the first half of 2004. During the second half of 2004, we saw our overall
level of net home orders decline to a level comparable to the same period in 2003. This decline was driven by Nevada
and California, primarily due to a reduction in the number of net home orders per active community. Higher home order
cancellations during the second half of 2004, compared with the same period in 2003, in both of these markets also
contributed to the reduced number of net home orders. In addition, the net home orders received in California during the
2004 fourth quarter were impacted by a temporary reduction in the number of active communities, due in part to a
higher than anticipated sales pace resulting from the exceptional demand for new homes in the state through the first half
of 2004. Notwithstanding these changes in California and Nevada, we generally maintained the significant price
increases realized in these markets earlier in the year.

We believe that both California and Nevada provide favorable environments for continued strength in the
demand for new homes for the foreseeable future, particularly in our locations and price points, and we have allocated
significant capital for growth in these markets in 2005. As a result, we expect to have approximately twice as many
active communities in Nevada by the end of the 2005 first quarter as we had a year earlier. Additionally, in California,
we plan to add as many as ten active communities during the first quarter of 2005. Assuming no material changes in
market conditions and anticipation of continued increases in active communities in most of our markets in 2005, we
believe that our home order comparisons will improve as the 2005 year progresses beyond the first quarter. See
"Forward-Looking Statements" below.

Homes under contract but not yet delivered ("Backlog") at December 31, 2004 increased 16% to 6,505 homes
with an estimated sales value of $1.92 billion, compared with the Backlog of 5,593 homes with an estimated sales value
of $1.60 billion at December 31, 2003. Assuming no significant change in market conditions or mortgage interest rates,
we expect approximately 70% to 75% of our Backlog to close under existing sales contracts during the first nine months
of 2005. The remaining 25% to 30% of the homes in Backlog are not expected to close under existing contracts due to
cancellations. See "Forward-Looking Statements” below.

Marketing. Marketing expenses (which include sales commissions, advertising, amortization of deferred
marketing costs, model home expenses and other costs) totaled $198.5 million in 2004, compared with $162.1 million in
2003. The increase in 2004 primarily was due to increases of (1) $24.5 million in sales commissions resulting from our
increased home sales revenues; (2) $7.7 million in product advertising and deferred marketing amortization in
connection with the increased number of active subdivisions and greater number of home closings in 2004; and
(3) $3.7 million in salaries and benefits attributable to our expanding homebuilding operations in new and existing
markets.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses totaled $181.6 million in 2004, compared
with $138.5 million in 2003. The increase in 2004 primarily was due to increased compensation and other employee
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benefit costs associated with the expanded operations in many of our markets, most notably California, Colorado,
Nevada and Virginia, and in our new markets in Utah, Texas, Florida, Philadelphia/Delaware Valley and Hlinois.

Homebuilding Activities - 2003 Compared With 2002 (dollars in thousands).

Year Ended December 31 2003 Increase (Decrease)

2003 2002 Amount %
Home Sales Revenues ............ccoeverevveesensrennnes $2,851,328 $2,260,291 § 591,037 26%
Operating Profits ......c.cocovvimmnnnirrrennnniarescinsnnrens $ 393879 § 295,604 § 98,275 33%
Average Selling Price Per Home Closed............. $ 2543 § 2540 % 03 0%
Home Gross Margins........cocceveveeerenecrverereercrenene 24.1% 23.0% 1.1% 5%
Orders For Homes, Net (Units)
ATIZONA....ccrrirerireieeiinereaereesessiensneseresssesesnes 3,229 2,669 560 21%
California...........ccoeerereereerenersenrernesrerenesenenes 2,116 2,086 30 1%
Colorado.....c..ceeeriiiinccee e s 2,433 2,681 (248) -9%
FIorida ...coeinieieeeieeitcicne e ssenns 58 -- 58 N/A
Maryland .......c.ocoemeveevmeenniiiienineeni 372 277 95 34%
Nevada ..c.covervierieineeiecieresersresesse s sennens 2,595 1,260 1,335 106%
TEXAS ..eererreriererecenrerreinee sttt 289 17 272 N/A
L0171 ¢ OO OO RS URURUUUPPPIORN 378 111 267 241%
VALGINIA c.vvvoreerinirerennieeseerereressiasenseresersons 1,160 798 362 45%
TOtaAl.oecrcreeecr e 12,630 9,899 2,731 28%
Homes Closed (Units)
AZONA......occieeeerecreecre e 2,972 2,218 754 34%
Californi@........cceveerineennsrernierinnrninreesienens 1,919 1,654 265 16%
Colorado.....cvveveeereenneeessesaesseeeninsssenes 2,656 2,919 (263) -9%
FLOrida ....ccvoiieeeee et 93 -- 93 N/A
Maryland ..........ccovveercnrec e 291 246 45 18%
Nevada ....coovvvircoverienininricenierree e 2,059 1,204 855 71%
TEXAS 1evveereineruereeneerensriorerseorenssessassessesesssones 162 1 161 N/A
UtAh .ot er e ne st eaes 277 102 175 172%
VATGINIA covovvevveeoeeecvessseseeceeresesesssessessnns 782 556 226 41%
Total...ooiecirre e 11,211 8,900 2,311 26%
December 31, 2003 Increase (Decrease)
Backlog (Units) 2003 2002 Amount %
ATIZONB...erviirveererieerreierereaeesseserasssetasessesenns 1,333 1,076 257 24%
Californi@. .......ccovveereriieenerieriesiereiereeerenns 1,119 922 197 21%
Colorado...uuereierere et 734 957 (223) -23%
FIorida ....coooonueeicerinnierenrinieerneeeinnvesnsesesnnes 104 -- 104 N/A
Maryland ........c.ocoveerevneceseneceeeeenee e 269 188 81 43%
NeVada ..ovovviieiiie ettt ens 886 350 536 153%
TEXAS covevvenreiererrrnrenseesessesisseenasessanssasenane 143 16 127 794%
UtaR ..ottt e roes 151 50 101 202%
VITZINIA coveverrereerenecenenenee e 854 476 378 79%
TOtAL .viiereiecre e 5,593 4,035 1,558 39%
Backlog Estimated Sales Value..........cc.occveneune. $1.600,000 $1,120,000 § 480,000 43%
Estimated Average Sales Price in Backlog......... $ 2860 $ 2780 § 8.0 3%
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Year Ended December 31, 2003 Increase (Decrease)

Active Subdivisions 2003 2002 Amount ./ S
PN 5720} V. SRR 38 44 (6) -14%
California.........ccccoivivveenimncrenree e resrerns 26 24 2 8%
Colorado.......ccoevevereiririeeiente s 49 61 (12) -20%
Florida.......ooovvemreeiceieiireeiececeescenns 9 -- 9 N/A
Maryland .......c.ccoovvceeeeeviireeecrne 9 6 3 50%
NEVAdA ....ovveieriereerensneereree e e 17 18 ) -6%
TeXAS .oeecvrririeeeiee et eare e 11 1 10 N/A
L 871 SO U 11 4 . 7 175%
Virginia .....oocceveeriieciciece e 28 20 8 40%

B o1 7 | SOV 198 178 20 11%

Home Sales Revenues and Homes Closed. Home sales revenues in 2003 increased 26% compared with 2002.
The increase resulted from home closings which reached 11,211 for 2003, 26% higher than 2002.

Our home closings were higher in 2003, compared with 2002, in all of our markets except Colorado. Home
closings particularly were strong in Nevada and Arizona, primarily due to the strong demand for new homes in these
markets. In addition, the newly entered markets in Utah, Texas and Florida contributed an increase of 429 home closings
in 2003. We closed fewer homes in 2003, compared with 2002, in Colorado, primarily due to lower home orders in this
market, resulting from fewer active subdivisions and the more challenging economic conditions experienced in this
market.

Average Selling Price Per Home Closed. The average selling price per home closed remained relatively
consistent at $254,300 in 2003, compared with $254,000 in 2002. Average selling prices increased in Maryland,
Virginia and Arizona, primarily resulting from the ability to increase sales prices due to the strong demand for new
homes in these markets throughout 2003. Also, a greater number of homes were closed in relatively higher-priced
subdivisions in the above noted markets, as well as in Colorado and Utah. These increases partially were offset by the
impact of increased home closings in Nevada, Utah, Texas and Florida, where selling prices are lower than the
Company average. The following table displays our average selling price per home closed by market for the years
indicated below (in thousands).

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002
ATIZONA..uovcicreceesres et erire et s esesnssssnenns $ 184.3 $ 167.0
California .......ccoevverevcerirrrenrereereereee e esenees 390.0 3904
ColOrado .....covevueiveiceee e 254.2 250.5
Florida......ccoveeeeiieeerreceereeeee et 168.3 N/A
Maryland.......ccooeevveiiieeee e 388.2 345.2
Nevada.....coccvvieineriiieecennensseireeee e snesneens 186.3 188.8
TEXAS e ceiee e e ccarceeres b e enr e anes 1614 176.8
ULAN. ettt ee s ease s enaes 174.5 166.0
VITZINIA .ovreveneciererienenenenrraraorens ereereneeere e 375.1 3303
Company AVETage .......c.ccceeevecrerverenes 2543 254.0

Home Gross Margins. Home Gross Margins were 24.1% for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared
with 23.0% in 2002. The increase in Home Gross Margins primarily was attributable to increased demand and higher
home selling prices in many of our markets, as well as the impact of corporate initiatives directed at reducing
construction costs. Additionally, insurance recoveries relating to warranty expenses incurred in prior periods for water
intrusion issues in Colorado and reductions in previous estimates to complete land development and construction in
certain markets contributed to this increase. These Home Gross Margin increases partially were offset by the impact of
higher incentives in Colorado, as well as a greater number of homes closed in 2003 in Florida, Utah and Texas, where
Home Gross Margins were lower than the Company average.

Orders for Homes and Backlog. Home orders during 2003 particularly were strong in Nevada and Arizona,
aided by the continued strong demand for new homes in these markets. Also, we received a combined 725 home orders
in 2003 from our new markets in Utah, Texas and Florida. Colorado home orders were lower for 2003, compared with
2002, primarily resulting from the reduced number of active subdivisions and the challenging economic environment
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discussed above. We received net orders for 2,690 homes during the fourth quarter of 2003, 39% higher than net orders
for 1,931 homes for the same period in 2002.

Record home orders received during 2003 contributed to the 39% increase in Backlog at December 31, 2003
to 5,593 homes with an estimated sales value of $1.60 billion, compared with the Backlog of 4,035 homes with an
estimated sales value of $1.12 billion at December 31, 2002.

Marketing. Marketing expenses totaled $162.1 million in 2003, compared with $125.1 million in 2002. The
increase in 2003 primarily was due to (1) increased sales commissions resulting from our increased home sales
revenues; (2) higher product advertising and deferred marketing amortization in connection with the increased number
of active subdivisions and greater number of home closings in 2003; (3) increased sales overhead resulting from our
expanding home sales activities; and (4) higher salaries and benefits attributable to our expanding homebuilding
operations in new and existing markets.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses totaled $138.5 million in 2003, compared
with $105.5 million in 2002. The increase in 2003 primarily was due to increased compensation and other
administrative costs associated with the expanded operations in many of our markets, most notably Arizona, Nevada,
California and Virginia, and in our new markets of Utah, Texas, Florida, Philadelphia/Delaware Valley and Illinois.

Title Operations.

American Home Title provides title agency services to our homebuyers in Virginia, Maryland, Colorado,
Florida, Texas and Delaware. AHT Reinsurance, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MDC, reinsures existing title
insurance policies issued to our homebuyers in California, Nevada and Utah. We are evaluating opportunities to
provide title agency services in our other markets. Income before income taxes from title operations totaled $5.0
million, $3.1 million and $2.4 million, respectively, in 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Land Sales.

Revenue from land sales totaled $8.9 million, $1.3 million and $6.0 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The land sales in 2004 primarily were in Florida, Texas and Colorado. The land sales in 2003 were in
Virginia, Utah and Northern California. Land sales in 2002 primarily were in Colorado and Utah. Gross profits from
these sales were $0.1 million, $0.5 million and $1.4 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Asset Impairment Charges.
No homebuilding asset impairment charges were recorded by the Company in 2004, 2003 or 2002.
New Homebuilding Operations.

In September 2003, we expanded our operations in the Florida homebuilding market by one of our
subsidiaries acquiring certain assets of Crawford Homes, Inc. in Jacksonville, Florida and hiring approximately 40 of
its former employees. The assets acquired included approximately 550 lots and 165 homes under construction in 15
subdivisions. In September 2004, this same subsidiary acquired certain assets of Watson Home Builders, Inc. in
Jacksonville and hired approximately 55 of its former employees. The assets acquired included control of
approximately 2,000 lots and 330 homes under construction in 18 subdivisions. At December 31, 2004, we controlled
more than 2,500 lots in this market. During 2004, this subsidiary received 446 home orders and closed 452 homes in
Jacksonville.

We expanded into the Houston and Philadelphia/Delaware Valley markets in the 2003 second quarter and into
the West Florida and Chicago markets in the third quarter of 2003. Each of these expansion efforts was initiated by
hiring a division president to manage start-up operations. In September 2004, we expanded our Philadelphia/Delaware
Valley operations by acquiring control of approximately 600 residential lots from Patriot Homes, LLC, and others, in
southern New Jersey. As of December 31, 2004, we controlled 4,174 lots in all of these markets.

In January 2005, we expanded our California operations by acquiring control of approximately 1,200 finished
residential lots in the Central Valley of California from Del Valle Homes.
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Financial Services Activities - 2004 Compared With 2003.

The table below sets forth selected financial data relating to our financial services operations (dollars in
thousands).

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Increase (Decrease)
2004 2003 Amount %

Mortgage loan origination fees............cconvernicrnvennens $ 24728 § 22245 § 2,483 11%
Gains on sales of mortgage servicing, net..................... $ 2093 $§ 1972 § 121 6%
Gains on sales of mortgage loans, net..........ccocecevvuvenen. $ 22657 $ 28,622 $ (5963) 21%
Operating Profit.........ccccooeerieceevnvenicncecnnareenresesssesenees $ 18483 § 28277 § (9,799 -35%
Principal amount of loans originated.............coceeurrirennne $1,652,206 $1,478334 § 173,872 12%
Principal amount of loans brokered.........c.ocovruvrnnnene $ 749,440 § 418,999 § 330,441 79%
CapLUre RA1E......c.oovvevivineerreeererirenereseeenaisreeeesessansens 53% 63% -10%

Including brokered 10ans .........cocoocvveeevecciiccnnenencnne 74% 79% -5%

The decline in operating profit in 2004 primarily was due to a reduction in gains on sales of mortgage loans,
as well as higher general and administrative expenses incurred to handle the higher volume of mortgage loan closings
and the record backlog level of the homebuilding segment. The decline was driven by a more competitive mortgage
pricing environment during 2004, the impact of originating a greater number of less-valuable adjustable rate mortgage
loans and brokering to third party mortgage companies a higher percentage of total loans processed in 2004.

The principal amount of originated and brokered loans increased 12% and 79%, respectively, in 2004
compared with 2003. These improvements primarily were due to the increases in homes closed by the homebuilding
segment. Our homebuyers were the source of approximately 99% of the principal amount of mortgage loans originated
and brokered by HomeAmerican in 2004. The number of mortgage loans originated by HomeAmerican for our
homebuyers as a percentage of total MDC home closings is defined as our Capture Rate. The declines in the Capture
Rate primarily, resulted from HomeAmerican brokering out a higher percentage of mortgage loans to outside lending
institutions for our homebuyers due to the competitive environment for mortgage loans that resulted from the
significant decline in refinancing activity in the marketplace over the last year. Brokered loans, for which
HomeAmerican receives a fee, have been excluded from the computation of the Capture Rate.

Forward Sales Commitments. HomeAmerican's operations are affected by changes in mortgage interest rates.
HomeAmerican utilizes forward mortgage securities contracts to manage price risk related to fluctuations in interest
rates on our fixed-rate mortgage loans held in inventory and rate-locked mortgage loans in process that had not closed.
Reported gains on sales of mortgage loans may vary significantly from period to period depending on the volatility in
the interest rate market.

Insurance Operations. American Home Insurance provides third party homeowners, auto and other types of
casualty insurance to our homebuyers. The results of our insurance operations were not material for any of the periods
presented.

Financial Services Activities - 2003 Compared With 2002.

The table below sets forth selected financial data relating to our financial services operations (dollars in thousands).

—Year Ended December 31, 2003 Increase (Decrease

2003 2002 ~Amount = _%

Mortgage loan origination fees...........cccvvreervicrrrerrenenes $ 22245 § 18,771 % 3474 19%

Gains on sales of mortgage servicing, net.........cc.coveeene. $ 1972 % 1,773 § 199 11%

Gains on sales of mortgage loans, net............ccoeeuverueenn. $ 28622 $§ 19,587 § 9,035 46%

Operatinng Profit.......ccocereeiiererinnreiesssnnnnnsinerenssererens $ 28277 §& 24,194 $ 4,083 17%

Principal amount of loan originations........c...ccreeeeevenens $1,478,334  $1,322,237 § 156,097 12%

Principal amount of loans brokered...........c.cccoveveceeennn, $ 418999 § 221,090 § 197,909 90%
Capture Rate........cocovvvivreveeiiiicnnii e 63% 1% -8%
Including brokered loans ...........cccoveceveeccrennncnnenen, 79% 81% -2%
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The increase in operating profit primarily was due to higher gains on sales of mortgage loans, as well as
higher origination fees received from record levels of mortgage loans originated and brokered for our homebuyers.
Revenues from mortgage loan origination fees in 2003, driven by the record home closings from the homebuilding
segment, partially were offset by higher general and administrative expenses incurred to handle the higher volume of
mortgage loans. Our homebuyers were the source of approximately 99% of the principal amount of the mortgage loans
originated and brokered by HomeAmerican in 2003.

Mortgage loans originated by HomeAmerican for our homebuyers as a percentage of total MDC home closings
was 63% for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared with 71% for the same period in 2002. This decline in the
Capture Rate primarily resulted from HomeAmerican brokering out a higher percentage of mortgage loans to outside
lending institutions for our homebuyers due to the competitive pricing environment for mortgage loans that resulted
from a significant decline in refinancing activity in the marketplace toward the end of 2003.

Other Operating Results.

Interest Expense. We capitalize interest on our homebuilding inventories during the period of active
development and through the completion of construction. Corporate and homebuilding interest incurred but not
capitalized is reflected as interest expense. All corporate and homebuilding interest incurred in 2004, 2003 and 2002
was capitalized. Interest incurred by the financial services segment is charged to interest expense, which is deducted
from interest income and reported as net interest income in Note B to our consolidated financial statements. Corporate
and homebuilding interest incurred increased to $32.9 million in 2004, compared with $26.8 million in 2003 and
$21.1 million in 2002. The increase in 2004 compared with 2003 primarily was due to an increase in the average debt
balance, which was used to fund our long-term growth. For a reconciliation of interest incurred, capitalized and
expensed, see Note I to our consolidated financial statements.

Expenses Related to Debt Redemption. In May 2003, we redeemed $175.0 million principal amount of our
8%% senior notes due February 2008 ("8%% Senior Notes"). The 8%% Senior Notes were redeemed at 104.188% of
their principal amount, or $182.3 million, plus accrued and unpaid interest through the date of redemption. Expenses for
2003 related to this debt redemption of $9.3 million include the above redemption premium of $7.3 million and the
related unamortized discount and debt issuance costs of $2.0 million. In compliance with the Financial Accounting
Standards Board ("FASB") Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 145, the expenses related to this
debt redemption are no longer treated as an extraordinary loss.

Corporate General and Administrative Expenses. Corporate general and administrative expenses totaled
$101.6 million for 2004, compared with $65.4 million and $46.7 million, respectively, for 2003 and 2002. The increase
in 2004 primarily was due to greater compensation-related costs principally resulting from our higher profitability and
expansion in all of our new and existing markets. Additionally, we contributed $6.3 million in the form of MDC
common stock to the M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. Charitable Foundation (the "Foundation") in 2004, compared with $4.0
million in 2003 and no contributions in 2002.

The Foundation is a nonprofit organization operated exclusively for charitable, educational and other purposes
beneficial to social welfare within the meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Certain directors and
officers of the Company are the trustees and officers of the Foundation. The Foundation takes action with respect to
shares held by it, including the voting of such shares, by majority vote of the five member board of trustees and,
accordingly, none of the trustees should be considered to beneficially own such shares.

Income Taxes. Our overall effective income tax rate of 38.6% for 2004, and 39.0% for both 2003 and 2002,
differed from the federal statutory rate of 35% primarily due to the impact of state income taxes.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We use our liquidity and capital resources to (1) support our operations, including our homebuilding
inventories; (2) provide working capital; and (3) provide mortgage loans for our homebuyers. Liquidity and capital
resources are generated internally from operations and from external sources. During the 2004 third quarter, we filed a
registration statement, which has been declared effective, increasing our capacity to issue equity, debt or hybrid
securities to $1 billion from $550 million. In December 2004, we issued $250 million principal amount of
5%% medium-term senior notes, thereby reducing our capacity to issue equity, debt or hybrid securities to $750 million.
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Capital Resources.

Our capital structure is a combination of (1) permanent financing, represented by stockholders' equity; (2) long-
term financing, represented by our publicly traded 7% senior notes due 2012 (the "7% Senior Notes"), 5%2% senior
notes due 2013 (the "5%:% Senior Notes"), 5%% medium-term senior notes due 2014 (the "5%% Medium-Term Senior
Notes") and our homebuilding line of credit (the "Homebuilding Line"); and (3) current financing, primarily our
mortgage lending line of credit (the "Mortgage Line"). Based upon our current capital resources and additional capacity
available under existing credit agreements, we believe that our current financial condition is both balanced to fit our
current operating structure and adequate to satisfy our current and near-term capital requirements, including the
acquisition of land and expansion into new markets. We believe that we can meet our long-term capital needs
(including meeting future debt payments and refinancing or paying off other long-term debt as it becomes due) from
operations and external financing sources, assuming that no significant adverse changes in our business or capital and
credit markets occur as a result of the various risk factors described elsewhere in this report. See "Forward-Looking
Statements"” below.

Lines of Credit and Notes Payable.

Homebuilding. Our Homebuilding Line is an unsecured revolving line of credit with a group of lenders for
support of our homebuilding operations. During April 2004, we renewed the Homebuilding Line, increasing the
aggregate commitment amount to $700 million and extending the maturity date to April 7, 2009. In addition, the
facility’s provision for letters of credit was increased to an available aggregate amount of $350 million. At
December 31, 2004, the facility permitted an increase in the maximum commitment amount to $850 million upon our
request, subject to receipt of additional commitments from existing or additional participant lenders. In January 2005,
the facility was increased to $1.058 billion, with the ability to increase the maximum commitment amount to
$1.25 billion with lender approval. At December 31, 2004, there were no borrowings outstanding and $67.0 million in
letters of credit had been issued under the Homebuilding Line. We could have borrowed funds at interest rates ranging
from 2.5% to 5.25%.

Mortgage Lending. Our Mortgage Line has a borrowing limit of $175 million with terms that allow for
increases of up to $50 million in the borrowing limit to a maximum of $225 million, subject to concurrence by the
participating banks. The terms of the Mortgage Line are set forth in the Third Amended and Restated Warehousing
Credit Agreement dated as of October 23, 2003, as amended by the First Amendment dated as of February 27, 2004 and
the Second Amendment dated as of September 28,2004. Available borrowings under the Mortgage Line are
collateralized by mortgage loans and mortgage-backed certificates and are limited to the value of eligible collateral as
defined. At December 31, 2004, $135.5 million was borrowed and an additional $23.9 million was collateralized and
available to be borrowed. The Mortgage Line is cancelable upon 120 days notice. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the
interest rates on our Mortgage Line were 3.4% and 2.3%, respectively.

General. The agreements for our bank lines of credit and the indentures for our senior notes require
compliance with certain representations, warranties and covenants. We believe that we are in compliance with these
representations, warranties and covenants, and we are not aware of any covenant violations, The agreements containing
these representations, warranties and covenants for the bank lines of credit and the indentures for our senior notes are on
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are listed in the Exhibit Table in Part IV of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

The financial covenants contained in the Homebuilding Line credit agreement include a leverage test and a
consolidated tangible net worth test. Under the leverage test, generally, our consolidated indebtedness is not permitted
to exceed 55% (subject to adjustment in certain circumstances) of the sum of consolidated indebtedness and our
"adjusted consolidated tangible net worth,” as defined. Under the consolidated tangible net worth test, our "adjusted
consolidated tangible net worth," as defined, must not be less than the sum of (1) $776,018,000; (2) 50% of
"consolidated net income,” as defined, of the "borrower," as defined, and the "guarantors,” as defined, after
December 31, 2003; and (3) 50% of the net proceeds or other consideration received for the issuance of capital stock
after December 31, 2003. Failure to satisfy the financial covenant tests could result in a scheduled term-out of the
facility. In addition, "consolidated tangible net worth," as defined, must not be less than the sum of (1) $485,011,000;
(2) 50% of the quarterly consolidated net income of "borrower" and the "guarantors" earned after December 31, 2003;
and (3) 50% of the net proceeds or other consideration received for the issuance of capital stock after
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December 31, 2003. Failure to satisfy this covenant could result in a termination of the facility. We believe that we are
in full compliance with these covenants and are not aware of any covenant violations.

Our senior notes are not secured and the senior notes indentures do not contain financial covenants. Qur senior
notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on an unsecured basis, jointly and severally, by most of our homebuilding
segment subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2004, the maximum amount of additional homebuilding and corporate indebtedness that
we could have incurred under the most restrictive of the debt limitations described above was approximately
$900 million.

MDC Common Stock Repurchase Program.

In January 2003, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to an additional 495,120 shares of
MDC common stock, bringing the total authorization under our stock repurchase program to 5,654,000 shares. We
repurchased 155,000 shares of MDC common stock in 2004, adjusted for the 1.3 for 1 stock split on January 10, 2005,
bringing the total shares repurchased to 3,509,000 and leaving 2,145,000 shares available to be repurchased as of
December 31, 2004 under this program. The per share prices, including commissions, for the 155,000 shares
repurchased ranged from $43.17 to $44.42, with an average cost of $43.96, adjusted for the stock split. At
December 31, 2004 and 2003, we held 31,000 and 4,007,000 shares of treasury stock with average purchase prices of
$43.97 and $12.56 per share, respectively, adjusted for the stock split.

Consolidated Cash Flow.

During 2004, we used cash of $23.9 million for our operating activities. The 2004 operating cash use primarily
was the result of a $38.9 million increase in our mortgage loans held in inventory and a $527.1 million increase in our
homebuilding inventories and other assets in conjunction with our expanded homebuilding operations, partially offset by
income before deferred taxes, depreciation and amortization of $424.2 million and an increase in accounts payable and
other accrued expenses of $135.1 million. We continued to expand our homebuilding operations in new markets to
complement our expansion in existing markets through increased active subdivisions and controlled lot inventory,
thereby expending cash to acquire additional homebuilding assets.

Financing activities generated cash of $288.4 million in 2004, primarily due to the issuance of $250 million
principal amount of 5%% Senior Notes and the net advancement on our lines of credit of $56.2 million. Additionally, we
repurchased 155,000 shares of MDC common stock for $6.8 million, paid dividends of $18.6 million and received
$11.0 million in proceeds from the exercise of stock options.

We used $29.9 million in investing activities during 2004. These cash outlays primarily related to purchases of
property and equipment, including a corporate aircraft, computer equipment and office furniture.

During 2003, we generated cash of $83.9 million from our operating activities. The 2003 operating cash flow
primarily was generated by income before deferred taxes, depreciation and amortization and debt redemption expenses
of $251.1 million, an increase in accounts payable and other accrued expenses of $77.6 million and a decrease in
mortgage loans held in inventory of $67.9 million. These cash inflows partially were offset by increases in homebuilding
inventories and other assets of $310.3 million in conjunction with our expanded homebuilding operations.

Financing activities generated cash of $67.5 million in 2003. The 2003 cash provided by financing activities
primarily was due to the issuance of $350 million principal amount of 5/4% Senior Notes, partially offset by the
redemption of the $175 million 8%% Senior Notes, including a premium of $7.3 million on the redemption, and the net
repayment of our lines of credit of $74.8 million. Additionally, we repurchased 1,040,000 shares of MDC common
stock for $26.7 million, paid dividends of $11.8 million and received $17.0 million in proceeds from the exercise of
stock options.

During 2002, operating activities used cash of $166.4 million, primarily resulting from a significant increase in
homebuilding and mortgage lending inventories in conjunction with our expanded homebuilding operations. Financing
activities generated cash of $171.2 million in 2002, primarily due to the issuance of $150 million principal amount of
7% Senior Notes, as well as an increase in our Mortgage Line, partially offset by a use of $29.4 million in cash to
repurchase MDC common stock.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements.

At December 31, 2004, we had outstanding performance bonds of $306.8 million issued by third parties to
secure our performance under various contracts. We expect that the obligations secured by these performance bonds
generally will be performed in the ordinary course of business and in accordance with the applicable contractual terms.
To the extent that the obligations are performed, the related performance bonds will be released and we will not have
any continuing obligations.

In the normal course of business, MDC enters into lot option purchase contracts, generally through a deposit of
cash, for the right to purchase land or lots at a future point in time with predetermined terms. Our liability with respect to
option contracts generally is limited to forfeiture of the related non-refundable cash deposits and letters of credit, which
totaled approximately $41.8 million and $22.1 million, respectively, at December 31, 2004. At December 31, 2004, we
had the right to acquire 21,164 lots at an aggregate purchase price of approximately $1.1 billion. Under FASB’s
Interpretation No. 46 ("Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities") ("FIN 46"), certain of these contracts create a
variable interest, with the land seller being the variable interest entity ("VIE"). We have evaluated, based on the
provisions of FIN 46, all lot option purchase contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2004. In connection with this
evaluation, we requested financial information from these VIEs, assessed the market conditions where we have
contracted with these VIEs, and evaluated whether we retain the risk of loss from the VIE's activities or are entitled to
receive a majority of the VIE's residual returns or both. Based on this evaluation, MDC has determined that its interests
in these VIEs do not result in significant variable interests or require consolidation as our interests do not qualify it as
the primary beneficiary of residual returns or losses. '

‘We have made no material guarantees with respect to third-party obligations.
Contractual Obligations.

Our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2004 are as follows (in thousands).

Payments due by Period

Less than After
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 45 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt........ccooevervrrninnnas $ 746,310 § -- 3 -- 3 -- § 746,310
Interest on long-term debt................. 387,500 43,188 86,375 86,375 171,562
Operating 1eases.........ocoovvererirnnenas 47,339 12,522 19,955 14,176 686
Purchase obligations \1...................... 142,890 142.890 -- -- --
Total @ $1324039 § 198,600 § 106330 § 100,551 $ 918,558

(1) Our purchase obligations relate to open work orders and estimates for land to be developed and homes under construction for which
we have not received an invoice for work to be completed.
(2) The table above excludes $135.5 million of short-term indebtedness related to the Mortgage Line.

IMPACT OF INFLATION, CHANGING PRICES AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

Real estate and residential housing prices are affected by inflation, which can cause increases in the price of
land, raw materials and subcontracted labor. Unless these increased costs are recovered through higher sales prices,
Home Gross Margins would decrease. If interest rates increase, construction and financing costs, as well as the cost of
borrowings, also could increase, which can result in lower Home Gross Margins. Increases in home mortgage interest
rates make it more difficult for our customers to qualify for home mortgage loans, potentially decreasing home sales
revenue. Increases in interest rates also may affect adversely the volume of mortgage loan originations.

The volatility of interest rates could have an adverse effect on our future operations and liquidity. Reported
gains on sales of mortgage loans may vary significantly from period to period depending on the volatility in the interest
rate market. Derivative instruments utilized in the normal course of business by HomeAmerican include forward sales
securities commitments, private investor sales commitments and commitments to originate mortgage loans. We utilize these
commitments to manage the price risk on fluctuations in interest rates on our mortgage loans held in inventory and
commitments to originate mortgage loans. Such contracts are the only significant financial derivative instruments we
utilize.
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Among other things, an increase in interest rates may affect adversely the demand for housing and the
availability of mortgage financing and may reduce the credit facilities offered to us by banks, investment bankers and
mortgage bankers. See "Forward-Looking Statements" below.

Our business also is significantly affected by general economic conditions and, particularly, the demand for
new homes in the markets in which we build. The demand for new homes in Nevada reached unprecedented levels
during the last half of 2003 and the first six months of 2004. This extraordinary demand, which has diminished in recent
months, resulted in a substantial increase in new home sales and median home prices. Our average home selling price in
Nevada, along with our Home Gross Margins, also increased significantly in 2004, compared with 2003, without a
substantial change in product mix.

We have increased our market share in Nevada to become the third-largest homebuilder in that market, based
on sales of single family detached homes, according to The Meyers Group. As a result, we are well-positioned to
continue to take advantage of the demand for new homes in Nevada. Nevertheless, we have continued to follow our
disciplined strategy of controlling approximately a two-year supply of land in this market. Recently, we have
experienced a decline in the rate of home orders in Nevada, but market conditions generally have sustained the
significant home price increases realized earlier in 2004, and these conditions have continued to result in increased
prices in certain communities, albeit at a much slower rate. If demand for new homes in Nevada were to continue to
decline in the future, our financial results potentially could be impacted by the recent significant appreciation in land
costs, which could adversely affect our Home Gross Margins.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reporting period. Management bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience and on various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Management evaluates such estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis and makes adjustments as deemed necessary.
Actual results could differ from these estimates using different estimates and assumptions, or if conditions are
significantly different in the future. See "Forward-Looking Statements” below.

Listed below are those policies that we believe are critical and require the use of complex judgment in their
application. Our critical accounting policies are those related to (1) homebuilding inventory valuation; (2) estimates to
complete land development and home construction; (3) warranty costs; and (4) litigation reserves.

Homebuilding Inventory Valuation. Homebuilding inventories under development and construction are carried
at cost unless facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the underlying projects may be impaired, in
accordance with SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets." Impairment is
determined by comparing the estimated future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) from an individual
project to its carrying value. If such cash flows are less than the project’s carrying value, the carrying value of the
project is written down to its estimated fair value, less cost to sell. Homebuilding inventories held for sale are carried at
the lower of cost or fair value, less selling costs, and are evaluated on an individual asset basis. Fair value is determined
by management estimate and incorporates anticipated future revenues and costs. Due to uncertainties in the estimation
process, it is at least reasonably possible that actual results could differ from those estimates. We continue to evaluate
the carrying value of our inventory and, based on historical results, believe that our existing estimation process is
accurate and do not anticipate the process to materially change in the future.

Estimates to Complete Land Development and Home Construction. When home sales revenue is recognized
upon home closing, an estimate is made by the Company as to certain construction and land development costs incurred
but not yet paid at the time of closing. Estimated costs to complete a home are determined for each closed home based
upon historical data with respect to similar product types and geographical areas. We monitor the accuracy of each
monthly estimate by comparing actual costs incurred subsequent to closing to the estimate made at the time of closing.
We have made slight modifications to the estimates based on these comparisons and will continue to monitor actual
results in the future. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, we had accruals of $35.4 million and $37.0 million, respectively.
Historical estimates have been materially consistent with actual results. We do not expect the estimates to materially
change in the future, however actual results could differ from such estimates.
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Warranty Costs. The Company's homes are sold with limited warranties that generally provide for ten years of
structural coverage ("structural warranty”), two years of coverage for plumbing, electrical and heating, ventilation and
air conditioning systems, and one year of coverage for workmanship and materials ("general warranty"). Warranty
reserves are initially established as homes close on a per-unit basis in an amount estimated to be adequate to cover
expected costs of materials and outside labor during warranty periods. Reserves are determined based upon historical
experience with respect to similar product types and geographical areas. Certain factors are given consideration in
determining the per-house reserve amount, including (1) the historical range of amounts paid per house; (2) the
historical average amount paid per house; (3) any warranty expenditures included in (1) and (2) not considered to be
normal and recurring; (4) improvements in quality control and construction techniques expected to impact future
warranty expenditures; and (5) conditions that may affect certain projects and require higher per-house reserves for
those specific projects.

Warranty expenditures are tracked on a house-by-house basis and are charged against the warranty reserve
established for the house. Any expenditures incurred within 120 days of closing a home are recorded against the
estimate to complete land development and home construction accrual discussed above, unless it is clear that the
expenditure is a warranty claim. Expenditures incurred after 120 days of closing a home are considered warranty
expenditures. Additional reserves are established for known unusual warranty-related expenditures not covered by the
initial warranty reserves. If warranty expenditures for an individual house exceed the related reserve, then costs in
excess of the reserve are evaluated in the aggregate to determine if an adjustment to housing cost of sales should be
recorded.

Warranty reserves are reviewed quarterly, using historical data and other relevant information, to determine the
reasonableness and adequacy of both the reserve and the per unit reserve amount initially included in cost of sales.
Warranty reserves are included in corporate and homebuilding accounts payable and accrued expenses in the
consolidated balance sheets and totaled $64.4 million and $51.1 million, respectively, at December 31, 2004 and 2003.
Reserves carried over from prior years primarily are the result of the Company's volume of homes closed increasing by
over 200% in the last ten years, giving rise to continuing warranty reserves that exceed current expenditures. In addition,
the carryover reserve includes additional warranty reserves created pursuant to the qualified settlement fund. Due to
uncertainties in the estimation process, it is at least reasonably possible that actual results could differ from those
estimates. We continue to evaluate warranty reserves and, based on historical results, believe that our existing estimation
process is accurate and do not anticipate the process to materially change in the future.

Litigation Reserves. MDC and certain of our subsidiaries have been named as defendants in various cases
arising in the normal course of business. We have accrued for costs to be incurred with respect to these cases based
upon information provided by its legal counsel. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, we had accruals of $8.2 million and
$10.1 million, respectively. Historical estimates have been materially consistent with actual results. We do not expect
the estimates to materially change in the future, however due to uncertainties in the estimation process actual results
could differ from such estimates.

ISSUANCE OF STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment” ("SFAS
123(R)"), which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” ("SFAS 123"). SFAS
123(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and amends SFAS Statement No.
95, "Statement of Cash Flows". Generally, the approach in Statement 123(R) is similar to the approach described in
SFAS 123. However, SFAS 123(R) requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock
options, to be recognized in the income statement based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an
alternative.

SFAS 123(R) must be adopted no later than July 1, 2005. SFAS 123(R) permits public companies to adopt its
requirements using one of two methods:

1. A “modified prospective” method in which compensation cost is recognized beginning with the effective date
(a) based on the requirements of SFAS 123(R) for all share-based payments granted after the effective date and
(b) based on the requirements of SFAS 123 for all awards granted to employees prior to the effective date of
SFAS 123(R) that remain unvested on the effective date.
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2. A “modified retrospective” method which includes the requirements of the modified prospective method
described above, but also permits entities to restate based on the amounts previously recognized under
SFAS 123 for purposes of pro forma disclosures either (a) all prior periods presented or (b) prior interim
periods of the year of adoption.

We expect to adopt SFAS 123(R) on July 1, 2005, and we currently are evaluating adoption alternatives.

As permitted by SFAS 123, we currently account for share-based payments to employees using APB Opinion
No. 25’s intrinsic value method and, as such, generally recognizes no compensation cost for employee stock options.
Accordingly, the adoption of SFAS 123(R)’s fair value method will have a significant impact on our results of
operations, although it will have no impact on our overall financial position. The impact of adoption of SFAS 123(R) in
future periods will depend on levels of share-based payments granted in the future. However, had we adopted SFAS
123(R) in prior periods, the impact of that standard would have approximated the impact of SFAS 123 as described in
the disclosure of pro forma net income and earnings per share as disclosed in Note A under "Stock-Based
Compensation" to our consolidated financial statements. SFAS 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax deductions in
excess of recognized compensation cost to be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow.
This requirement will reduce net operating cash flows and increase net financing cash flows in periods after adoption.
The amount of operating cash flows recognized in prior periods for the benefit of tax deductions in excess of recognized
compensation cost were $10.5 million, $7.2 million and $0 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

OTHER
Forward-Looking Statements.

Certain statements in this Form 10-K Annual Report, the Company's Annual Report to Shareowners, as well as
statements made by us in periodic press releases, oral statements made by our officials to analysts and shareowners in
the course of presentations about the Company and conference calls following quarterly earnings releases, constitute
"forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We have
identified the forward-looking statements in this Form 10-K by cross-referencing this section at the end of the paragraph
in which the forward-looking statement is located. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Company to be
materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking
statements. Such factors include, among other things, those listed below:

e  General Economic and Business Conditions - Changes in national, regional and local economic conditions, as
well as changes in consumer confidence and preferences, can have a negative impact on our business.

o Interest Rate Changes - Our homebuilding and mortgage lending operations are impacted by the availability
and cost of mortgage financing.

e Changes in Federal Lending Programs - The availability of mortgage financing under federal lending programs
is an important factor in our business. Any change in the availability of this financing could reduce our home
sales and mortgage lending volume.

»  Availability of Capital - Our ability to grow our business is dependent on our ability to generate or obtain
capital. Increases in interest rates and changes in the capital markets could increase our costs of borrowing or
reduce the availability of funds.

e Competition - The real estate industry is fragmented and highly competitive. Our homebuilding subsidiaries
compete with numerous homebuilders, including a number that are substantially larger and have greater
financial resources.

e The Availability and Cost of Land, Labor and Materials - Our operations depend on our ability to continue to
obtain land, labor and materials at reasonable prices. Changes in the general availability or cost of these items
may hurt our ability to build homes and develop new residential communities.
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e  The Availability and Cost of Performance Bonds and Insurance - Our operations also are affected by our ability
to obtain performance bonds and insurance at reasonable prices. Changes in the availability and cost of bonds
and insurance can adversely impact our business operations.

o  Weather and Geology - The climates and geology of many of the states in which we operate present increased
risks of natural disasters and adverse weather. To the extent that such events occur, our business may be
adversely affected.

e Governmental Regulation and Environmental Matters - Our operations are subject to continuing compliance
requirements mandated by applicable federal, state and local statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations,
including environmental laws, moratoriums on utility availability, growth restrictions, zoning and land use
ordinances, building, plumbing and electrical codes, contractors’ licensing laws, state insurance laws, federal
and state human resources laws and regulations and health and safety regulations and laws.

e  Product Liability Litipation and Warranty Claims - As a homebuilder, we are subject to construction defect and
home warranty claims, including moisture intrusion and related mold claims that can be costly and adversely
affect our business.

e  Other Factors - Other factors over which we have little or no control, such as required accounting changes and
terrorist acts and other acts of war, can also adversely affect us.

We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information,

future events or otherwise. However, any further disclosures made on related subjects in subsequent reports on Forms
10-K, 10-Q and 8-K should be consulted.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We are exposed to market risks related to fluctuations in interest rates on mortgage loans held in inventory and
debt. Derivative instruments utilized in the normal course of business by HomeAmerican include forward sales
securities commitments, private investor sales commitments and commitments to originate mortgage loans. We utilize
these commitments to manage the price risk on fluctuations in interest rates on our mortgage loans owned and
commitments t0 originate mortgage loans. Such contracts are the only significant financial derivative instruments
utilized by MDC.

HomeAmerican provides mortgage loans that generally are sold forward and subsequently delivered to a third-
party purchaser within approximately 45 days. Forward commitments are used for non-trading purposes to sell mortgage
loans and hedge price risk due to fluctuations in interest rates on rate-locked mortgage loans in process that have not
closed. Due to this hedging philosophy, the market risk associated with these mortgages is limited.

We utilize both short-term and long-term debt in our financing strategy. For fixed rate debt, changes in interest
rates generally affect the fair value of the debt instrument, but not our earnings or cash flows. Conversely, for variable
rate debt, changes in interest rates generally do not impact the fair value of the debt instrument, but may affect our future
earnings and cash flows. We do not have an obligation to prepay fixed rate debt prior to maturity and, as a result,
interest rate risk and changes in fair value should not have a significant impact on the fixed rate debt until we would be
required to refinance such debt.

As of December 31, 2004, short-term debt was $135.5 million, which consisted of amounts outstanding on our
Mortgage Line. The Mortgage Line is collateralized by mortgage loans and mortgage-backed certificates and are limited
to the value of eligible collateral as defined. We borrow on a short-term basis from banks under committed lines of
credit, which bear interest at the prevailing market rates. Long-term debt obligations outstanding, their maturities and
estimated fair value at December 31, 2004 are as follows (in thousands).

Maturities through December 31, Estimated

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009  Thereafter __ Total  Fair Value

Fixed Rate Debt................ $ --% --% --% --§ -- $ 746,310 § 746,310 § 773,113
Average Interest Rate ... -- -- -- -- -- 5.76% 5.76% --

We believe that our overall balance sheet structure has repricing and cash flow characteristics that mitigate the
impact of interest rate changes.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS OF
M.D.C. HOLDINGS, INC.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the "Company") as of December 31,2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004, in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of M.D.C. Holdings, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 15, 2005
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Emnst & Young LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 15, 2005




M.D.C. HOLDINGS, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands)
December 31,
2004 2003
ASSETS
Corporate
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ..........ccovveiririrrrenerrenerce e $ 389,828 § 163,133
Property and equipment, Net........ccoccociiiiinnieiinec e 28,932 10,152
Deferred NCOME tAXES........coverinreierrrersnereeriernreirerssseseeresssessessssssessenses 40,963 32,096
Deferred debt iSSue COSLS, NEL ......cciiiriiiieeccnrirceinenrerescseesessiessasessensas 5,671 4,232
Other aSSets, DL .........covuiieiieriieineneieiesirerreeieresetesnesesesaresssssesessnesssen 9,022 7.460
474,416 217,073
Homebuilding
Cash and cash equIvalents ............cccoeevirericrevencerenniniere et 16,961 8,246
Home sales and other accounts receivable ........cccoceeevieeeviieivvvernecnaee, 31,018 8,394
Inventories, net
Housing completed or under construction .........ccocvveecerveninsnrverennens 851,628 732,744
Land and land under development .........c.coccceinrinnviniininnnsissinssssnens 1,109,953 763,569
Prepaid expenses and other assets, Net .........cc..coeevveerrereneennrueneseiesnrnns 115.544 88.419
2.125.104 1,601,372
Financial Services
Cash and cash equivalents..........cc.occecvvveeeeenrerinncniieneere s 1,361 2,186
Mortgage loans held in INVEBLOTY .......cc.ccevvreereiiieeeeeresereerrree e 178,925 140,040
Other @SSEtS, MEL....cvicvereerreeierersiereereesteniesernsessessestesreseossereisestneseeners 10,238 9.129
190.524 151.355
TOtA] ASSELS .....coveureierernrreereeeitnrersesreessesaetessneberesnet e ssnserases $2,790,044 $1,969,800

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ML.D.C. HOLDINGS, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share amounts)

December 31,
2004 2003
LIABILITIES
Corporate
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses .........cov.coereeerirreereerscnrienenns $ 94,178 $§ 72212
Income taxes PAYADIE .......occovieericiriecrereree et e 50,979 25,011
SENIOT NOES, MEL ......eeeeseeeveeeesvrerresesvsrasnsessssssssssssornsssssnssossssasssssnsossss 746,310 497.700
891.467 594,923
Homebuilding
Accounts payable and accrued EXpenses ........vvveririerrurrererenssennsrerarenins 325,468 259,294
Line of Credit....c.covciriiiiieereicrccrcrnrnr sttt s s -- --
NOLES PAYADIE......ceiieirrieircieericre st ecasesseessasstsnnssssssesencraces -- 2.479

325.468 261.773

Financial Services

Accounts payable and accrued €Xpenses ........ocevcevevivieiernreeieveersinrnens 18,810 17,944

Line 0f CrE@it..ccuuriciieeiirieceeiiece et ettt senre s sne s are s 135,478 79.240

154.288 97.184

Total Liabilities......cocevviiveiiiieeeiere et et 1.371.223 953,880

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTES L AND N) -- --

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; none

ISSUEA ...eeeiiicceri e e sere e esr e srre s aeseresbrd e brenr s s b asatsentesrnrtas -- --

Common stock, $.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized;
43,286,000 and 42,401,000 shares issued, respectively, at

December 31, 2004 and 2003 .......cccconiiievnrninecnrncinie et esneeane 433 424
Additional paid-in capital ......c...cccooveiveernieninrinne e 660,699 484,052
Retained earnings ..........cceoeeeererreceereererenerererisrernesseescesasesarseeseseoserses 760,780 582,927
Unearned restricted SOCK ......oivevviveniericnieiie e reerrcsene e ntessesrenreennns (1,418) (1,169)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (J0SS) ......cocvevuevenrercrreeenans {290) 9)

1,420,204 1,066,225
Less treasury stock, at cost, 31,000 and 4,007,000 shares,

respectively, at December 31, 2004 and 2003 ..........cccovrereecnennen (1.383) (50.305)
Total Stockholders' EQUILY.........ccocoveerieererriisrnneenrarercresiesssenanees 1.418.821 1.015.920
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' EQUity.......c.cooverrvvrrrereennee. $2,790,044 $£1,969,800

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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M.D.C. HOLDINGS, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
REVENUES
Homebuilding .....ooovvvveieiriceiecrcieceerr e $ 3,951,644 $ 2,859,086 $ 2,272,195
Financial SETVICES........coiuvuieiierverensreirneresorernecsrsissssesensasassonns 56,610 60,216 45,356
COTPOTALE .....ceemeeinintirteeecreire et sttt e besaa e saaneons 818 768 973
Total REVENUES.......cvvereriveierenierecieeririrresreerireresreseenes 4,009,072 2.920.070 2.318.524
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Homebuilding ........ccovveveveiiieciteenieccecvcc e, 3,232,447 2,465,207 1,976,591
FInancial SEIVICES......cvvrierreereercirrerreeiresreccenesteesessesseenen, 38,127 31,939 21,162
Expenses related to debt redemption ..........cccecevvveeneennencnnene, -- 9,315 --
COTPOTALE ...oveeireeeie et eserseesese e saea s sa st ssenseesssreansnans 101,584 65.386 46,727
Total Costs and EXpenses...........occcvevrervrirniicreseenearene. 3.372,158 2,571.847 2,044.480
Income before INCOME tAXES ...cocovveveirinenrirererneeeresterereseeseens. 636,914 348,223 274,044
Provision for inCOME tAXES ......c.erveerererrrriererrenreseeseesenssiraeressnenne. (245.749) (135.994) (106.739)
NET INCOME ....c......ooooomeoreemsereresressesersnsessnssvesmssssssssesnssnsos, $ 391165 $ 212220 § 167305
EARNINGS PER SHARE
BaSIC...c.ciiiirertieresren e ettt ta et ar s e ner e s reana, b 9.19 h 5,11 b 397
DIMEd.....c.o oottt e, $ 8.79 b 4,90 $ 3.83
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING
BASIC ..ottt et bbb b 42.560 41,521 42.104
DiIIULEA ..ottt eeeer et ie e et e s neresnsaareens 44,498 43,333 43,657
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER SHARE .......................... - 434 $ 283 § 197

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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M.D.C. HOLDINGS, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

(In thousands)
Accumulated
Additional Other Unearned
Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Restricted Treasury
Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Stock Total
BALANCES-JANUARY 1,2002...........cocovrrenneee § 408 $ 356943 § 342485 § (163) § (412) $ (45430) § 653,831
Comprehensive income
Net INCOME......coueiitrercnrnr e -- -- 167,305 -- .- -- 167,305
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of
income taxes of $(26) .....cccevecvernnirnninrircnn, -- -- -- 41) -- -- (41)
Change in unrealized gains on securities available
for sale, net of income taxes of $345 .- -- -- 206 -- - 206
Total comprehensive income..........onuveene 167,470
Shares iSSUEd .......cceerivrerrerenrersrsmisisseseenissssensosssaesaes 5 8,939 -- -- -- 2,307 11,251
Tax benefit of non-qualified stock options exercised -- 5,525 -- -- -- -- 5,525
Notes receivable for stock purchases, net of
TEPAYINENLS vocecrrreecrnrerenescimisesesssssssssaessnsbsssasesssos -- 34 -- -- -- -- 34
StOCk TEPUICRASES ....cvveuseeeiresceeceesisineveseernesseensens -- -- -- -- -- (29,403) (29,403)
Cash dividends paid.......c..ccccooviiiniciciniiccneencnnenne -- -- (8,292) -- -- -- (8,292)
Issuance of restricted stock. -- 360 -- -- (559) 199 --
Restricted stock vesting.........cccoeovmeriiicincnnnnciiencnne -- -- -- -- 151 -- 151
BALANCES-DECEMBER 31,2002.................... 413 371,801 501,498 2 (820) (72,327) 800,567
Comprehensive income
Net INCOME. ...t ssrsrersesesssa i essisraens -- -- 212,229 -- -- -- 212,229
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of
income taxes of $(100) .....cccvvvvirvinrniinnnnnn, -- -- -- (158) -- -- (158)
Change in unrealized gains on securities available
for sale, net of income taxes of $254................. -- -- -~ 147 -- -- 147
Total comprehensive INCOME........cccviceenceninnnriicnnen 212,218
Shares iSSUd .......cccevrrecrrireecn et e 12 20,333 -- -- .- 3,425 23,770
Tax benefit of non-qualified stock options exercised -- 12,561 -- -- -- -- 12,561
Repayments on notes receivable for stock purchases -- 896 -- -- -- -- 896
Contribution of common Stock ....c.evrvereeriermrvecreninnne -- 2,882 -- .- -- 1,118 4,000
Stock repurchases -- -- -- -- -- (26,731) {26,731)
Cash dividends paid...........ccoeorvevinnrinnienciisnineee. -- -- (11,812) -- -- -- (11,812)
10% stock dividend .......cccoceeniciiciiniirccreieens 4D 75,013 (118,988) -- -- 43,976 --
Issuance of restricted stock.... . -- 566 - -- (800) 234 .-
Restricted stock VESting........coovveiisnininncscsiiisinseannns -- -- -- -- 451 -- 451
BALANCES-DECEMBER 31, 2003..................... 424 484,052 582,927 ) (1,169) (50,305) 1,015,920
Comprehensive income
NEt INCOME. ...vvvvvrrensereeresnanesersensrersceseremsencrassaseeran - -- 391,165 -- -- -- 391,165
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of
income taxes of $(13) .cccovviniiniiniiniiins -- -- -- @2n -- -- @2n
Change in unrealized gains on securities available
for sale, net of income taxes of $64................... -- -- -- (260) -- -- (260)
Total comprehensive iINCOME......ccocenmvcnneneccrnnreenes . 390,884
Shares iSSUEQ .......c.ccvccerrenrees i 10 13,840 -- -- -- 1,063 14,913
Tax benefit of non-qualified stock options exercised -- 16,030 -- -- -- -- 16,030
Contribution of common stock .. . -- 1,231 -- -- -- 5,069 6,300
StOCK TEPUICRASES ...oevrvrrvreerrrerivesrineismirsesneiennene -- -- -- -- -- (6,812) (6,812)
Cash dividends paid..........coovvucirermrcnmiiinnisecnnnn - -- (18,624) -- -- -- (18,624)
10% stock dividend .........ccooeeivimininiisiinccnins m 145,358 (194,688) -- -- 49,331 --
Issuance of restricted StoCK........covveevrrnermiineveccrciruenne -- 328 -- -- (748) 420 --
Forfeitures of restricted stock -~ (140) -- -- 262 (149) 27
Restricted StOCK VESHNG ...c.cvreiririniriirisessneseninone -- -- -- -- 237 -- 237
BALANCES-DECEMBER 31,2004.................... §_ 433 3 660,699 § 760,780 § 290y $ (1418 $ (1,383) §$1418821

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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M.D.C. HOLDINGS, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NELINCOME ......veireecnreneceeecrersesrerersserssesrarerssensesseeses $ 391,165 $ 212229 § 167,305
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities
Expenses related to debt redemption ................... -- 9,315 --
Depreciation and amortization........cc.occovevvveernens 41,906 35,677 26,907
Deferred income taxes .......coeveeveenereenreerearennens (8,867) (6,116) 4,101
Net changes in assets and liabilities
Home sales and other accounts receivable ..... (22,624) (4,875) (898)
Homebuilding inventories ...........c.cevvveererenenns (467,747) (258,516)  (328,064)
Prepaid expenses and other assets................... (59,346) (51,793) (37,900)
Mortgage loans held in inventory................... (38,885) 67,898 (62,967)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses........ 135,138 77,551 63,846
Other, DEL.......coveerereerreeerecersirsseeinrerereessressresens 5,396 2,557 1.241
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities .... (23.864) 83.927 (166.429)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net purchase of property and equipment .................... (29.917) (6.785) (12.441)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lines of credit
AQVANCES ....veveeveierevcreesieesiereresseissneassssassesenes 1,816,738 2,353,400 2,627,632
Principal payments ........c.cccocceverveevveereenrennenneeene (1,760,500) (2,428,234) (2,573,200)
Senior notes
Proceeds from iSSUANCE .........evvevveerierveervicneeneonens 246,575 346,148 146,791
Redemption .........cc.cceevveveneereeerrnicnesnneieiesnssnenens -- (175,000) --
Premium on redemption ........cccceceeveveevnervecuenrenennee -- (7,329) --
Dividend payments..........cccccevvrverninnorenienenccrvnneneniennene (18,624) (11,812) (8,292)
Stock TEPUTCRASES ..oouveeviveeceeieeeee e ce e er e (6,812) (26,731) (29,403)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options...........c.c.ceuee 10,989 17,039 7.684
Net cash provided by financing activities.................... 288.366 67.481 171.212
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. 234,585 144,623 (7,658)
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year .........ccoeeveivvvneerienricneninenenees 173.565 28.942 36,600
End of year........ccoevverineiie e rensreeenes $ 408,150 $ 173565 §$ 28542

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information (in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2003

2002

2004
Cash paid during the year for
TOEETESE ... v ceeeeeerenriresesesasssestsnestesesstssseseensenes $ 31,742
INCOMIE LAKES ..vcvveereeereriereerereeeseerneareeoresseesessesnes $ 212,610

Non-cash financing activities
Land purchases financed by seller...........cccceneeee

$ 30,217 § 20276
$ 126298 $ 85,304

$ 2479 $ --

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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M.D.C. HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements of M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. ("MDC" or
the "Company", which, unless otherwise indicated, refers to M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries) include the
accounts of MDC and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

Description of Business - The Company has determined that its reportable segments are those that are based
on its method of internal reporting, which disaggregates its business by product category. MDC's products come
from two segments, homebuilding and financial services. In its homebuilding segment, through separate subsidiaries,
the Company is engaged in the design, construction and sale of single-family homes, as well as provides title agency
services through its wholly owned subsidiary American Home Title and Escrow Company. In the Company’s
financial services segment, HomeAmerican Mortgage Corporation (a wholly owned subsidiary of M.D.C. Holdings,
Inc., "HomeAmerican") provides mortgage loans primarily to the Company's homebuyers (the mortgage lending
operations). The Company also makes available to its homebuyers third party homeowners, auto and other types of
insurance products through its wholly owned subsidiary American Home Insurance Agency, Inc.

Presentation - The Company’s balance sheet presentation is unclassified due to the fact that certain assets
and liabilities have both short and long-term characteristics.

Homebuilding.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets, Net - Homebuilding prepaid expenses and other assets include
qualified settlement fund ("QSF") assets that are held for the processing and disposition of eligible claims made
under the warranties created pursuant to the settlement of litigation commenced in 1994 and settled in November
1996. Available for sale investments included in QSF assets are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at fair
value, which is based on quoted prices, with the related unrealized gain or loss included in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss). At December 31, 2004, MDC had intercompany notes payable (including accrued
interest) to the QSF, and the QSF had offsetting intercompany notes receivable from MDC, of $12.5 million, under a
borrowing arrangement that was approved by the Colorado Division of Insurance.

The following table sets forth the information relating to homebuilding prepaid expenses and other assets,
net (in thousands).

December 31,
2004 2003

QS F ASSELS....voreveirrrreirereerirrerierereneerssnesssrenen $ 14465 $ 15,116
MDC intercompany notes payable to QSF .... (12,500) --
Land option deposits.........ccceevrcereerccnrernnennnns 46,510 19,574
Deferred marketing costS ........c.ocoeevveeecrernrenne 28,200 26,307
Prepaid tap and system development fees...... 1,681 1,093
Property and equipment, net..........ccocoeennnene 8,188 4,815
Insurance premiums receivable...................... -- 7,250
Prepaid eXpenses........cccovvvevernenieiennierenensennes 9,888 5,503
Intangible assets........cocveverirerrericererernnireeenes 10,162 3,254
OLBET ...coorveeererernersasreinisesssenssesesinnssessanses 8,950 5,507

Total ..cerierereeccetcere s ereee s $ 115,544 3 88419

Deferred Marketing Costs - Certain marketing costs related to model homes and sales offices are capitalized
as prepaid assets and amortized to selling, general and administrative expenses as the homes in the related
subdivision are closed. All other marketing costs are expensed as incurred.
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Intangible Assets - The Company’s intangible assets primarily consist of architectural plans and third-party
developer, subcontractor and customer relationships. Intangible amortization expense was $2.0 million in 2004 and
$0.2 million in 2003. No amortization expense was recorded in 2002. The estimated future aggregate amortization
expense for existing intangible assets as of December 31, 2004 is $3.2 million in 2005, $3.2 million in 2006 and
$2.3 million in 2007.

The Company evaluates the carrying value of these intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 144,
Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis and whenever events indicate that their carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Impairment is determined by comparing the estimated future cash flows
(undiscounted and without interest charges) from an individual asset to its carrying value. If such cash flows are less
than the asset's carrying value, the carrying value of the asset is written down to its fair value. As of December 31,
2004, the Company did not have any impairments.

Revenue Recognition - Revenues from real estate sales are recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 66
"Accounting for Sales of Real Estate." The Company records revenue at closing when a sufficient down payment has
been received, financing has been arranged, and title, possession and other attributes of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer and the Company is not obligated to perform significant additional activities after sale and
delivery.

Warranty Costs - The Company's homes are sold with limited warranties that generally provide for ten years
of structural coverage ("structural warranty”), two years of coverage for plumbing, electrical and heating, ventilation
and air conditioning systems, and one year of coverage for workmanship and materials ("general warranty").
Warranty reserves are initially established as homes close on a per-unit basis in an amount estimated to be adequate
to cover expected costs of materials and outside labor during warranty periods. Reserves are determined based upon
historical experience with respect to similar product types and geographical areas. Certain factors are given
consideration in determining the per-house reserve amount, including (1) the historical range of amounts paid per
house; (2) the historical average amount paid per house; (3) any warranty expenditures included in (1) and (2) not
considered to be normal and recurring; (4) improvements in quality control and construction techniques expected to
impact future warranty expenditures; and (5) conditions that may affect certain projects and require higher per-house
reserves for those specific projects.

Warranty expenditures are tracked on a house-by-house basis and are charged against the warranty reserve
established for the house. Any expenditures incurred within 120 days of closing a home are recorded against the
estimate to complete land development and home construction accrual discussed below, unless it is clear that the
expenditure is a warranty claim. Expenditures incurred after 120 days of closing a home are considered warranty
expenditures. Additional reserves are established for known unusual warranty-related expenditures not covered by
the initial warranty reserves. If warranty expenditures for an individual house exceed the related reserve, then costs
in excess of the reserve are evaluated in the aggregate to determine if an adjustment to housing cost of sales should
be recorded.

Warranty reserves are reviewed quarterly, using historical data and other relevant information, to determine
the reasonableness and adequacy of both the reserve and the per unit reserve amount initially included in cost of
sales. Warranty reserves are included in corporate and homebuilding accounts payable and accrued expenses in the
consolidated balance sheets and totaled $64.4 million and $51.1 million, respectively, at December 31, 2004 and
2003. The Company's volume of homes closed has increased by over 200% in the last ten years, giving rise to
warranty reserves that exceed current expenditures. In addition, the carryover reserve includes additional warranty
reserves created pursuant to the QSF.
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The following table summarizes the warranty activity for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002 (in thousands).

Year Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002
Warranty reserve balance at beginning of year ............. $ 51,068 $ 44,743 $ 38,430
Warranty eXpense provision........ccccveeevvereererresveessnnsennns 37,985 36,014 24,529
Warranty cash payments, net............ccoeevrrerireerereiesennnnn, (24.629) (29.689) (18.216)
Warranty reserve balance at end of year ....................... 3 64,424 b 51,068 3 44,743

Homebuilding Inventory Valuation - Homebuilding inventories under development and construction are
carried at cost unless facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the underlying projects may be
impaired, in accordance with SFAS No. 144. Impairment is determined by comparing the estimated future cash
flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) from an individual project to its carrying value. If such cash flows
are less than the project's carrying value, the carrying value of the project is written down to its estimated fair value,
less cost to sell. Homebuilding inventories held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value, less selling
costs, and are evaluated on an individual asset basis. Fair value is determined by management estimate and
incorporates anticipated future revenues and costs. Due to uncertainties in the estimation process, it is at least
reasonably possible that actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company continues to evaluate the
carrying value of our inventory and, based on historical results, believes that the existing estimation process is
accurate and does not anticipate the process to materially change in the future.

Estimates to Complete Land Development and Home Construction - When home sales revenue is
recognized upon closing, an estimate is made by the Company as to certain construction and land development costs
incurred but not yet paid at the time of closing. Estimated costs to complete a home are determined for each closed
home based upon historical data with respect to similar product types and geographical areas. The Company
monitors the accuracy of each monthly estimate by comparing actual costs incurred subsequent to closing to the
estimate made at the time of closing. The Company has made slight modifications to the estimates based on these
comparisons and will continue to monitor actual results in the future. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company
had accruals of $35.4 million and $37.0 million, respectively. Historical estimates have been materially consistent
with actual results. The Company does not expect the estimates to materially change in the future, however actual
results could differ from such estimates.

Variable interest entities - In the normal course of business, MDC enters into lot option purchase contracts,
generally through a deposit of cash, for the right to purchase land or lots at a future point in time with predetermined
terms. The Company’s liability with respect to option contracts generally is limited to forfeiture of the related non-
refundable cash deposits and letters of credit, which totaled approximately $41.8 million and $22.1 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2004. At December 31, 2004, the Company had the right to acquire 21,164 lots at an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $1.1 billion. Under FASB’s Interpretation No. 46 ("Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities") ("FIN 46"), certain of these contracts create a variable interest, with the land seller being
the variable interest entity ("VIE"). The Company has evaluated, based on the provisions of FIN 46, all lot option
purchase contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2004, In connection with this evaluation, the Company requested
financial information from these VIEs, assessed the market conditions where the Company has contracted with these
VIEs, and evaluated whether the Company retains the risk of loss from the VIE's activities or are entitled to receive a
majority of the VIE's residual returns or both. Based on this evaluation, MDC has determined that its interests in
these VIEs do not result in significant variable interests or require consolidation as MDC’s interests do not qualify it
as the primary beneficiary of residual returns or losses.

Financial Services.

Mortgage I oans Held in Inventory - The Company generally purchases forward commitments to deliver
mortgage loans held for sale. Mortgage loans held in inventory are stated at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value
based upon such commitments for loans to be delivered or prevailing market for uncommitted loans. Substantially
all of the loans originated by the Company are sold to investors within 45 days of origination. Gains or losses on
mortgage loans held in inventory are realized when the loans are sold. Credit losses related to mortgage loans held in
inventory have been insignificant.
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Revenue Recognition - Loan origination fees, net of certain direct loan origination costs incurred, and loan
commitment fees are deferred until the related loans are sold. Loan servicing fees are recorded as revenue when the
mortgage loan payments are received. Revenues from the sale of mortgage loan servicing are recognized when title
and all risks and rewards of ownership have irrevocably passed to the buyer and there are no significant unresolved
contingencies.

Derivative Financial Instruments - Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") SFAS No. 133,
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," as amended by SFAS No. 138, "Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities” and SFAS No. 149, "Amendment of Statement 133
on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" ("SFAS No. 133"), requires companies to recognize all of their
derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheets at fair value. The accounting for changes in
the fair value (i.e., gains or losses) of a derivative instrument depends on whether it has been properly designated by
a company as a "hedging relationship” and is determined to qualify for hedge accounting. To qualify for hedge
accounting under SFAS No. 133, at the inception of a hedge, a company must formally document the relationship
between the derivative instrument and the hedged item, as well as the risk management objective, the strategy for
undertaking the hedge transactions, and the method the company will use to assess the hedge's effectiveness in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value. In addition, the company must document the results of the method used to
assess hedge effectiveness on an ongoing basis.

If a company either does not properly designate the "hedging relationship” or subsequently determines that
the derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting, the derivative instruments are considered "free
standing derivatives." Free standing derivatives are marked-to-market and included in the balance sheet as either
derivative assets or liabilities with corresponding changes in fair value recorded in income as they occur.

The Company utilizes certain derivative instruments in the normal course of operations. These instruments
include forward sales of mortgage-backed securities commitments, private investor sales commitments and
commitments to originate mortgage loans (interest rate lock commitments or locked pipeline), all of which typically
are short-term in nature. Forward sales securities commitments and private investor sales commitments are utilized
to hedge changes in fair value of mortgage loan inventory and commitments to originate mortgage loans.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company determined that its derivative instruments qualified
for SFAS No. 133 hedge accounting as "fair value hedges” and the resulting adjustments related to this qualification
were immaterial to the Company's financial position and results of operations. Additionally, the Company marked-
to-market its mortgage loan inventory in accordance with SFAS No. 133. During 2004 and 2003, the Company did
not designate its derivatives as hedging instruments and recorded its forward sales commitments and its locked
pipeline as free standing derivatives and applied the lower-of-cost-or-market method to account for mortgage loan
inventory in accordance with SFAS No. 65, "Accounting for Certain Mortgage Banking Activities." The effect of
not designating the derivatives as hedging instruments did not impact materially the Company's results of operations
for 2004 and 2003.

Mortgage Servicing Rights - The Company allocates the cost of mortgage loans originated between the
mortgage loans and the right to service those mortgage loans, based on relative fair value, on the date the loan is
sold. Mortgage servicing rights ("Servicing Rights") of $8.9 million and $11.6 million were capitalized during 2004
and 2003, respectively. Servicing Rights are amortized over the estimated period of net servicing revenues. The cost
attributed to the Servicing Rights sold and the amortization of Servicing Rights was $8.9 million and $11.7 million
for 2004 and 2003, respectively. Servicing Rights are evaluated for impairment by stratifying the portfolio based on
loan type and interest rate. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had unamortized Servicing Rights of
$0.1 million, with no related impairment as of both periods ended, included in financial services other assets, net in
the consolidated balance sheets.




General.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Company periodically invests funds not immediately required for
operating purposes in highly liquid, short-term investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less, such as
commercial paper, money market funds and repurchase agreements, which are included in cash and cash equivalents
in the consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of cash flows.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the related assets, which range from two to 15 years. Depreciation expense was $8.0 million, $5.1 million
and $3.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Accumulated depreciation as
of December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $22.0 million and $15.6 million, respectively.

Advertising_Costs - The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense was
$26.4 million, $23.6 million and $20.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation - The Company grants options to certain employees and directors to acquire a
fixed number of shares with an exercise price not less than the fair market value of the Company's common stock on
the date of grant. The Company also makes restricted stock grants to employees, which are valued based on the
market price of MDC's common stock at the grant dates and vest over four years. Unearned compensation arising
from the restricted stock grants is shown as a reduction in stockholders' equity in the consolidated balance sheets and
is amortized to expense over the vesting period. The expense recognized in the consolidated income statement for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $0.5 million, $0.5 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

The Company has elected to account for stock options using the intrinsic value method as prescribed by
Accounting Principles Board Opinion ("APB") No. 25 and related interpretations and, has recorded no compensation
expense in the determination of net income in the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. The following
table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the fair value method had been applied to all
outstanding and unvested awards in each of the following years (in thousands, except per share amounts).

Year Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

Net income, as 1eported..........c.ovivuermiceeenrrrerirenenens $ 391,165 $ 212,229 $ 167,305
Deduct stock-based compensation expense

determined using the fair value method, net of

related tax effects.....ccoerernveenneeninneeneereninenienes (8.799) (8.574) (9.144)
Pro forma net inCome...........cocvvvvvininevcnccsriinennincnne $ 382366 § 203655 $ 158,161
Earnings per share

Basic as reported.........ccevvevereeeenieieneneee e 3 919 § 511 % 397

Basic pro forma........co.coovveenrcnnineneee e $ 898 § 490 § 376

Diluted as reported.........coeevererierrreernrercseeirenenns § 879 § 490 § _ 3.83

Diluted pro forma...........cceceeerrernereieeveresrerererenenns $ 859 § 470 §_ 362

The following table is a summary of the average fair values of options granted during 2004, 2003 and 2002
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the assumptions used for the expected
volatility, risk free interest rate and dividend yield rate.

Year Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002
Average fair value of options granted.........c..ccc.crene.. $ 2923 § 1816 § 1331
Expected vOlatility .......co.ocoveirrccreninirinnerererererensererones 45.3% 47.6% 54.9%
Risk free INtereSt Tate .....ccceevivvirvenrennenieseeressrenerases 3.9% 3.9% 3.8%
Dividend yield rate.......cccoovveeereisrenerernvenseerernsronns 0.8% 0.8% 0.8%
Weighted-average expected lives of options............... 6.0 yrs. 6.0 yrs. 7.0 yrs.
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Other Comprehensive Income - The accumulated balances related to each component of other
comprehensive income (loss) are as follows (in thousands).

December 31,
2004 2003
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of income taxes of
$(187) in 2004 and $(174) in 2003 .........cecermmvvrirrrersmrrrirenes 3 295) $ (274)
Unrealized gains on securities available for sale, net of income
taxes of $385 in 2004 and $449 in 2003 ... ..cccoevevveriecrrrennennns 5 265
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) .............. §  (290) § ()]

Estimates in Financial Statements - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Such estimates include warranty, other accrued expenses, litigation reserves, estimates
to complete land development and construction and estimates related to potential asset impairment charges.

Litigation Reserves - MDC and certain of our subsidiaries have been named as defendants in various cases
arising in the normal course of business. The Company has accrued for costs to be incurred with respect to these
cases based upon information provided by its legal counsel. Due to uncertainties in the estimation process, it is at
least reasonably possible that actual results could differ from those estimates. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the
Company had accruals of $8.2 million and $10.1 million, respectively. Historical estimates have been materially
consistent with actual results. We do not expect the estimates to materially change in the future, however due to
uncertainties in the estimation process actual results could differ from such estimates.

Recent_Statements of Financial Accounting Standards - On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued
SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment” ("SFAS 123(R)"), which is a revision of SFAS No. 123,
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” ("SFAS 123"). SFAS 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25,
"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and amends SFAS Statement No. 95, "Statement of Cash Flows".
Generally, the approach in Statement 123(R) is similar to the approach described in SFAS 123. However, SFAS
123(R) requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be
recognized in the income statement based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative.

SFAS 123(R) must be adopted no later than July 1, 2005. SFAS 123(R) permits public companies to adopt
its requirements using one of two methods:

1. A “modified prospective” method in which compensation cost is recognized beginning with the effective
date (a) based on the requirements of SFAS 123(R) for all share-based payments granted after the effective
date and (b) based on the requirements of SFAS 123 for all awards granted to employees prior to the
effective date of SFAS 123(R) that remain unvested on the effective date.

2. A “modified retrospective” method which includes the requirements of the modified prospective method
described above, but also permits entities to restate based on the amounts previously recognized under
SFAS 123 for purposes of pro forma disclosures either (a) all prior periods presented or (b) prior interim
periods of the year of adoption.

The Company expects to adopt SFAS 123(R) on July 1,2005 and is currently evaluating adoption
alternatives.

As permitted by SFAS 123, the Company currently accounts for share-based payments to employees using
Opinion 25’s intrinsic value method and, as such, generally recognizes no compensation cost for employee stock
options. Accordingly, the adoption of SFAS 123(R)’s fair value method will have a significant impact on the
Company’s results of operations, although it will have no impact on the Company’s overall financial position. The
impact of adoption of SFAS 123(R) in future periods will depend on levels of share-based payments granted in the
future. However, had the Company adopted SFAS 123(R) in prior periods, the impact of that standard would have




approximated the impact of SFAS 123 as described in the disclosure of pro forma net income and earnings per share
as disclosed above in this Note A under "Stock-Based Compensation” to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. SFAS 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost to
be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow. This requirement will reduce net
operating cash flows and increase net financing cash flows in periods after adoption. The amount of operating cash
flows recognized in prior periods for the benefit of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost were
$10.5 million, $7.2 million and $0 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

B. Information on Business Segments

The Company operates in two business segments - homebuilding and financial services. A summary of the
Company's business segments is shown below (in thousands).

Year Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002
Homebuilding
Revenues
HOME SALES ..ot $3,932,013 $2,851,328 $2,260,291
Land $ales......c.ccevieiiieiiccie s 8,898 1,298 6,022
Other TEVENUES....cceiverrerrereeerrrerenietrcrscrreeeere e tereereereerens 10.733 6.460 5.882
Total Homebuilding Revenues.........ccoccovivemvecvinneiceeeneenenennns 3.951.644 2.859.086 2,272,195
Home cost 0f SaleS.....cociiiviviiiie e 2,843,543 2,163,696 1,741,449
Land cost of sales.......ccovvvenveeceireceeeieecire e cne e 8,783 842 4,600
MaArKEHOE ...ooveeveereeirieecireee sttt saereresenens 198,541 162,148 125,060
General and adminiStrative.....c..o.cveerrecerenevesnenienrevenreerenon 181.580 138,521 105482
Total Homebuilding EXPenses..........cccecvvveecrvreerencccisiornennnns 3232447 _2.465207 _1.976,591
Homebuilding Operating Profit............................ 719.197 393.879 295,604
Financial Services
Revenues
Net interest iMCOME.......uevrerrerreerirererrersserererenseeseersessasssssrons 3,838 4,616 4,348
OTIGINALON FEES ....v.veeerreeerreerrereseeeseeesosesesesssesesssrmeesosenns 24,728 22,245 18,771
Gains on sales of mortgage servicing, net .............cceevereuene. 2,093 1,972 1,773
Gains on sales of mortgage loans, net ...........cccceeevereveenennn. 22,657 28,622 19,587
Mortgage servicing and other..........ccoceevervvineevencinreeserans 3.294 2,761 877
Total Financial Services Revenues 56,610 60,216 45,356
General and Administrative EXPenses ..........cccceivvvrevvrivrrrreriens 38.127 31,939 21,162
Financial Services Operating Profit ........................ 18.483 28,277 24.194
Total Operating Profit..............cccocoververvniienniinrennncreneienns 737,680 422,156 319.798
Corporate
Interest and Other rEVENUES.......ccovvrevereecvireneeressresererennes 818 768 973
Expenses related to debt redemption.........cccoveveerireneerennee. -- (9,315) --
General and administrative...........cccvcoeveverecveererivesneeeecnnen. (101.584) (65386) _ (46.727)
Net Corporate EXpenses .............ccccovivreernirirnnreccornes (100,766) (73.933) __ (45.754)
Income Before Income Taxes ............cccovecevnirervnceiiennnininens $ 636914 § 348,223 §$ 274,044

Corporate general and administrative expenses comsist principally of salaries and other administrative
expenses that are not identifiable to a specific segment. Transfers between segments are recorded at cost. Capital
expenditures and related depreciation and amortization for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were
not material. Identifiable segment assets are shown on the face of the consolidated balance sheets.
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C. Mortgage Loans Held in Inventory

The following table sets forth the information relating to mortgage loans held in inventory (in thousands).

December 31,
2004 2003
First mortgage loans
Conventional ..........ccovverriereernennerersenesrseseresseseeneens $ 157,687 § 117,620
FHA and VA ..ot 20,961 21.200
178,648 138,820
Less
Unamortized diSCOURLS.......ccveruerrecrereinienererenias 52 (72)
Deferred fees.......c.vvivvnniiicernnerererereenreeerereens (815) 159
Adjustment for derivatives and hedging activities ... 1,050 1,133
Allowance for loan losses..........cccvvvvvrreneerrreiennnnns (10) --
TOtAL...ceerreerieecre et e sesr e e s sees $ 178925 § 140,040

Mortgage loans held in inventory consist primarily of loans collateralized by first mortgages and deeds of
trust due over periods of up to 30 years. The weighted-average effective yield on mortgage loans held in inventory
was approximately 5.7% and 5.9% at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

D. Lines of Credit

Homebuilding — The Company’s homebuilding line of credit ("Homebuilding Line") is an unsecured
revolving line of credit with a group of lenders for support of our homebuilding operations. During April 2004, the
Company renewed the Homebuilding Line, increasing the aggregate commitment amount to $700 million and
extending the maturity date to April 7, 2009. In addition, the facility’s provision for letters of credit was increased to
an available aggregate amount of $350 million. The facility permitted an increase in the maximum commitment
amount to $850 million upon the Company’s request, subject to receipt of additional commitments from existing or
additional participant lenders. At December 31, 2004, there were no borrowings outstanding and $67.0 million in
letters of credit had been issued under the Homebuilding Line. The Company could have borrowed funds at interest
rates ranging from 2.5% to 5.25%.

Mortgage Lending —~ The Company’s mortgage line of credit ("Mortgage Line") has a borrowing limit of
$175 million with terms that allow for increases of up to $50 million in the borrowing limit to a maximum of
$225 million, subject to concurrence by the participating banks. The terms of the Mortgage Line are set forth in the
Third Amended and Restated Warehousing Credit Agreement dated as of October 23, 2003, as amended by the First
Amendment dated as of February 27, 2004 and the Second Amendment dated as of September 28, 2004. Available
borrowings under the Mortgage Line are collateralized by mortgage loans and mortgage-backed certificates and are
limited to the value of eligible collateral as defined. At December 31, 2004, $135.5 million was borrowed and an
additional $23.9 million was collateralized and available to be borrowed. The Mortgage Line is cancelable upon 120
days notice. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the interest rates on the Mortgage Line were 3.4% and 2.3%,
respectively.

General - The agreements for the Company's bank lines of credit and the indentures for the Company's
senior notes require compliance with certain representations, warranties and covenants. The Company believes that
it is in compliance with these representations, warranties and covenants and the Company is not aware of any
covenant violations. The agreements containing these representations, warranties and covenants for the bank lines of
credit and the indentures for the Company's senior notes are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission
and are listed in the Exhibit Table in Part IV of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The financial covenants contained in the Homebuilding Line credit agreement include a leverage test and a
consolidated tangible net worth test. Under the leverage test, generally, the Company’s consolidated indebtedness is
not permitted to exceed 55% (subject to adjustment in certain circumstances) of the sum of consoclidated
indebtedness and the Company’s "adjusted consolidated tangible net worth," as defined. Under the consolidated
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tangible net worth test, the Company’s "adjusted consolidated tangible net worth," as defined, must not be less than
the sum of (1) $776,018,000; (2) 50% of "consolidated net income," as defined, of the "borrower," as defined, and
the "guarantors,” as defined, after December 31, 2003; and (3) 50% of the net proceeds or other consideration
received for the issuance of capital stock after December 31, 2003. Failure to satisfy the financial covenant tests
could result in a scheduled term-out of the facility. In addition, "consolidated tangible net worth," as defined, must
not be less than the sum of (1) $485,011,000; (2) 50% of the quarterly consolidated net income of "borrower" and
the "guarantors” eamned after December 31, 2003; and (3) 50% of the net proceeds or other consideration received
for the issuance of capital stock after December 31, 2003. Failure to satisfy this covenant could result in a
termination of the facility. The Company believes that it is in full compliance with these covenants and is not aware
of any covenant violations.

The Company’s senior notes are not secured and the senior notes indentures do not contain financial
covenants. The senior notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on an unsecured basis, jointly and severally, by
most of the Company’s homebuilding segment subsidiaries.

E. Senior Notes and Total Debt Obligations

In December 2002, the Company completed a public offering of $150 million principal amount of
7% senior notes due December 2012 (the "7% Senior Notes") at a discount, with an effective yield of 7.30%. The
principal amount outstanding, net of unamortized discount, at December 31, 2004 was $148.7 million. Interest is due
and payable on June 1 and December 15 of each year until maturity. The Company does not make any principal
payments and the 7% Senior Notes are fully due in December 2012. The 7% Senior Notes are guaranteed by certain
of the Company's subsidiaries and may be redeemed, at the election of the Company, in whole at any time or in part
from time to time, at the redemption prices set forth in the 7% Senior Notes supplemental indenture.

In May 2003, the Company completed a public offering of $150 million principal amount of 5'4% senior
notes due May 2013 (the "5%% Senior Notes") at a discount, with an effective yield of 5.74%. Also in May 2003,
the Company redeemed $175 million principal amount of its 8%4% senior notes due 2008 (the "8%% Senior Notes").
The 8 %% Senior Notes were redeemed at 104.188% of their principal amount, or $182.3 million, plus accrued and
unpaid interest through the date of redemption. In compliance with SFAS No. 145, the expenses related to this debt
redemption of $9.3 million are no longer treated as an extraordinary loss. In December 2003, the Company issued an
additional $200 million principal amount of the 5/4% Senior Notes at a premium, with an effective yield of 5.57%.
The 5%% Senior Notes have interest due and payable on May 15 and November 15 of each year until maturity. The
Company does not make any principal payments and the 5'2% Senior Notes are fully due in May 2013. The
514% Senior Notes are guaranteed by certain of the Company's subsidiaries and may be redeemed, at the election of
the Company, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, at the redemption prices set forth in the 5% Senior
Notes supplemental indenture.

In December 2004, the Company completed a public offering of $250 million principal amount of
5%% medium-term senior notes due December 2014 (the "5%% Medium-Term Senior Notes") at a discount, with an
effective yield of 5.55%. The 5%% Medium-Term Senior Notes have interest due and payable on June 15 and
December 15 of each year until maturity. The Company does not make any principal payments and the
5%% Medium-Term Senior Notes are fully due in December 2014. The 5%% Medium-Term Senior Notes are
guaranteed by certain of the Company's subsidiaries and may be redeemed, at the election of the Company, in whole
at any time or in part from time to time, at the redemption prices set forth in the 5%% Medium-Term Senior Notes
supplemental indenture.
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The Company classifies the senior notes as corporate liabilities due to the fact that M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. is the
borrower and the senior notes are guaranteed by certain homebuilding subsidiaries. The Company's total debt
obligations as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows (in thousands).

December 31, December 31,

2004 2003
7% Senior Notes due 2012 ......cce.eevvvevvvecvennnen. 148,688 148,565
5%% Senior Notes due 2013 .........c..covvvvvenenene 349,197 349,135
5%% Medium-Term Senior Notes due 2014 .... 248.425 --
Total Senior Notes............cccoeeveivinvnciennns 746,310 497,700
Notes payable ......ccovveeenerniionionserencesenees -- 2479
Total Corporate and Homebuilding Debt. 746,310 500,179
Mortgage line.......coccevvvviecvnveerineniercnienecsenrarns 135.478 79.240
Total Debt ......ccoccoveiererrrrecerreeerie e $ 881,788 § 579419

F. Retirement Plans

In October 1997, the Company established a defined benefit retirement plan (the "Retirement Plan") for two
executive officers of the Company under which the Company agreed to make future payments that have a projected
benefit obligation of $11.8 million at December 31, 2004. The Retirement Plan is not funded and benefits were fully
vested as of December 31, 2004, the measurement date, for both participants. Unrecognized prior service cost of
$1.6 million at December 31, 2004 is being recognized over the officers' average estimated service periods. Included
on the December 31, 2004 consolidated balance sheet is an intangible asset of $1.6 million related to unamortized
prior service cost and a corresponding accrued pension liability of $2.1 million and an accumulated other
comprehensive loss of $0.5 million. Accrued benefit costs as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $8.1 million and
$6.9 million, respectively. The aggregate benefit payments over the next five years are expected to be $1.5 million.
Below is a summary of the changes in the projected benefit obligation, the assumptions used in its calculation and the
components of Retirement Plan expense for each of the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 (dollars in
thousands).

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Projected benefit obligation - beginning of year ............ccrerenne. $ 11,328 $ 10391 § 9,667

SEIVICE COSL..veverurerenreersenrrerererssssesesessmssssssatasesnsnsessessassesesnes -- -- 116

INEETESE COS...eveeueeririrrerreriereateesientereterestesesssesesesasassseraens 684 691 649

Unrecognized (gain) loss due to change in actuarial

BSSUIMPHONS ...vvoseveerrierisesesesessbeserenesemseassseoncstesessstssaeos (167) 246 (41)
Projected benefit obligation - end of year..........cccooveverveverenenenen $ 11845 § 11328 § 10391
Accumulated benefit obligation — end of year.............cc.cocrrenn.ns $ 10209 $ 9328 § 8209
Assumptions used in the calculation of the present value of the
projected benefit obligation

DISCOUNE FALE.......erieerrerie st sieseerasenesstseseese e sasaassssensoseneans 6.00% 6.25% 6.75%

Future annual compensation rate increase .............ccocoveeneeinn. 3.25% 3.50% 4.00%
Components of Retirement Plan expense

SEIVICE COBL..vorvreirereirenriieerinierenresererseessesassessesnsaesennsessana $ -- 3 -- 3 116

INEEIES COSL....viuiiuirirrieeciie e er e st st e sre s nn e 684 691 649

Prior service cost amOrtiZation ..............oceereirvvrveneessensecssnnnns 325 325 325

Net 1088 FECOZMILION ....eceverieerrermrverirerniseresnerorssrasenssrssererans 162 171 116
Total Retirement Plan eXpense........ccocveveerveerrsrerceeereesseeseenens $. 1171 § 1,187 § 1,206

The Company sponsors a Section 401(k) defined contribution plan that is available to all of the Company's
eligible employees. At its discretion, the Company may make annual matching contributions. The matching
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contributions have been funded with shares of MDC common stock, and the expense recognized by the Company for
2004, 2003 and 2002 was $3.2 million, $3.7 million and $3.4 million, respectively.

G. Stockholders' Equity

Stock Dividends and Stock Splits - On December 14, 2004, MDC's board of directors declared a stock split
in the form of a stock dividend that was distributed on January 10, 2005. On February 23, 2004, MDC’s board of
directors declared a 10% stock dividend that was distributed on March 23, 2004 to shareowners of record on March
8, 2004. In accordance with SFAS No. 128, "Earnings per Share," basic and diluted net income per share amounts,

weighted-average shares outstanding, and dividends declared per share have been restated for all periods presented
to reflect the effect of all stock dividends and splits.

Equity Incentive Plans - A summary of the Company’s equity incentive plans follows.

Employee Equity Incentive Plans - In June 1993, the Company adopted the Employee Equity Incentive Plan
(the "Employee Plan"). The Employee Plan provided for an initial authorization of 2,795,100 shares of MDC
common stock (restated for stock dividends and the stock split) for issuance thereunder, plus an additional annual
authorization equal to 10% of the then authorized shares of MDC common stock under the Employee Plan as of each
succeeding annual anniversary of the effective date of the Employee Plan. Under the Employee Plan, the Company
could grant awards of restricted stock, incentive and non-statutory stock options and dividend equivalents, or any
combination thereof, to officers and employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The incentive and non-
statutory stock options granted under the Employee Plan are exercisable at prices not less than the market value on
the date of grant over periods of up to six years. In 2003, options to purchase 325,611 shares of MDC common
stock and 12,793 shares of restricted stock were awarded under the Employee Plan. The Company's ability to make
further grants under the Employee Plan terminated pursuant to its terms on April 20, 2003.

In March 2001, the Company adopted the M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. 2001 Equity Incentive Plan (the "Equity
Incentive Plan”). The Equity Incentive Plan provided for an imitial authorization of 3,460,000 shares of MDC
common stock (restated for all stock dividends and the stock split) for issuance thereunder, plus an additional annual
authorization equal to 10% of the authorized shares of MDC common stock under the Equity Incentive Plan. In
April 2003, an additional 1,573,000 shares were authorized for issuance by vote of the Company's shareowners
(restated for the March 23, 2004 stock dividend and the January 10, 2005 stock split). The Equity Incentive Plan
provides for the grant of non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock, stock units and other stock grants to employees of the Company. Incentive stock options granted under the
Equity Incentive Plan must have an exercise price that is at least equal to the fair market value of the common stock
on the date the incentive stock option is granted. In 2004, options to purchase 1,080,755 shares of MDC common
stock and 13,391 shares of restricted stock were awarded under the Equity Incentive Plan, which vest over a period
of up to seven years.

Director Equity Incentive Plans - In March 2001, the Company adopted the M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. Stock
Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors (the "Director Stock Option Plan"). Under the Director Stock Option Plan,
non-employee directors of the Company are granted non-qualified stock options. The Director Stock Option Plan
provided for an initial authorization of 865,000 shares of MDC common stock (restated for all stock dividends and
the stock split) for issuance thereunder, plus an additional annual authorization of shares equal to 10% of the then
authorized shares of MDC common stock under the Director Stock Option Plan. Pursuant to the Director Stock
Option Plan, on October 1 of each year, each non-employee director of the Company is granted options to purchase
25,000 shares of MDC common stock. Each option granted under the Director Stock Option Plan vests immediately
and expires ten years from the date of grant. The option exercise price must be equal to 100% of the market value of
the MDC common stock on the date of grant of the option.
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A summary of the changes in stock options during each of the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002 is as follows, restated as applicable for stock dividends and the stock split (in shares of MDC common stock).

2004 2003 2002
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Options outstanding — beginning of year.. 6,432,452 $ 23.36 6,460,713 $ 1649 5,567,358 $ 1328
Granted.......coeeerreeeneniieeninennrenenenens 1,243,255 $ 60.68 1,649,925 $ 39.97 1,904,091 $ 2260
Exercised (975,927) § 11.26 (1,405,078) §$ 12.13 (830,887) $ 922
Cancelled (463,023 § 29.81 (273.108) §$ 18.80 (179.849) § 15.65
Options outstanding - end of year ............ 6,236,757 $ 3221 6,432,452 $ 23.36 6,460,713 $ 1649
Available for future grant........ccocevvuruenens 2.641.376 3.057.190 2.280.874
Total shares reserved - end of year........... 8,878,133 _ 9,489,642 8,741,587
Options exercisable December 31 ............ 2441048 % 21.98 2430152 $ 1649 2715822 § 1297

The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and exercisable options at
December 31, 2004.

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Number Remaining Average Number Average
Exercise Price Outstanding Contract Life Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
$15.35-817.95 891,894 1.28 $15.36 890,228 $15.36
$ 18.47 - $20.78 1,248,413 6.88 $18.47 907,098 $1847
$20.85-$21.39 1,211,607 4.75 $21.39 180,828 $21.39
$21.73 - $43.81 734,831 5.83 $30.32 300,394 $33.21
$ 44.68 - $46.92 939,387 8.88 $44.69 -- --
$49.05 - $68.06 1,210,625 9.86 $61.10 162,500 $57.66
6,236,757 6.42 $32.21 2,441,048 $21.98

MDC Common Stock Repurchase Programs - On March 24, 2003, the MDC board of directors authorized
the repurchase of up to an additional 1,350,000 shares of MDC common stock, bringing the total authorization under
the Company’s stock repurchase program to 4,350,000 shares. The Company repurchased a total of 727,100 shares,
prior to the March 23, 2004 10% stock dividend and the January 10, 2005 1.3 for 1 stock split, of MDC common
stock in the first quarter of 2003, bringing the total shares repurchased to 2,580,400. No shares of MDC common
stock were repurchased in the second, third or fourth quarters of 2003, leaving 1,769,600 shares available to be
repurchased as of December 31, 2003 under this program. The per share prices, including commissions, for the
727,100 shares repurchased ranged from $25.15 to $27.29 with an average cost of $25.71, adjusted for the March
23, 2004 10% stock dividend and January 10, 2005 1.3 for 1 stock split. At December 31, 2003, the Company held
4,007,000 shares of treasury stock with an average purchase price of approximately $12.56 per share.

During the 2004 second quarter, the Company repurchased 155,000 shares of MDC common stock,
adjusted for the 1.3 for 1 stock split. No shares of MDC common stock were repurchased in the first, third or fourth
quarters of 2004. As of December 31, 2004 the Company had repurchased 3,509,000 shares of MDC common stock,
leaving 2,145,000 shares available to be repurchased as of December 31, 2004 under this program. At
December 31, 2004, the Company held 31,000 shares of treasury stock with an average purchase price of
approximately $43.97 per share.
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H. Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

The following table sets forth information relating to homebuilding accounts payable and accrued liabilities
(in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
Homebuilding
Accounts payable '
Construction accounts payable............ $ 150,769 $ 136,960
Non-construction accounts payable .... 8,994 2443
Total accounts payable............ccccueeeneee 159.763 139.403
Accrued liabilities
Warranty reserves .........ooueeiecrvevvrennens 55,053 41,663
Customer deposits........ccocecverevevrrcrerens 38,791 31,433
Other accrued liabilities....................... 71.861 46.795
Total accrued liabilities ...........cccccererreen. 165.705 119,891

Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities.. § 325468 § 259,294
1. Interest Activity

The Company capitalizes interest incurred on its corporate and homebuilding debt during the period of
active development and through the completion of construction of its homebuilding inventories. Corporate and
homebuilding interest incurred but not capitalized is reported as interest expense. Interest incurred by the financial
services segment is charged to interest expense, which is deducted from interest income and reported as net interest
income in Note B. Interest activity, in total and by business segment, is shown below (in thousands).

Year Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002
Total Interest Incurred
Corporate and homebuilding .................. $ 32879 § 26779 § 21,116
Financial SErvices .......coeeevrcvierernerennnneens 1.946 1.967 1.822
Total interest incurred...........coovceervinarene § 3485 § 28746 § 22938
Corporate and Homebuilding Interest
Capitalized
Interest capitalized in homebuilding
inventory, beginning of period............ $ 20,043 3% 17,783 § 17,358
Interest incurred.......cccoceevvevrvervenveneneenee 32,879 26,779 21,116
Previously capitalized interest included
in cost of sales.......cccoevvriaveiererenirnreenes (28.702) (24,519) (20.,691)
Interest capitalized in homebuilding
inventory, end of period.........ccuenne. § 24220 § 20043 § 17,783
Financial Services Net Interest Income
Interest iNCOME ......ceevvvververervereerirererirens $ 5785 $ 6,583 § 6,170
[NtETESt EXPEMSE ....vvvecrenrrrerereriansnennrrasnnes (1.946) (1.967) (1.822)
Net interest iNCOME......covvvrirerreernrrennes $ 3839 $ 4616 3 4348
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J. Income Taxes

The significant components of the provision for income taxes are as follows (in thousands).

Year Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002
Current tax expense
Federal.......ccooucviivnnerenireercrnnnensninneiereinssssnns s $220,662 $123,630 § 88,999
SHALE c.eveierevireeeirrcrrenierest st b e enesens 33.954 18,480 13,639
Total CUITENL....c..coceererreecereririerrciete e cestereseeseenees 254616 142110 102,638
Deferred tax expense (benefit)
Federal.....cocvnivrnerenrireererernienisesneseeso e ssssnes (8,486) (5.473) 3,906
SHALE .veveveiererertrsererierrineseeronnnrserrsss e sssasr s sesesens (38D (643) 195
Total deferred...........covevervemrnrncniennerneeeesenresenens (8.867) (6,116) 4,101
Provision for income taxes..........c.ceevetrreeevinencrseneenenns $245749 $135994  §106,739

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount that would be computed by applying the statutory
federal income tax rate of 35% to income before income taxes as a result of the following (in thousands).

Year Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002
Tax expense computed at statutory rate .........o.ceeee. $222920 $121,878 § 95915
Increase due to
Permanent differences between financial
statement income and taxable income .............. 192 175 175
State income tax, net of federal benefit................ 22,292 13,929 8,615
Other, NEL .....ccevevererrecreerenierresseereresssesseennseneones 345 12 2.034
Provision for INCOME taXES.....ucurereerienreeeereererserrernnes $245749 $135994 $106,739
EffectiVe taX Tate ......oveveucuviverreerirerererecessererersssssnenes 38.6% 39.0% __39.0%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of the assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The tax
effects of significant temporary differences that give rise to the net deferred tax asset are as follows (in thousands).

December 31,
2004 2003
Deferred tax assets
Warranty, litigation and other reserves................... $ 35474 § 27,160
Inventory impairment charges..........coouevererierneennans 1,879 2,284
Accrued Habilities.........coocvcreereverernrernerenrresiernnnnens 7,484 7,012
Inventory, additional costs capitalized for tax
PUTPOSES ..cevrraerareersaerersiseesansesssssernensestossosersasnes 10,576 11.295
Total gross deferred tax assets...........ccocvevenene. 55.413 47,751
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred revenue........cocevvvevrcnrvenieecrereeressensnnenens 7,342 8,014
Inventory, additional costs capitalized for financial
StAterEnt PULPOSES ..c.veevvereiserrrersecssersnersioseasnessens 1,193 1,153
Property, equipment and other assets, net............... 1,615 1,305
Subsidiaries not consolidated for tax purposes....... 2,082 2,345
L0117 25 1= SO UUOR RSO 2,218 2.838
Total gross deferred tax liabilities ................... 14.450 15.655
Net deferred tax asset........ccoeriverererersieieneereninaennns $ 40963 § 32,096
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K. Earnings Per Share

Pursuant to SFAS No. 128, "Earnings per Share," the computation of diluted earnings per share takes into
account the effect of dilutive stock options. Weighted-average shares outstanding and per share amounts have been
adjusted for the effects of the 10% stock dividend distributed on March 23, 2004, as well as the 1.3 for 1 stock split
effective January 10, 2005. The basic and diluted earnings per share calculations are shown below (in thousands,
except per share amounts).

Year Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

Basic Earnings Per Share

NEL INCOME ....ceoecniriricreic st eaerererenenae $391,165 $212220 §$167,305

Basic weighted-average shares outstanding............ 42,560 41,52] 42,103

Per share amounts...........cccoveveeereerrevererenierninserenens $§ 919 ¢ s511 § 397
Diluted Earnings Per Share

NEt INCOME ..ot ce e e sae e e $391,165 $212229 § 167,305

Basic weighted-average shares outstanding............ 42,560 41,521 42,103

Stock options, Net........cvevernreererirniniiernresesineenens 1,938 1,812 1,553

Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding......... 44,498 43,333 43,656

Per share amounts...........coceevevererirnnierrnneeonennens § 879 $ 49 § 383

L. Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of business, the Company is a defendant in cases primarily relating to construction
defects. These cases seek relief from the Company under various theories, including breach of implied and express
warranty, negligence, strict liability, misrepresentation and violation of consumer protection statutes. The Company
has reserved for these cases based upon information provided to it by its legal counsel, including counsel's ongoing
evaluation of the merits of the claims and defenses and the likelihood of the Company prevailing in these cases. In
the opinion of management, the outcome of these matters will not have a material adverse effect upon the financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

M. Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For cash and cash equivalents, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of
fair value.

Investments and Marketable Securities, Net - Investments in marketable equity securities (other than the
QSF assets, see Note A) are recorded on the balance sheet at cost, which approximates market value. Accordingly,
the carrying value of the investment is a reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Mortgage Loans Held in Inventory - The Company generally purchases forward commitments to deliver
mortgage loans held for sale. For loans that have no forward commitments, loans in inventory are stated at the lower
of cost or market. The carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Lines of Credit - The Company's lines of credit are at floating rates or at fixed rates that approximate

current market rates and have relatively short-term maturities. The carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair
value.
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Senior Notes - The estimated fair value of the senior notes in the following table are based on dealer quotes
(in thousands).

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Recorded Estimated Recorded Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
7% Senior Notes due 2012 ....uecvrveciieenninecinrinenn, $ 148,688 $ 168,225 § 148565 $ 166,805
5%2% Senior Notes due 2013 ........cocoevvivvvevrirernine $ 349,197 § 356,188 § 349,135 $ 350,970
5%% Medium-Term Senior Notes due 2014......... $ 248425 § 248700 $ -- ¥ --

N. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company believes that it is subject to risks and uncertainties common to the homebuilding industry,
including (1) cyclical markets sensitive to changes in general and local economic conditions; (2) volatility of interest
rates, which affects homebuilding demand and may affect credit availability; (3) seasonal nature of the business due
to weather-related factors; (4) significant fluctuations in the price of building materials, particularly lumber, and of
finished lots and subcontract labor; (5) counter-party non-performance risk associated with performance bonds;
(6) competition; (7) the availability and cost of performance bonds and insurance covering risks associated with our
business; (8) slow growth initiatives; (9)building moratoria; (10) governmental regulation, including the
interpretation of tax, labor and environmental laws; and (11) changes in consumer confidence and preferences. The
Company's operations are concentrated in the geographic regions of Colorado, Virginia, Maryland, California,
Arizona, Nevada, Utah, Texas, Illinois, Philadelphia/Delaware Valley and Florida.

The Company has purchase obligations relating to open work orders and estimates for land to be developed
and homes under construction for which the Company has not received an invoice for work to be completed totaling
$142.9 million at December 31, 2004,

To reduce exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, HomeAmerican makes commitments to originate (buy)
and sell loans and mortgage-backed securities. At December 31, 2004, commitments by Home American to originate
mortgage loans totaled $69.9 million at market rates of interest. At December 31, 2004, unexpired short-term
forward commitments to sell loans totaled $77.1 million at market rates of interest.

MDC leases office space, equipment and certain of its model show homes under non-cancelable operating
leases. Future minimum rental payments for leases with initial terms in excess of one year total $12.5 million in
2005, $10.6 million in 2006, $9.3 million in 2007, $8.6 million in 2008 and $6.2 million in 2009 and thereafter. Rent
expense under cancelable and non-cancelable leases totaled $16.4 million, $12.1 million and $8.4 million in 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Company often is required to obtain bonds and letters of credit in support of its related obligations with
respect to subdivision improvement, homeowners association dues and start-up expenses, warranty work, contractors
license fees, earnest money deposits, etc. At December 31, 2004, the Company had issued and outstanding
performance bonds and letters of credit totaling $306.8 million and $94.7 million, respectively, including
$25.6 million in letters of credit issued by HomeAmerican. In the event any such bonds or letters of credit issued by
third parties are called, MDC would be obligated to reimburse the issuer of the bond or letter of credit.

O. Related Party Transactions

MDC has transacted business with related or affiliated companies and with certain officers and directors of
the Company.

Certain affiliates of an officer and director of the Company sublease office space from the Company, for

which they paid rent, including parking, of approximately $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

Gilbert Goldstein, P.C., a law firm of which a director of the Company is the sole shareholder, was paid
legal fees of $0.3 million, $0.2 million, and $0.2 million in 2004, 2003, and 2002.
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The spouse of an officer and director of the Company owns a company that provides consulting services to
the Company. Total fees paid for these services were $0.2 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

During 2004, the Company contributed 115,296 shares, adjusted for the 1.3 for 1 stock split, of MDC
common stock then valued at $6.3 million to the M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. Charitable Foundation (the "Foundation"), a
Delaware not-for-profit corporation that was incorporated on September 30, 2000. During 2003, the Company
contributed 88,989 shares, adjusted for 1.3 for 1 stock split, then valued at $4.0 million to the Foundation. The
Company made no contributions to the Foundation in 2002. The Foundation is a nonprofit organization operated
exclusively for charitable, educational and other purposes beneficial to social welfare within the meaning of section
501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Certain directors and officers of the Company are the trustees and officers
of the Foundation. The Foundation takes action with respect to shares held by it, including the voting of such
shares, by majority vote of the five member board of trustees and, accordingly, none of the trustees should be
considered to beneficially own such shares.

P. Summarized Quarterly Consolidated Financial Information (Unaudited)

Unaudited summarized quarterly consolidated financial information for the two years ended
December 31, 2004 is as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts). Weighted-average shares outstanding and
per share amounts have been adjusted for the effects of the 10% stock dividend distributed on March 23, 2004, as
well as the January 10, 2005 1.3 for 1 stock split.

Quarter
Fourth Third Second First

2004
REVEDUES ...c.oceenieeemicnicinircrsnnesesssrsrssaerens $1,343.858 $1,026,129 § 875483 § 763,604
Home gross profit margin..........ccoooverevnirniernnnns $ 371528 § 283894 § 237643 § 195405
NEtINCOME ..o recesess et e $§ 142623 § 105073 § 823568 § 60901
Earnings Per Share

BaSIC ...cvveeeirrerrteerr oo seerere e senens $ 331 8 247 § 195 3 1.44

DI ..ottt 3 317 % 236 % 187 § 1.38
Weighted-Average Shares Outstanding

BasiC ...ttt 43,117 42,493 - 42318 42,306

Diluted.....covovvieeirereee e 44.960 44442 44,233 44,282

Quarter
Fourth Third _ Second _ __ First

2003
REVENUES .....cvverrrenirernriesrere e sesaeceresenisasircsienens $ 862,080 $ 798906 § 689442 3 596,642
Home gross profit margin............ccovveeevvincrnninn, $ 211718 § 193487 $ 156454 § 125973
NELIICOME .vvveeiriaviierererereereareressesnsssereesesensres $ 67022 § 65476 $ 42,694 3 37037
Eamings Per Share

BasiC ..ottt sena e seseens b 1.59 § .57 § 104 % 90

Diluted.....cccovriviieieieecee e $ 1.52 § 1.51 3 1.00 § 87
Weighted-Average Shares Outstanding

BAaSIC ..vvcecerriecenieitereee et seen st srees 42,073 41,564 41,024 41,463

Diluted......ccovieereirecereienirec e 44,041 43,333 42,781 42,804
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Q. Supplemental Guarantor Information

The Company’s senior notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on an unsecured basis, jointly and
severally by the following subsidiaries (collectively, the "Guarantor Subsidiaries").

M.D.C. Land Corporation

RAH of Texas, LP

RAH Texas Holdings, LLC

RAH of Florida, Inc.

Richmond American Construction, Inc.
Richmond American Homes of Arizona, Inc.
Richmond American Homes of California, Inc.
Richmond American Homes of Colorado, Inc.
Richmond American Homes of Florida, LP.
Richmond American Homes of Maryland, Inc.
Richmond American Homes of Nevada, Inc.
Richmond American Homes of Texas, Inc.
Richmond American Homes of Utah, Inc.
Richmond American Homes of Virginia, Inc.
Richmond American Homes of West Virginia, Inc.
Richmond American Homes of Delaware, Inc.
Richmond American Homes of Illinois, Inc.
Richmond American Homes of New Jersey, Inc.
Richmond American Homes of Pennsylvania, Inc.

Subsidiaries that do not guarantee the Company's senior notes (collectively, the "Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries") primarily consist of.

American Home Insurance Agency, Inc.

American Home Title and Escrow Company
HomeAmerican Mortgage Corporation

Lion Insurance Company

StarAmerican Insurance Ltd.

Allegiant Insurance Company, Inc., A Risk Retention Group
AHT Reinsurance, Inc

The Company has determined that separate, full financial statements of the Guarantor Subsidiaries would
not be material to investors and, accordingly, supplemental financial information for the Guarantor Subsidiaries is
presented.
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M.D.C. Holdings, Inc.
Supplemental Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2004
(In thousands)
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating
ASSETS MDC Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Entries Total
Corporate
Cash and cash equivalents ...................... $ 389,828 § --  $ --  § -- § 389,828
Investments in and advances to parent
and subsidiaries........cocvcvvrrvcrnreninienens 551,597 1,246 (3,104)  (549,739) --
Other @SSEtS ...v.vveererriereerecrerenivesrenersnns 85.177 207 (796) -- 84.588
1,026,602 1.453 (3.900) _(549.739) 474416
Homebuilding
Cash and cash equivalents ..................... -- 12,252 4,709 -- 16,961
Home sales and other accounts
TECEIVADIE ....uverrrrecreeercreeresreere e -- 34,144 1,477 (4,603) 31,018
Inventories, net
Housing completed or under
CONSIUCHION ..cocvererieeiieeeieccceeeree s -- 851,628 -- -- 851,628
Land and land under development ...... -- 1,109,953 -- -- 1,109,953
Other @SSetS......cccovevrerrienrennenrnrensenerees -- 100,997 29.047 (14,500) 115,544
-- _2.108974 35.233 (19.103) 2.125.104
Financial Services.....ccccovvvereinivenieninrneerences -- -- 190,524 -- 190,524
Total ASSEtS...c.coverereeermnrenrnrnnnnnns $1,026,602 $2,110427 § 221,857 $(568,842) $£2,790,044
LIABILITIES
Corporate
Accounts payable and accrued
EXPEIISES «...ovevveecerrerererarersrererorsesesesenes $ 109,550 $ 130 § 48 § (15,550) $ 94,178
Advances and notes payable — parent
and SubsiGIaTIES ...vcovvieeerereiriiieiieenens (1,057,552) 1,043,249 14,303 -- --
Income taxes payable.....c..coccoverercneenins (189,489) 236,466 4,002 -- 50,979
Senior NOtes, Net ....c.cvvvevevreueeervrereernerens 746,310 -- - - -- 746,310
(391.181) _1,279.845 18,353 (15.550) 891.467
Homebuilding
Accounts payable and accrued
EXPEMSES 1.vuvrrrrererorerresesiersrnnmsuesesssosasens -- 305,894 19,574 -- 325,468
Line of credit .......coceevveeeeneienncnnecineennns -~ -- -- -- --
-- 305,894 19.574 -- 325468
Financial Services.......ccoveevervnrcivinrerveervecnne -- -- 157,841 (3.553) 154,288
Total Liabilities..........ccccocvvvvrrennnne (391.181) _1.585.739 195,768 (19.103) 1.371.223
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY ................ 1,417.783 524.688 26.089 (549.739) 1.418.821
Total Liabilities and
Stockholders' Equity................. $1,026,602 $2,110427 § 221857 § (568,842) $2,790,044
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M.D.C. Holdings, Inc.
Supplemental Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2003
(In thousands)
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating
ASSETS MDC Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Entries Total
Corporate
Cash and cash equivalents ..................... $ 163,133 § --  $ -- -~ § 163,133
Investments in and advances to parent
and subsidiaries.........ecoveverviereierernenes 377,353 1,112 (18,537)  (359,928) --
Other aSSetS ....o.ovvvviererercveeecorunnreiereresenee 55.866 22 (1.948) -- 53.940
596.352 1,134 (20.485) _(359.928) 217,073
Homebuilding
Cash and cash equivalents ............c..c.ve.. -- 6,335 1,911 -- 8,246
Home sales and other accounts
1ECEIVADIE ..o -- 12,538 503 (4,647) 8,394
Inventories, net
Housing completed or under
CONSHUCHON ....everereerrrerreereranneeasees -- 732,744 -- -- 732,744
Land and land under development ...... -- 763,569 -- -- 763,569
Other assets........covuvrveereereresrenvesrnrsearanene -- 65.876 22.543 -- 88.419
-- _1.581.062 24957 (4.647) 1.601.372
Financial Services........c.ccervvreverrnveraeseereene -- -- 151,355 -- 151,355
Total ASSELS.....uceveeueervcersrencerenns $ 596352 $1,582,196 § 155827 $(364.575) $1,969,800
LIABILITIES
Corporate
Accounts payable and accrued
EXPEISES ..evevererererrrarraeererissassersensaresnns $ 72344 § 70 3 48 (250) $ 72212
Advances and notes payable — parent
and subsidiaries.........c.occoevvurcreereienene (885,966) 871,875 14,091 -- --
Income taxes payable......cccocevvrerreeneceianens (101,816) 122,787 4,040 -- 25,011
Senior notes, Net ........ccceeveceereerercirenseenes 497,700 -- -- -- 497,700
(417,738) 994,732 18,179 (250) 594.923
Homebuilding
Accounts payable and accrued
EXPEISES ..oeeeverrerierrreaneaseresseseasessrarases -- 251,275 8,019 -- 259,294
Notes payable .........cccovicriimrrercsniniinnes -- 2,479 -- -- 2479
Line of credit ....cocvveveenrencrnininecnecsanens -- -- -- -- --
-- 253,754 8,019 -- 261,773
Financial SErviCes.......coovvevvirierenrierenueresneres -- -- 101,593 (4.409) 97.184
Total Liabilities..........cccerrvererurenen (417.738) _1,248.486 127,791 (4.659) 953.880
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY ................ 1.014.090 333.710 28.036 (359.916) 1,015,920
Total Liabilities and
Stockholders' Equity........c.c.u... $ 596,352 $1,582,196 § 155827 § (364,575) $1,969.800
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M.D.C. Holdings, Inc.
Supplemental Combining Statements of Income
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2004

Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating
MDC Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Entries Total
REVENUES
Homebuilding ........ccevervrvnrreverrrenierinnnns $ -- $3944872 § 7419 § (647) $3,951,644
Financial services.......c.coccvnrerriernreisinenennan -- -- 56,610 -- 56,610
COTPOrate .....ocovrrerercrireneeresreresennreesessenes 789 -- 29 -- 818
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries ............. 389,358 -- -- (389.358) --
Total Revenues...........coceevrereeennene 390.147 3.944.872 64,058 (390.005) _4.009.072
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Homebuilding ........cccoceevevereeccnenninecenvennans 968 3,334,326 1,978 (104,825) 3,232,447
Financial Services........cc.ccoeeerrvvrreneerencnenns -- -- 38,127 -- 38,127
Corporate general and administrative ....... 101,584 -- -- -- 101,584
Corporate and homebuilding interest........ (104.825) -- -- 104,825 --
Total Expenses ..........cccovvervcrenerenee (2.273) _3.334.326 40.105 -- 3,372.158
Income before income taxes ............c.c.eu... 392,420 610,546 23,953 (390,005) 636,914
Provision for income taxes ............ceeeeerne (204) _(236.466) (9.079) -- (245.749)
NET INCOME..........conmririerenreeerereccnnen $.392216 §374080 § 14874 $(390005) $ 391,165
Year Ended December 31, 2003
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating
MDC Subsidiaries = Subsidiaries Entries Total
REVENUES
Homebuilding .........ccocvvvevercineinnnicincenrenenns $ -- $2,854560 $ 4948 % (422) $2,859,086
Financial ServiCes......couvuvevrvnrrerivrivsvveeenns -- -~ 60,216 -- 60,216
COTPOTALE ......ovvimrreriririen it saenes 739 -- 29 -- 768
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries ............. 210,573 - -- (210.573) --
Total Revenues.........ccoccevevirnienene. 211.312  2.854.560 65,193 (210.995) _2.920.070
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Homebuilding ........cccoocveinvirinncncriveneecrenenn 843 2,545,552 57N (81,131) 2,465,207
Financial Services.........coveevvervieveevveennnns -- -- 31,939 -- 31,939
Expenses related to debt redemption ........ 9,315 -- - - -- 9,315
Corporate general and administrative ....... 65,386 -- -- -- 65,386
Corporate and homebuilding interest........ (81.131) - - -- 81,131 --
Total EXPenses ........ccoceevrerirecrenenees (5.587) 2.545.552 31.882 -- 2,571,847
Income before income taxes ..........ccccovenene 216,899 309,008 33,311 (210,995) 348,223
Provision for income taxes ..........ooeeeereen (220) _(122.78%) (12.986) -~ _(135994)
NET INCOME........ccooveiirnirireeieeneeanns $ 216,679 §$ 186,220 $ 20,325 $(210995) § 212,229
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M.D.C. Holdings, Inc.
Supplemental Combining Statements of Income
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2002

Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating
MDC Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Entries Total
REVENUES ‘
Homebuilding ........ccocovveerivencciennicrereenen $ -- $2268996 $ 3493 § (294) $2,272,195
Financial SErvices........cccerevveerrveerenserrnnnns -- -- 45,356 -- 45,356
COTPOTALE ....cecrernnirerniensisrnenireeeariasones 947 -- 26 -- 973
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries ............. 185,452 -- -- (185.452) --
Total Revenues...........cecevuervvernennenn 186,399  2.268.996 48.875 (185.746) _2.318.524
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Homebuilding .......ccooceevevevenccervenviavereennens 480 1,993,711 1,062 (18,662) 1,976,591
Financial SErviCes........ccoveerrrercercerarennareccns -- -- 21,162 -- 21,162
Corporate general and administrative ....... 46,727 -- -- -- 46,727
Corporate and homebuilding interest........ _(18.662) -- - - 18.662 - -
Total EXPenses .....ccocecvvieveerrvvneervenes 28545 1993711 22224 -- 2.044 480
Income before income taxes .........ocveveenene 157,854 275,285 26,651 (185,746) 274,044
Provision for income taxes .......cccoeererenen. 12474 (108.828) (10.38%5) -- (106.739)
NETINCOME..........ccooerirmrrccnrercrerecrenen $ 170328 §$ 166457 §_ 16266 $(185746) $§ 167,305

F-29




M.D.C. Holdings, Inc.

Supplemental Combining Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)
Year Ended December 31, 2004
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating  Consolidated
MDC Subsidiarjes Subsidiaries Entries MDC
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities.......................... $ (26,147) §$ 34228 § (31,298) $ 647y $_ (23.864)
Net cash used in investing activities ....... (23,358) (6,198) (361) - - (29.917)
Financing Activities
Net increase (reduction) in borrowings
from parent and subsidiaries ............... 44,719 (22,113) (22,606) - - --
Lines of credit
© AQVANCES e, 1,760,500 -- 56,238 -- 1,816,738
Principal payments...............co..oue. (1,760,500) -- -- --  (1,760,500)
Net proceeds from issuance of senior notes 246,575 -- -- -- 246,575
Dividend payments ...........c.coveveninninnn, (19,271) -- -- 647 (18,624)
Stock repurchases..........cocvvvnininininennn. (6,812) -- -- -- (6,812)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options .... 10,989 -- - - -- 10,989
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
ACTIVAITIES oo vetenrirvieeiivncereereraeeneenens 276,200 (22,113) 33,632 647 288,366
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
eqUIVAlENLS ...ooivieiiiii 226,695 5,917 1,973 -- 234,585
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year ..........ccocoeervvennenen. 163,133 6,335 4.097 - - 173,565
End of year........coeeoveueeiiiinieinnennenn. $ 38088 $§ 12252 $§ 6070 §  -- $ 408,150
Year Ended December 31, 2003
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating  Consolidated
MDC Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Entries MDC
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities.......................... $ 21846 $ (341200 § 96.623 $ (422) $§ 83,927
Net cash used in investing activities ....... (2,088) (3,700 (997) - - (6.785)
Financing Activities
Net increase (reduction) in borrowings
from parent and subsidiaries ............... (21,682) 39,984 (18,302) - - --
Lines of credit
AQVanCeS ...ooovviiieriiiieire e 2,353,400 -- -- -- 2,353,400
Principal payments ...........cocoeevienne. (2,353,400) -- (74,834) --  (2,428,234)
Senior Notes
Proceeds from issuance................... 346,148 -- -- -- 346,148
Redemption.........ccoeviviniiinineninnn. (175,000) -- “- -- (175,000)
Premium on redemption.................. (7,329) -- -- -- (7,329)
Dividend payments .........c..c.ocovevieninnen, (12,234) -- -- 422 (11,812)
Stock repurchases........c.ccoveviienenineninen. (26,731) -- -- -- (26,731)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ... 17,039 - - - - - - 17,039
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
ACHVILES «.vvveniniiiie i 120,211 39,984 (93.136) 422 67,481
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents .. 139,969 2,164 2,490 -- 144,623
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year .............cocvvvinnnnn, 23,164 4,171 1,607 - - 28,942
End Of Year.....cevveeeenieriniinienieninnenens $ 163,133 § 6,335 § 4097 $  -- $ 173,565
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M.D.C. Holdings, Inc.
Supplemental Combining Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)
Year Ended December 31, 2002

Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating  Consolidated
MDC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries MDC
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities.................c...ce.. $ 14770 $ (140,207) $ (40.698) $ (294) $ (166.429)
Net cash used in investing activities ....... (10.177) (2,018) (246) -- (12,441
Financing Activities
Net increase (reduction) in borrowings
from parent and subsidiaries ............... (129,237) 142,044 (12,807 -- --
Lines of credit
Advances .....ocoviiiiiiiiiiien e, 2,573,200 -- 54,432 -- 2,627,632
Principal payments ...........cocovennnnn. (2,573,200) -- -- --  (2,573,200)
Net proceeds from issuance of senior notes 146,791 -- - - - - 146,791
Dividend payments ........c....coevveninennnns, (8,586) -- -- 294 (8,292)
Stock repurchases.......covvviivnininiiinannn, (29,403) -- - - -- (29,403)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ... 7.684 - - - - - - 7.684
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
ACHIVILIES o vvevvevvnereirenreiereererernenennenes (12,751) 142,044 41,625 294 171,212
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
eqUIVAIENLS ...evvvniriiiienia e (8,158) (181) 681 -- (7,658)
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year ...........c.cooovineninn, 31,322 4,352 926 - - 36,600
End of year.........c..coeevneevnerinneennnnnn. $. 23164 § 4,171 $ 1607 $.___ -- $_ 28942
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures was performed under the supervision, and with the participation, of the Company's management,
including the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer. Based on that evaluation, the Company's
management, including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, concluded that the Company's
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the chief executive officer
and the chief financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2004.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as
stated in their report which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth
quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of M.D.C. Holdings, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting, that M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issned by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the
COSO criteria). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Qur responsibility is
to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit. ‘

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO
criteria. Also, in our opinion, M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, and our report dated February 15, 2005
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/Ernst & Young LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 15, 2005
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Item 9B. Other Information.

None

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The information required with respect to directors and executive officers is incorporated herein by
reference, when filed, from the Company's proxy statement (the "Proxy Statement") for the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on or about April 21, 2005, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). The
information with respect to our audit committee financial expert is incorporated herein by reference, when filed, from
the Proxy Statement.

We will provide to any shareholder or other person without charge, upon request, a copy of our Corporate
Code of Conduct, Corporate Governance Guidelines, code of ethics applicable to our chief executive officer and
senior financial officers and the charters for our Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Corporate
Governance/Nominating Committee. You may obtain these documents on our website at
http.//www.richmondamerican.com, under our Investor Relations section or by contacting our Investor Relations
department at 303-804-7708. Our intention is to post on our website any amendments to or waivers from our code of
ethics applicable to our chief executive officer and senior financial officers if such disclosure is required.

The information regarding filings under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is incorporated herein by
reference, when filed from the Proxy Statement.

Pursuant to Section 303A.12(a) of the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual, the Company
submitted the Annual CEQ Certification to the NYSE on May 14, 2004.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Information required to be set forth hereunder has been omitted and will be incorporated by reference, when
filed, from the Company's Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.
The following table provides information as of December 31, 2004 with respect to the shares of MDC

common stock that may be issued under existing equity compensation plans, all of which have been approved by the
shareowners.

Common Shares to be Weighted-Average Common Shares Remaining
Issued Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Available for Future Issuance Under
Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Equity Compensation Plans
Employee Equity Incentive Plan .. 1,948,345 $ 1974 --
Equity Incentive Plan. ................... 3,831,520 $ 37.58 2,244,024
Director Stock Option Plan........... 456,892 $ 40.37 397,352
Total equity compensation plans
approved by shareowners.......... 6,236,757 $ 3221 2,641,376

Please refer to the discussion of the Company's equity incentive plans in Note G to the Company's
consolidated financial statements for a description of the plans and the types of grants, in addition to options, that
may be made under the plans. The referenced discussion also describes the formula by which the number of
securities available for issuance under the current plans automatically increases.
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Other information required to be set forth hereunder has been omitted and will be incorporated by
reference, when filed, from the Company's Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

Information required to be set forth hereunder has been omitted and will be incorporated by reference, when
filed, from the Company’s Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Information required to be set forth hereunder has been omitted and will be incorporated by reference,
when filed, from the Company's Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a)(1) Financial Statements.

The following consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are included in Part II,

Item 8.
Page
M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Report of Independent AUGILOrS .......coevverieicriireeenreesere ettt ese et rs s b be s sasssss e reb e aeenaee F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 .........ccovvveveeinerenne. F-3
Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the Three Years in the Period Ended
December 31, 2004 ..ottt sttt r e e ar e s e s be s s be ettt e erbe e et e sebs e basesabesereseneen F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for each of the Three Years in the Period Ended
DecembEr 31, 2004 ......oooeiiiiiieeriiieeriieres s e st esareeat e sraesase s e ae s sesae s bes s saneeat s et beernne s rereresesnreenrennts F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the Three Years in the Period Ended
December 31,2004 ..ottt s e s et st s bt s e st e sb s e e hanesnt e s besesare sabasaates F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial StAtemEntS........coccvvierivenrrriieeeeeeiisiee st ssreseesvessssssssesssossssseseossoressesses F-8

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules.

All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, not material, not required or the required

information is included in the applicable financial statements or notes thereto.

(2)(3) Exhibits.

3.1

32

33

34

4.1

42

Form of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. (hereinafter
sometimes referred to as "MDC", the "Company" or the "Registrant") regarding director liability,
filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on July 1, 1987 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.1(a) of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated June 30, 1987). *

Form of Certificate of Incorporation of MDC, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.1(b) of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated June 30, 1987). *

Form of Amendment to the Bylaws of MDC regarding indemnification adopted by its board of
directors and effective as of March 20, 1987 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2(a) of
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated June 30, 1987). *

Form of Bylaws of MDC, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2(b) of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated June 30, 1987). *

Indenture dated as of December 3, 2002, by and among MDC and U.S. Bank National Association

(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's Form S-3/A filed September 1,
2004). *

Form of Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 3, 2002, by and among MDC, the
Guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association (including without limitation the
form of 7.0% Senior Notes due 2012 and form of Guarantee appended to such Supplemental
Indenture) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's Form 8-K filed
December 3, 2002). *
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4.3

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

49

10.1

10.2

Form of Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 19, 2003, by and among MDC, the Guarantors
party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association (including without limitation the form of 5 1/2%
Senior Notes due 2013 and form of Guarantee appended to such Supplemental Indenture)
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated May 19, 2003).
*

Second Supplemental Indenture (7.0% Senior Notes Due 2012), dated as of September 29, 2003,
by and among MDC, U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, and Richmond American Homes
of Florida, LP, a Colorado limited partnership and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as
Additional Guarantor, including the Guaranty signed by the Additional Guarantor (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q dated September 30, 2003). *

Second Supplemental Indenture (5.5% Senior Notes Due 2013), dated as of September 29, 2003,
by and among MDC, U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, and Richmond American Homes
of Florida, LP, a Colorado limited partnership and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as
Additional Guarantor, including the Guaranty signed by the Additional Guarantor (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's Form 10-Q dated September 30, 2003). *

Third Supplemental Indenture (7.0% Senior Notes Due 2012), dated as of February 12, 2004, by
and among MDC, U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, and the following wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company: Richmond American Homes of Delaware, Inc., a Colorado
corporation, Richmond American Homes of Illinois, Inc., a Colorado corporation, Richmond
American Homes of New Jersey, Inc., a Colorado corporation, and Richmond American Homes of
Pennsylvania, Inc., a Colorado corporation, as Additional Guarantors, including the Guaranty
signed by the Additional Guarantors (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.6 of the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2003). *

Third Supplemental Indenture (5.5% Senior Notes Due 2013), dated as of February 12, 2004, by
and among MDC, U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, and the following wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company: Richmond American Homes of Delaware, Inc., a Colorado
corporation, Richmond American Homes of Illinois, Inc., a Colorado corporation, Richmond
American Homes of New Jersey, Inc., a Colorado corporation, and Richmond American Homes of
Pennsylvania, Inc., a Colorado corporation, as Additional Guarantors, including the Guaranty
signed by the Additional Guarantors (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.7 of the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2003). *

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 6, 2004, by and among MDC, the Guarantors party
thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, with respect to MDC's Medium Term
Senior Notes (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 8-K dated
October 6, 2004). *

Pricing Supplement No.1, dated December 6, 2004, with respect to MDC's 5.375% Medium Term
Senior Notes due 2014 (incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Rule 424(b)(2) filing
on December 8, 2004). *

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of January 28, 2005, among MDC as Borrower
and the Lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Administrative Agent, including
form of Amended and Restated Guaranty and form of Promissory Note.

Third Amended and Restated Warehousing Credit Agreement dated as of October 23, 2003,
among HomeAmerican Mortgage Corporation and the Banks that are signatories thereto and U.S.
Bank National Association, as administrative agent (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 10-Q dated September 30, 2003). *
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

First Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Warehousing Credit Agreement dated February
27, 2004 among HomeAmerican Mortgage Corporation and the Banks that are signatories thereto
and U.S. Bank National Association as administrative agent (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 10-Q dated June 30, 2004). *

Second Amendment to Third Amended and restated Warehousing Credit Agreement, dated
September 28, 2004, among HomeAmerican Mortgage Corporation and the Banks that are
signatories thereto and U.S. Bank National Associations as administrative agent (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 10-Q dated September 30, 2004). *

The Company's Employee Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A of
the Company's Proxy Statement dated May 14, 1993 relating to the 1993 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders). *

Form of Non-Statutory Option Agreement (Employee Equity Incentive Plan).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (Employee Equity Incentive Plan) (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company's Form 10-K dated December 31, 1998). *

M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. 2001 Equity Incentive Plan Effective March 26, 2001 (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit B of the Company's Proxy Statement dated March 31, 2001 relating to the
2001 Annual Meeting of Stockholders). *

First Amendment to M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. 2001 Equity Incentive Plan, effective April 28, 2003
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 10-Q dated
March 31, 2003). *

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Certificate (2001 Equity Incentive Plan).
Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2001 Equity Incentive Plan).

M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors Effective March 26, 2001
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit C of the Company's Proxy Statement dated
March 31, 2001 relating to the 2001 Annual Meeting of Stockholders). *

First Amendment to M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors,
October 20, 2003.

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee
Directors).

Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into between the Registrant and each member of its board
of directors as of March 20, 1987 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 19.1 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated June 30, 1987). *

Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into between the Registrant and certain officers of the
Registrant on various dates during 1988 and early 1989 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.18(b) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1988). *

Indemnification Agreements by and among the Company and Larry A. Mizel and David D.
Mandarich dated December 21, 1989 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 9 of the
Company's Form 8-K dated December 28, 1989). *
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10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

12
21

23

Consulting Agreement, effective as of March 1, 2003, by and between Gilbert Goldstein, P.C. and
the Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 10-Q dated
March 31, 2003). *

Amendment to Consulting Agreement, July 26, 2004, by and between Gilbert Goldstein, P.C. and
the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q dated June 30, 2004). *

M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. Executive Officer Performance-Based Compensation Plan (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit A to the Company's Proxy Statement dated May 25, 1994 related to
the 1994 Meeting of Stockholders). *

Employment Agreement between the Company and Larry A. Mizel, restated as of
February 26, 2003 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Company's Form 8-K
dated February 26, 2003). *

Employment Agreement between the Company and David D. Mandarich, restated as of
February 26, 2003 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 of the Company's Form §-K
dated February 26, 2003). *

Change in Control Agreement between the Company and Paris G. Reece III effective
January 26, 1998 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Form 8-K
dated March 27, 1998). *

Change in Control Agreement between the Company and Michael Touff effective
January 26, 1998 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form 8-K
dated March 27, 1998). *

Form of Change in Control Agreement between the Company and certain employees of M.D.C.
Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 8-K dated
March 27, 1998). *

Independent Contractor Agreement between Mizel Design and Decorating Company and the
Company effective as of January 1, 2005,

M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. 401(k) Savings Plan Prototype Retirement Plan and Trust (incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated
December 31, 2002). *

M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. 401(k) Savings Plan Prototype Retirement Plan and Trust Adoption
Agreement between M.D.C. Holdings, Inc. and INVESCO/BankOne, as of January 1, 2003
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.21 of the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K dated December 31, 2002). *

2003 Post-EGTRRA Amendments (401(k) Savings Plan Prototype Retirement Plan and Trust),
dated December 30, 2003. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.31 of the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2003). *

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges Schedule.

Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.
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311

31.2

321

32.2

Certification of Chief Executive Officer required by 17 CFR 240.13a-14(a), pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer required by 17 CFR 240.13a-14(a), pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer required by 17 CFR 240.13a-14(b), pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer required by 17 CFR 240.13a-14(b), pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on this 17% day of February, 2005 on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized.

M.D.C. HOLDINGS, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ LARRY A. MIZEL

Larry A. Mizel
Chief Executive Officer

By: {s/ PARIS G. REECE III
Paris G. Reece 111
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned officers and/or directors of the
Registrant, by virtue of their signatures to this report, appearing below, hereby constitute and appoint Larry A. Mize],
David D. Mandarich and Paris G. Reece II1, or any one of them, with full power of substitution, as attorneys-in-fact
in their names, places and steads to execute any and all amendments to this report in the capacities set forth opposite
their names and hereby ratify all that said attorneys-in-fact do by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s LARRY A. MIZEL Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief February 17, 2005
Larry A. Mizel Executive Officer

/s/ DAVID D. MANDARICH Director, President and Chief Operating Officer February 17, 2005
David D. Mandarich

{s/ STEVEN J. BORICK Director February 17, 2005
Steven J. Borick

/s/ GILBERT GOLDSTEIN Director February 17, 2005
Gilbert Goldstein

{s/ WILLIAM B. KEMPER Director February 17, 2005

William B. Kemper

/s/ HERBERT T. BUCHWALD Director February 17, 2005
Herbert T. Buchwald

{s/ DAVID E. BLACKFORD Director February 17, 2005
David E. Blackford

(A Majority of the Board of Directors)

40




